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The Special Warrant Offering
This Prospectus qualifies the distribution of 4,459,520 Special Warrant Shares (although a further 121,000 Special
Warrants Shares will be deemed to be issued following the receipt for the final prospectus), issuable, without the
payment of any additional consideration, upon the deemed exercise of 4,580,520 Special Warrants, all of which Special
Warrants were previously issued by the Company (the “Special Warrant Offering”).
Number Issued

Price to Special
Warrant Holder

Agent’s
Commission

Net Proceeds to the
Company

Per Special Warrant

4,580,520

$0.25

NIL

$1,145,130

Total

4,580,520

$0.25

NIL

$1,145,130

The Company issued the Special Warrants on July 31, 2007 and September 30, 2007 pursuant to a private placement. See
“Plan of Distribution – Special Warrant Offerings”.
Each Special Warrant is exercisable into one Share of the Company (a “Special Warrant Share”).
The Special Warrants are not exercisable by the Purchaser during the first 12 months following the date of the issuance
of the Special Warrants. The Special Warrants will be deemed to be exercised at the earlier of: (a) two years from the
issuance of the Special Warrants; and (b) following the receipt for a final prospectus of the Company which qualifies the
issuance of any of the Special Warrant Shares on the exercise of the Special Warrants and in accordance with the terms
of the Prospectus. The Special Warrants were issued under prospectus exemptions under applicable securities
legislation.
Of the 4,580,520 issued Special Warrants, a total of 120,500 of the Special Warrants were issued to five residents of
Ontario and a total of 500 Special Warrants were issued to one resident of Quebec. As this Prospectus is not being filed
with the Securities Commissions of Ontario or Quebec, the Special Warrant Shares issuable to such residents will remain
subject to resale restrictions applicable to residents of those Provinces. Of the 4,580,520 issued Special Warrants,
2,469,520 Special Warrants were issued to 41 residents of the United States. The Special Warrant Shares issuable to
those residents will generally not be subject to resale restrictions, except for 907,000 Special Warrant Shares held by
three “affiliates” as that term is defined under securities legislation of the United States and those Special Warrant Shares
may be resold in compliance with United States Regulation S. Also of the 4,580,520 issued Special Warrants, a total of
845,500 Special Warrants were issued to 17 residents overseas. Those Special Warrant Shares will not be subject to resale restrictions.

Following the issuance of a receipt for the prospectus of the Company, an application will be made to list the
Shares, the issuance of which is qualified hereunder on the Canadian Trading and Quotation System Inc. (the
“CNQ”). Listing is subject to the Company fulfilling all of the listing requirements of the CNQ.
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There is no market through which these securities may be sold and purchasers may not be able to resell
securities, the issuance of which is qualified under the prospectus. This may affect the pricing of the
securities in the secondary market, the transparency and availability of trading prices, the liquidity of the
securities, and the extent of issuer regulation. See “Risk Factors”.
As at the date of this prospectus, the Company does not have any of its securities listed or quoted, has not applied to list
or quote any of its securities, and does not intend to apply to list or quote any of its securities, on the Toronto Stock
Exchange, a U.S. marketplace, or a marketplace outside Canada and the United States of America other than the
Alternative Investment Market of the London Stock Exchange or the PLUS markets operated by PLUS Markets Group
plc.
An investment in the securities of the Company is subject to a number of risk factors which should be reviewed carefully
by prospective purchasers. See “Risk Factors”.
No underwriter has been involved in the preparation of the prospectus or performed any review of the contents
of the prospectus.
In this prospectus, “we”, “us”, “our” and the “Company” refers to Silver Phoenix Resources Inc., a corporation
incorporated under the predecessor act to the current British Columbia Business Corporations Act.
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SUMMARY OF PROSPECTUS
The following is a summary of the principle features of this distribution and should be read together with the more detailed information and
financial data and statements contained elsewhere in this prospectus.
The Company:

Silver Phoenix Resources Inc. was incorporated on February 14, 2003 under the laws
of the Province of British Columbia. In this prospectus, a reference to the
“Company” means Silver Phoenix Resources Inc.
See “Corporate Structure” at page 1.

Company’s Business:

The Company’s business is to explore and develop natural resource properties.
We currently hold three properties:
(a) the “River Jordan Property”;
(b) the “Big Showing Property”; and
(c) the Waverly Tangier Property,
all of which are located in east central British Columbia.
See “Business Of The Company” at page 1 and “Our Properties” at page 6.

The Offerings:

The Offerings consist of a Special Warrant Offering.
See “Plan Of Distribution” at page 77.

The Special Warrant Offering:

This Prospectus qualifies the distribution of 4,459,520 Special Warrant Shares
(although a further 121,000 Special Warrants Shares will be deemed to be issued
following the receipt for the final prospectus), issuable, without the payment of any
additional consideration, upon the deemed exercise of 4,580,520 Special Warrants, all
of which Special Warrants were previously issued by the Company (the “Special
Warrant Offering”).
Each Special Warrant is exercisable into one common share of the Company (a
“Share”).
The Special Warrants were issued pursuant to prospectus exemptions under
applicable securities legislation.
The Special Warrants are not exercisable by the Purchaser during the first 12 months
following the date of the issuance of the Special Warrants. The Special Warrants will
be deemed to be exercised at the earlier of:
(a) two years from the issuance of the Special Warrants; and
(b) following the receipt for a final prospectus of the Company which qualifies the
issuance of the Shares on the exercise of the Special Warrants and in accordance
with the terms of the Prospectus.
The price for each Special Warrant was established arbitrarily by the Company after
reference to the stage of development of the Company and the sale-ability and
general market conditions for such issuance.
See “Plan of Distribution” at page 77.

Use of Proceeds

As at October 31, 2008, we had working capital of approximately $309,235. The
Special Warrant Offering does not involve any additional consideration to the
Company. Accordingly, if the Special Warrant Offering is completed, we will have
$309,235to expend on our principal purposes described below.
We intend to spend the funds available to us as stated in this prospectus. There may
be circumstances however, where for sound business reasons, a reallocation of the
funds available may be necessary. The principal purposes for which the funds
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available are intended to be used, in order of their priority are:
Description & Amount
1. To pay the balance of the audit, legal and administrative costs associated with
the Offering, $25,000.
2. To fund Phase 1 of the recommended work program on the River Jordan
Property, $56,650.
3. To fund the estimated general and administrative expenses for 12 months
following the Offering, $216,850.
4.

To provide for general working capital to fund ongoing operations, $10,735.

Total: $309,235
See “Principal Use of Proceeds” at page 45.
Business Objectives:

The Company’s business objectives are to complete Phase 1 of the recommended
exploration program on the River Jordan Property and then further compile that
information in an effort to further define the mineralization potential, in particular,
the silver, lead and zinc mineralization on the River Jordan Property.
There are no current plans to conduct any exploration programs on either of the Big
Showing Property or the Waverly Tangier Property. The Company will need to raise
further funds in order to conduct any of such exploration programs. There is no
certainty that the Company will be able to raise additional funds.
See “Business Of The Company – Business Objectives” at page 5 and see “Risk
Factors” at page 78.

Risk Factors:

-

We are in the business of exploring and developing natural resource
properties which is a highly speculative endeavour.

-

Our properties are in the exploration stage and without a known body of ore.
There is no guarantee that ore will be found or that, if it is found, it will be
found in commercially mineable quantities.

-

We do not currently generate revenues and, as a consequence, if we require
additional funds for exploration and development of our properties, which is
likely, we will have to seek equity or debt financing which may or may not be
available.

-

There is no assurance we will be able to obtain all required licenses and
permits to conduct our operations.

-

All of our operations are subject to environmental regulations that can make
operations expensive or prohibit them altogether.

-

Our ability to generate revenue should we discover ore or continue to raise
funds for the further exploration and development of our property will be
highly dependent on the price of precious metals that have a history of wide
fluctuations.

-

We operate in a competitive industry and compete with other more well
established companies who may have greater financial resources than us.

-

There may be challenges to the title of our properties that, if successful, could
impair our operations.

-

The Company has no history of positive income from operations. Moreover,
because the Company is still in the exploration stage it is expected that the
Company will generate net losses for the foreseeable future.

-

There is no guarantee we will ever be able to generate a positive net income.

-

Our operations may be affected by possible economic instability or by
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changes to government regulations.
-

We depend on a number of key employees, the loss of any one of whom
could have an adverse effect on us.

-

The Chief Executive Officer is the father of the Chief Financial Officer and,
as a result of that relationship, the Chief Financial Officer may lack the
independence and objectivity required of a Chief Financial Officer.

-

The Company may be required to issue further shares under the Jordan River
Purchase Agreement, the Big Showing Purchase Agreement and under the
Waverly Tangier Purchase Agreement. Any such share issuances will result in
further dilution to the shareholders of the Company. See “Significant
Acquisition and Significant Disposition” at page 1.

-

We have not paid dividends in the past and do not expect to pay dividends in
the future.

-

The value of our assets is indeterminate.

-

There is no existing market for our securities.

See “Business of the Company” at page 1 and “Risk Factors” at page 78.
Summary financial information

The information below was taken from the audited financial statements contained in
this prospectus. Please refer to the audited financial statements for the fiscal years
ended December 31, 2005, December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2007 and the
unaudited financial statements for the quarter ended September 30, 2008 attached as
an appendix to this prospectus to put the following summary into context.
See “Selected Consolidated Financial Information and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis” at page 5.

Current Assets
Resource Property
Costs
Total assets
Total Long term
liabilities
Total liabilities
Net Loss for the
Period
Net loss per share
(basic and diluted)
Share capital
outstanding (1)
Cash dividends

Summary Financial Information
Period ended
Year ended
Year ended
September 30, 2008
December 31, 2007
December 31, 2006
Unaudited
Audited
Audited
525,904
725,668
527,609

Year ended
December 31, 2005
Audited
94,724

219,116
750,752

120,321
852,500

38,214
571,854

14,732
110,051

Nil
199,100

Nil
93,742

Nil
32,772

Nil
22,196

247,376

91,354

54,673

46,062

$0.11

$0.05

$0.04

$0.03

2,250,000
Nil

2,250,000
Nil

1,500,000
Nil

1,500,000
Nil

(1) As at the quarter ended September 30, 2008, in addition to the 2,250,000 Shares issued and outstanding there was
there were a total of 4,580,520 Special Warrants outstanding.

CORPORATE STRUCTURE
Name and Incorporation
The Company, Silver Phoenix Resources Inc., was incorporated under the predecessor act to the British Columbia
Company Act on February 14, 2003 under the name Silver Phoenix Resources Inc.
The Company’s head office is located at 4631-75the Avenue NE, Canoe, British Columbia. The Company’s registered
and records office is located at Suite 950, Scotia Tower, 650 West Georgia Street, P.O. Box 11587, Vancouver, BC, V6B
4N8.
The Company was incorporated under the Company Act (British Columbia) on February 14, 2003 with an authorized
capital of 50,000,000 common shares without par value. The Company was transitioned under the Business Corporations
Act (British Columbia) on February 27, 2006, with a statement that the Pre-existing Company Provisions applied to the
Company. On October 5, 2007 the Company removed the Pre-Existing Company Provisions and altered its share
capital by increasing the number of common shares from 50,000,000 to an unlimited number. The Company also
adopted a new set of articles.
Intercorporate Relationships
The Company does not have any subsidiaries.
BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY
The Company is in the business of exploring and developing natural resource properties. The Company intends to the
use a portion of the Company’s current funds to complete the Phase 1 exploration program on the River Jordan
Property. Without a further financing, the Company will not have adequate funds to explore its Big Showing Property
or its Waverly Tangier Property. Because of a lack of funds, the Company has no current plans to explore the Big
Showing Property or the Waverly Tangier Property. But the Company does intend to use its best efforts to raise further
financings in order that it can explore its Big Showing Property and Waverly Tangier Property.
Three Year History
Since our incorporation on February 14, 2003, the Company has been in the business of exploring and developing
natural resource properties.
The Company currently has a 100% interest in the three following properties:
(a)

the Big Showing Property;

(b)

the Waverly Tangier Property; and

(c)

the River Jordan Property.

All of the above properties are located in the east central portion of the Province of British Columbia, Canada.
Significant Acquisitions and Significant Dispositions
Big Showing Property
The Company, William Murray and Leland Voll, then William Murray being a director and now both being directors of
the Company, entered into a non arm’s length purchase and sale agreement dated February 14, 2003 (the “Big Showing
Property Purchase Agreement”) under which the Company agreed to purchase a 100% interest in the Big Showing
Property, then consisting of three mineral claims totaling 1,000 hectares, in consideration of the following:
(a)

the payment by the Company of $7,500.00 by the issuance and delivery to the William Murray and
Leland Voll of 750,000 Shares at the deemed price of $0.01 on the date of the Big Showing Property
Purchase Agreement, to be allocated as follows:

2

(b)

(c)

(d)

(i)

675,000 Shares to William Murray; and

(ii)

75,000 Shares to Leland Voll;

the payment by the Company to William Murray and Leland Voll of $35,000 by April 30, 2007, to be
allocated as follows:
(i)

$31,500.00 to William Murray; and

(ii)

$3,500.00 to Leland Voll;

the issuance and delivery to William Murray and Leland Voll of a further 1,000,000 Shares within 30
business days of the date on which the Company receives a NI 43-101 Technical Report disclosing an
Indicated Mineral Resource (as defined in the agreement) of 5,000,000 ounces of Contained Silver
Equivalent (as defined in the agreement) on the Claims, with the Shares to be allocated as follows:
(i)

900,000 Shares to William Murray; and

(ii)

100,000 Shares to Leland Voll; and

the issuance and delivery to William Murray and Leland Voll of a further 1,583,333 Shares within 30
business days of the date on which the Company receives a positive Pre-feasibility Study on the
Claims, with the Shares to be allocated as follows:
(i)

1,425,000 Shares to William Murray; and

(ii)

158,333 Shares to Leland Voll.

The payments and share issuances under paragraphs (a) and (b) above were made. The share issuances under paragraphs
(c) and (d) above, are not yet due as the conditions for the issuances have not yet been met. Such share issuances will
not be made until the requirements in paragraphs (c) and (d) are met.
The Big Showing Property is located in east central British Columbia and presently consists of four mineral claims in
aggregate (three legacy mineral claims and one cell claim), with an aggregate area of 1,285.524 hectares, all of which
mineral claims are registered in the sole name of the Company. The details of the mineral claims are set out in the below
table:
Tenure
Number

Tenure
Type

Claim Name
BIG
SHOWING

Good To
Date

Status

The Company 082K083

2009/Dec/05

GOOD

500.0

Owner

Map
Number

Area

390111

Mineral

390112

Mineral

MAMMOTH

The Company 082K083

2009/Dec/05

GOOD

300.0

405424

Mineral

SCOUT

The Company 082K083

2009/Dec/05

GOOD

200.0

529121

Mineral

The Company 082K

2009/Dec/05

GOOD

285.524

RUBY
SILVER

The Big Showing Property is not subject to any royalties.
The Waverly Tangier Property
The Company, William Murray and Leland Voll, then William Murray being a director and now both being directors of
the Company, entered into a non arm’s length purchase and sale agreement dated March 15, 2004 (the “Waverly
Tangier Property Purchase Agreement”) under which the Company agreed to purchase a 100% interest in the
Waverly Tangier Property, then consisting of 17 mineral claims totaling 5,675 hectares, in consideration of the following:
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

the payment by the Company of $7,500.00 by the issuance and delivery to the William Murray and
Leland Voll of 750,000 Shares at the deemed price of $0.01 on the date of the Waverly Tangier
Property Purchase Agreement, to be allocated as follows:
(i)

675,000 Shares to William Murray; and

(ii)

75,000 Shares to Leland Voll;

the payment by the Company to William Murray and Leland Voll of $35,000 by April 30, 2007, to be
allocated as follows:
(i)

$31,500.00 to William Murray; and

(ii)

$3,500.00 to Leland Voll;

the issuance and delivery to William Murray and Leland Voll of a further 1,000,000 Shares within 30
business days of the date on which the Company receives a NI 43-101 Technical Report disclosing an
Indicated Mineral Resource (as defined in the Waverly Tangier Property Purchase Agreement ) of
5,000,000 ounces of Contained Silver Equivalent (as defined in the Waverly Tangier Property
Purchase Agreement ) on the Claims, with the Shares to be allocated as follows:
(i)

900,000 Shares to William Murray; and

(ii)

100,000 Shares to Leland Voll; and

the issuance and delivery to the William Murray and Leland Voll of a further 1,583,333 Shares within
30 business days of the date on which the Company receives a positive Pre-feasibility Study on the
Claims, with the Shares to be allocated as follows:
(i)

1,425,000 Shares to William Murray; and

(ii)

158,333 Shares to Leland Voll.

The payments and share issuances under paragraphs (a) and (b) above were made. The share issuances under paragraphs
(c) and (d) above, are not yet due as the conditions for the issuances have not yet been met. Such share issuances will
not be made until the requirements in paragraphs (c) and (d) are met.
The Waverly Tangier Property is located in east central British Columbia and presently consists of 25 mineral claims in
aggregate, with an area of 4,446.196 hectares in aggregate, all of which mineral claims are registered in the sole name of
the Company. The details of the mineral claims are set out in the below table:
Tenure
Number

Tenure
Type

Claim Name

Owner

Map
Number

Good To
Date

Status

Area

388305

Mineral

WAVERLEY

The Company 082N041

2009/dec/05

GOOD

300.0

388306

Mineral

TANGIER

The Company 082N041

2009/dec/05

GOOD

300.0

392044

Mineral

GEORGE 1

The Company 082N031

2009/dec/05

GOOD

500.0

531408

Mineral

FALLS

The Company 082N

2009/dec/05

GOOD

120.828

547640

Mineral

GEORGE 5

The Company 082N

2009/dec/05

GOOD

342.807

547641

Mineral

ROAD

The Company 082M

2009/dec/05

GOOD

160.994

547644

Mineral

GEORGE 5

The Company 082N

2009/dec/05

GOOD

40.338

547646

Mineral

GEORGE 6

The Company 082N

2009/dec/05

GOOD

504.887

547739

Mineral

The Company 082N

2009/dec/05

GOOD

262.016

TANGIER
PASS

4
547740

Mineral

TANGIER2

The Company 082N

2009/dec/05

GOOD

282.068

547741

Mineral

GEORGE 8

The Company 082N

2009/dec/05

GOOD

302.623

547742

Mineral

The Company 082M

2009/dec/05

GOOD

181.015

547745

Mineral

The Company 082N

2009/dec/05

GOOD

161.491

547747

Mineral

The Company 082M

2009/dec/05

GOOD

201.297

547748

Mineral

TANGIER 3

The Company 082N

2009/dec/05

GOOD

20.145

547749

Mineral

GEORGE 5

The Company 082N

2007/dec/20

GOOD

20.18

547750

Mineral

The Company 082M

2009/dec/05

GOOD

160.972

547786

Mineral

GEORGE 2

The Company 082N

2009/dec/05

GOOD

201.843

547787

Mineral

GEORGE3

The Company 082N

2009/dec/05

GOOD

40.363

547788

Mineral

SORCERER

The Company 082M

2009/dec/05

GOOD

20.134

547790

Mineral

SORCER

The Company 082N

2009/dec/05

GOOD

20.136

547799

Mineral

TANGIER 2

The Company 082N

2009/dec/05

GOOD

40.292

547821

Mineral

SORCER

The Company 082N

2009/dec/05

GOOD

40.268

547824

Mineral

SORCER 3

The Company 082N

2009/dec/05

GOOD

181.207

548966

Mineral

TANGIER 2

The Company 082N

2009/dec/05

GOOD

40.292

1

SORCERER
GEORGE 9
SORCERER

4
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SORCERER

The Waverly Tangier Property is not subject to any royalties.
In August 2008 the Company finished a trail into the Waverly Tangier Property and did a small amount of reclamation
work consisting of filling in a double compartment (4 feet by 10 feet by 80 feet deep) shaft on the Property and doing
some landscaping in that area in order to eliminate the danger associated with the previously open shaft. The cost of
such work was $11,700.00.
The River Jordan Property
The Company, William Murray and Leland Voll, then William Murray being a director and now both being directors of
the Company, entered into a non arm’s length purchase and sale agreement dated March 16, 2006 (the “River Jordan
Property Purchase Agreement”) under which the Company agreed to purchase a 100% interest in the River Jordan
Property, then consisting of two mineral claims totaling 649.075 hectares, in consideration of the following:
(a)

(b)

the payment by the Company to the William Murray and Leland Voll of $35,000 by April 30, 2007, to
be allocated as follows:
(i)

$31,500.00 to William Murray; and

(ii)

$3,500.00 to Leland Voll;

the payment by the Company of $7,500.00 by the issuance and delivery to William Murray and Leland
Voll of 750,000 Shares at the deemed price of $0.01 within five business days of William Murray and
Leland Voll advising the Company that the chief gold commission has made the mineral rights
formerly held under the Crown Grants available for selection under section 4 of the Mineral Tenure
Act Regulation by conducting the required advertising in the Gazette, to be allocated as follows:
(i)

675,000 Shares to William Murray; and

(ii)

75,000 Shares to Leland Voll;
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(c)

(d)

the issuance and delivery to the Sellers of a further 1,000,000 Shares within 30 business days of the
date on which Silver Phoenix receives a NI 43-101 Technical Report disclosing an Indicated Mineral
Resource of 5,000,000 ounces of Contained Silver Equivalent on the Claims, with the Shares to be
allocated as follows:
(i)

900,000 Shares to William Murray; and

(ii)

100,000 Shares to Leland Voll; and

which the Company receives a positive Pre-feasibility Study on the Claims, with the Shares to be
allocated as follows:
(i)

1,425,000 Shares to William Murray; and

(ii)

158,333 Shares to Leland Voll.

The payments and share issuances under paragraphs (a) and (b) above were made. The share issuances under paragraphs
(c) and (d) above, are not yet due as the conditions for the issuances have not yet been met. Such share issuances will
not be made until the requirements in paragraphs (c) and (d) are met.
The River Jordan Property is located in east central British Columbia and presently consists of seven mineral claims in
aggregate, with an aggregate area of 3,123.611 hectares, all of which mineral claims are registered in the sole name of the
Company. The details of the mineral claims are set out in the below table:
Tenure
Number

Tenure
Type

Claim Name

Owner

Map
Number

Good To
Date

Status

Area

524937

Mineral

SILVER DEEP 1

The Company 082M

2012/Mar/01

GOOD

283.953

530114

Mineral

RIVER JORDAN

The Company 082M

2012/Mar/01

GOOD

365.122

547839

Mineral

RIVER JORDAN 2 The Company 082M

2012/Mar/01

GOOD

486.932

559186

Mineral

RIVER JORDAN
EAST

The Company 082M

2012/Mar/01

GOOD

507.067

559187

Mineral

JORDAN RIVER
EASTSOUTH

The Company 082M

2012/Mar/01

GOOD

507.23

568843

Mineral

JR6

The Company 082M

2012/Mar/01

GOOD

506.934

568844

Mineral

RJ7

The Company 082M

2012/Mar/01

GOOD

466.373

Total

3123.611

The River Jordan Property is not subject to any royalties.
Business Objectives
The Company’s business objectives include the completion of Phase 1 of the recommended exploration program on the
River Jordan Property and then further compile that information in an effort to further define the mineralization
potential, in particular, the silver, lead and zinc mineralization on the River Jordan Property.
At present the Company has not determined whether the Company will proceed to conduct the Phase I recommended
exploration program on the Big Showing Property or the Waverly Tangier Property or whether it will attempt to locate
parties in order to subsequently grant an option to a third party of an interest in one of the Company’s properties.
In the past the Company conducted one exploration program in August 2008 on the River Jordan Property (see the
disclosure below under “Our Properties – The River Jordan Property” and see the related National Instrument 43-101
Report drafted by Tom Carpenter filed in SEDAR.com) and only very limited exploration on the Big Showing Property
(see the disclosure below under “Our Properties – The Big Showing Property” and see the related National Instrument
43-101 Report drafted by James A. Turner, P.Geo.), including some limited work in 2007. In the past, the Company has
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completed some exploration on the Waverly Tangier Property (see the disclosure below under the heading, “Our
Properties – The Waverly Tangier Property” and see the related National Instrument 43-101 Report drafted by James A.
Turner, P.Geo.), including some limited work in 2007. In addition, the Company did work on the trail into the Waverly
Tangier Property and covered in an open shaft – see “BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY – Significant Acquisitions and
Significant Dispositions – The Waverly Tangier Property”.
Milestones
In order to accomplish our business objectives stated above, following the Company’s receipt for the Company’s
Prospectus and the proposed listing of the Company’s shares on the CNQ (no application has been made as of the date
of this Prospectus and there is no assurance that the CNQ will list the Company’s shares, the Company will conduct the
Phase 1 exploration Program on the Company’s River Jordan Property. If the results are encouraging, then, if the
Company has adequate funds or if the Company then raises further funds, the Company may either subsequently
complete a drilling program on the River Jordan Property being part of the Phase 2 exploration program as described
below under the heading “Our Properties – The River Jordan Property – Recommendations” or, alternatively, the
Company may attempt to locate a party in order to grant that party an option of an interest in the River Jordan Property.
The Company does not know if it will be exploring the Big Showing Property or the Waverly Tangier Property or
whether it will attempt to locate parties to take options to earn interests in the Big Showing Property or the Waverly
Tangier Property.
Our Properties
The River Jordan Property
The following technical information has been extracted from the technical report entitled “Technical Report on
Exploration Programs and Results on the River Jordan Property” dated November 30, 2007, as amended on January 29,
2008, as further amended on February 07, 2008, as further amended on March 18, 2008, as further amended on April 18,
2008, as further amended on May 09, 2008, as further amended on May 27, 2008, as further amended on August 7, 2008,
as further amended on August 26, 2008, as further amended on September 11, 2008, as further amended on October 31,
2008 (the “River Jordan Technical Report”) prepared by Qualified Person T. Carpenter of Discovery Consultants. A
copy of this Technical Report can be found in the Company’s disclosure page on www.sedar.com. The following extract
makes references to various figures. In order to view those figures, please see the Technical Report on www.sedar.com.
4.0

Property Description and Location

The Property is roughly centered at latitude 51° 07' 30" N and longitude 118°24' 44" W within BCGS Map Sheets
82M.018 and 019 and National Topographic System(NTS) Map Sheets 082M/01W. The property is located 19
kilometres northwest of Revelstoke, BC (Figure 1).
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The property comprises seven mineral claims containing 3,123.611hectares (Table 1 and Figure 2).
Title Name

Tenure No.

Area (ha)

Registered Owner

Expiry Date1

River Jordan

530114

365.122

Silver Phoenix

March 1, 2012

River Jordan 2

547839

486.932

Silver Phoenix

March 1, 2012

Silver Deep 1

524937

283.953

Silver Phoenix

March 1, 2012

River Jordan East

559186

507.067

Silver Phoenix

March 1, 2012

River Jordan
Eastsouth
JR6

559187

Silver Phoenix

March 1, 2012

568843

506.934

Silver Phoenix

March 1, 2012

RJ7

568844

466.373

Silver Phoenix

March 1, 2012

507.230

On September 11, 2008, a Statement of Work was filed on the Property, extending the expiry date to March 1, 2012. An
assessment report on the August 2008 exploration is required in support of the filing. The mineral cell titles were
acquired online and as such there are no posts or lines marking the location of the Property on the ground.
The Property, and specifically the River Jordan and Silver Deep 1 claims, overlies a series of formerly valid Crowngranted mineral claims covering the River Jordan Deposit. Under new BC Mineral Titles Online regulations, where an
existing mineral cell claim is registered over the land formerly subject to a Crown-granted claim, that registered cell claim
owner, in this case Silver Phoenix, acquires the mineral rights.
An outline of the position of the reverted Crown–granted claims is shown on Figure 2 for informational purposes only.
The author has checked the status of recorded ownership and expiry dates of the cell claims in this report as listed on
the BC MEMPR Mineral Titles Division website. All claims are in good standing until March 1, 2012. In order to keep
the mineral cell titles in good standing past the above noted anniversary dates, assessment work will have to be filed with
the BC Mineral Titles Division before the anniversary date of each title (and/or group) in the amount of $4.00 per
hectare of acceptable work in the first 3 years after acquisition and increasing to $8.00 per hectare after 3 years, plus a
filing fee of $0.40 per hectare.
The author is not aware of any environmental issues specific to the Property. The property is in the area of interest of
the Shuswap Secwepemc First Nation. No LRMP has yet been planned for the claim area.
5.0

Access, Infrastructure, Physiography and Climate

Access to the Property can be gained via helicopter from Revelstoke. A road providing access to the former Mount
Copeland molybdenum mine along Hiren Creek lies within 10 km of the River Jordan Deposit. A pack trail leads off
this road at Hiren Creek and proceeds up the Jordan River and Copeland Creek to the River Jordan Deposit. Both road
and trail have long since fallen into disrepair.
The nearest major supply centre is Revelstoke, 19 km to the southeast, where supplies and services adequate to explore
the Property can be found.
The claim area is mostly rugged terrain with the bulk of the claims along Copeland Ridge being entirely in alpine.
Elevations range from around 1,130 m on Copeland Creek to in excess of 2,530 m at Mount Copeland. The claims are
drained to the north and south by Copeland and Hiren Creeks, respectively.
The area is subjected to heavy snowfall during the winter months.

1

Mineral cell titles expire at midnight on the last day that they are valid.
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6.0

Exploration History

The earliest reported work in the area, which now comprises the Property was carried out in the 1890s. Brief mentions
of work in the area are contained in the Ministry of Mines reports for 1895, 1896 and 1898.
It was not until 1956 that any further mention was made when American Standard Mines Ltd. carried out a sampling and
trenching program on the area of the Property. In 1958 the property was optioned to Bunker Exploration Ltd which
carried out a trenching program.
In 1963, the property was under option to Bralorne Pioneer Mines Limited which carried out a 5-hole drilling program
with a cumulative footage of 4929 feet (1502 m). The deepest hole completed was 1500 feet (457 m) in length.
In 1965, Bralorne Pioneer Mines completed a mapping program and drilled a further 2966 feet (904m) in 2 holes. This
work was followed in 1966 by a further 7979 feet (2432m) in a 4-hole fan.
In 1968, work was recorded on the nearby Mount Copeland molybdenum deposit but no further work is recorded on
the River Jordan Deposit until 1991.
In 1970, a geological report by Fyles (BC DEMPR Bulletin 57) mentioned a further drill hole which encountered
“encouraging grades”. No mention was made however of when or by whom this program was carried out or a definition
of “encouraging grades”.
In 1991, First Standard Mining Ltd carried out a program of mapping, sampling and geophysics on various mineralized
zones on the property. These were the West, Cliff, and East zones. As well, work by First Standard examined two new
zones of mineralization named the Northeast and Lake Zones.
According to MINFILE, using as its source the Canadian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy Transactions 1961, page
272, the River Jordan Deposit contains “measured geological reserves” of 2.6 million tonnes grading 37.7 grams per
tonne silver, 5.1 per cent lead and 5.6 per cent zinc at ten per cent dilution.
This historical estimate predates NI 43-101 and the author has not been able to identify its original source. Therefore the
author cannot comment on the relevance or reliability of the historical estimate; that is, the author has no information to
determine how the historical estimate was calculated and how the categories used are different from those resource
categories set out in sections 1.2 and 1.3 of NI 43-101.
The author is not aware of a more current historical estimate, or any mineral resource estimate or mineral reserve
estimate made in compliance with NI 43-101. Silver Phoenix has not completed the work necessary to have the
historical estimate verified by a Qualified Person.
Silver Phoenix is not treating the historical estimate as a NI 43-101 defined mineral resource or mineral reserve, and the
historical estimate should not be relied upon.
A deep drillhole reported by Fyles indicates a potential for expanding known mineralization on the Property (Fyles, page
48) . However information as to the location of this drill hole or the grade intersected is not available.
7.0

Geological Setting

7.1

Regional Geology

The regional geology of the Property is shown on J.O. Wheeler’s Map 1964-12 of the Geological Survey of Canada.
The area of the Property is part of the Monashee Metamorphic Complex comprising regionally metamorphosed rocks of
amphibolite grade. The Monashee Complex, as described by Hoy (1987), consists of a series of granitic gneissic domes
of probable Aphebian age enveloped by metasedimentary gneisses and schists.
The Property lies on the south-eastern flank of the northernmost of these domes, the Frenchman Cap gneissic dome.
The Frenchman Cap gneissic dome consists predominantly of medium to dark grey, medium grained, granitic biotitefeldspar gneiss. Within the granitic gneiss are found inclusions of biotite-hornblende gneiss and light grey granitic gneiss.
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The youngest rocks recognized in the area are Tertiary-aged lamprophyre dykes. These range from <1m to over 3m in
thickness and tend to fill northerly trending faults and structures. In the River Jordan Deposit area, and on the Wild
Goose property to the north, vertical fault structures host pods and lenses of high-grade Pb-Zn-Ag mineralization and
lamprophyre dykes. The age of the mineralization within these structures is uncertain.
7.2

Local Geology

The following description of the geology of the River Jordan Deposit area is largely excerpted and adapted from a report
on the most recent historic exploration work in the area, carried out in 1991 for First Standard Mining Ltd, and available
as BC MEMPR Assessment Report #22029.
The River Jordan (King Fissure) Deposit lies within a southeasterly trending, southwesterly dipping syncline with an
overturned southern limb, known as the Copeland Synform (Fyles, 1970). Folding is open and concentric at the western
end, but tightens considerably towards the east. The synform has approximate dimensions of 2.5 km long by 0.8 km
wide. Stratiform massive sulphides are seen on both limbs of the fold. Several zones within the deposit have been
established by Riley (1961); the West, Cliff, and East zones as well as the newly named Northeast and Lake zones were
examined during the 1991 fieldwork.
7.2.1

Lithology

Fyles (1970) described 10 distinct metamorphic units, along with various intrusive rocks, as present in the River Jordan
area. Rock units 4, 5, and 6 are present in the River Jordan Deposit area. The 1991 program by First Standard appears to
have reversed the number sequence, going from unit 4 at the centre of the synform to unit 6 at the base (Figure 4) At
the bottom of the sequence, Fyle’s Unit 4 (First Standard’s unit 6), grey-green gneiss, quartzites and quartz-biotite
schists, form virtually inaccessible cliffs along the overturned southern limb of the deposit. Commonly weathering to
grey and black, these rocks are unusually rusty above the Cliff Zone.
Above Unit 4, the Unit 5 (FS’s unit 5e) basal marble is commonly less than l m thick. In gradational contact with the
basal marble is the extrusive 5c carbonatite unit (FS’s unit 5a). Best exposures of the carbonatite occur in the Cliff and
Northeast Zones. In the Cliff Zone the carbonatite is approximately 5 m thick and almost entirely tuffaceous in nature.
Rare fragments less than 2 cm in size tend to occur along discrete horizons. Repetitive centimetre-scale interlayering of
fine and medium grain sizes indicates several episodes of deposition. In the Northeast Zone, the carbonatite is highly
fragmental and reaches 10 m in thickness. Poorly sorted, matrix-supported fragments up to 25 cm in size form
approximately 20% of the volume, and are interpreted to be indicative of a proximal source vent. Light rare-earth
element content is markedly higher in the Northeast Zone samples than in the Cliff zone samples, particularly with
respect to Ce, La, and Nd.
Discontinuous medium to coarse-grained amphibolite layers are often present within the immediate carbonatite
stratigraphy, and probably represent metamorphosed basic volcanics and related intrusives (Hoy, 1987). Amphibolite
samples from the River Jordan Deposit are chemically similar to basic metavolcanic rocks near Blais Creek in the
Cottonbelt area (Hoy, 1987, p. 19).
The marker marble, Unit 5m (FS’s unit 5e), ranging from 3 to 10 m in thickness, is composed almost entirely of coarsegrained white calcite, and may also be of exhalative origin.
Above the marker marble lies feldspar-porphyroblastic grey mica schist with lesser calc-silicate schist (FS’s unit 5b). This
unit is uniformly non-descript, notable only in that it directly underlies the massive sulphides.
The massive sulphide horizon (Unit 5s) can be traced throughout the entire King Fissure Deposit with the exception of
talus and snow covered intervals. Greatest known primary massive sulphide thicknesses occur in the West and Cliff
Zones. Mineralogy consists mostly of fine to coarse-grained pyrrhotite, sphalerite, galena and pyrite, often within a
siliceous or calcareous matrix. Massive barite occurs with sulphides in the Northeast and West Zones.
Directly overlying the sulphide horizon are more grey mica schists and calc-silicate gneisses, in turn overlain by
interlayered quartzites and mica schists of Fyle’s Unit 5q (FS’s unit 5c). The quartzites are generally white to tan coloured
and have well-developed micaceous partings. Most of the mica is muscovite, although a green mica (fuchsite?) is often
present.
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Biotite schist layers become more prevalent up section, leading into biotite-sillimanite schist and quartzite of Fyle’s Unit
6 (FS’s unit 4) occurring in the core of the Copeland Synform. This highly tectonized and locally migmatitic unit
weathers to a strongly Fe-oxidized surface. Chaotic ptygmatic folding is common, and displacement along foliation
planes may be significant, but is difficult to measure.
Several northerly trending biotite-lamprophyre dykes cut through the deposit, particularly in the central and eastern
regions of the Copeland Synform. The lamprophyres, often occurring in swarms, weather to a dark brown colour, with
fine-grained biotite and subordinate amphibole within an aphanitic groundmass. Thickness of individual dykes ranges
from <0.5 m to 3 m. These dykes are also evident at the headwaters of Copeland Creek to the north, on the Wild Goose
property.
7.2.2

Structure

The River Jordan Deposit lies within a southeasterly trending, southwesterly dipping syncline with approximate
dimensions of 2.5 km long by 0.8 km wide. The fold has been named the Copeland Synform by Fyles (1970).
The Copeland Synform is open and concentric in the western end, but tightens considerably to the east. In the western
end, an anticline superimposed on the keel of the Copeland Synform has created a "W" shaped folding pattern,
effectively raising the structural level of the keel and establishing easterly plunges to folds. Structural measurements in
the West Zone indicate that the Copeland Synform plunges approximately 30° towards 150 °(Fyles, 1970). The central
antiform, plunging more steeply than the Copeland Synform, diminishes in magnitude towards the east, at some point
disappearing entirely as three fold axes coalesce into one. Near this point on the surface a major northerly trending fault
zone, known as the Camp Fault, cuts across the synform with a dextral offset of approximately 20m. This late structure
may be related to stress created at the junction of the earlier folding. East of the Camp Fault the Copeland Synform is
assumed to have a near horizontal keel. East of the King Fissure Deposit, structural mapping by Fyles indicates that fold
axes in Unit 4 rocks plunge approximately 15° to the west.
In the East Zone area, massive sulphides on each limb of the Copeland Synform are approximately 150 m apart.
Geological mapping and magnetic survey data indicate that the closure of the synform probably lies under talus and
thick bush further to the east.
8.0

Deposit Types

The River Jordan Deposit, along with other similar deposits to the northwest and to the south, have been variously
described as Broken Hill type and Sedex type deposits but are perhaps more closely related to Sedex deposits.
“Broken Hill type” (BHT) deposits are found in a restricted age range in lower-mid Proterozoic mobile belts with a long
thermal history. They are hosted in amphibolite-granulite facies metamorphic terranes in rift-related tectonic settings,
with transitions from quartzo-feldspathic-dominant lower stratigraphy to psammo-pelitic and pelitic sequences in the
upper stratigraphy.
BHT mineralization is concentrated at the transition from lower to upper sequences. Oxidized clastic metasediments
represent the most probable host lithology, although metamorphism is a complicating factor in interpretation of
protoliths.
BHT deposits are characterized by thin exhalite units. Multiple 'exhalite' horizons are common. Graphite and pyrite are
not common in near-ore environments.
Other styles of mineralization occur in BHT districts, in particular ironstone-associated Cu-Au in the lower stratigraphy.
There is a marked concentration of amphibolites and possible acid volcanics in near-ore and footwall sequences.
Mineralization is hosted by a diverse range of skarn-like Ca-Mn-Fe-P-F rich assemblages. Galena and sphalerite are
dominant with subordinate pyrrhotite and minor pyrite and variable magnetite. Mineralization exhibits coarse-grained
recrystallized and annealed textures, with complex ductile breccias.
Stacking of low-aspect ore lenses is common and there is a strong Pb-Zn zonation and rapid internal variation within
mineralized lenses.
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“Sedex type” deposits are found in intracratonic or continental margin environments. The deposits are stratabound,
tabular to lens shaped, normally shale-hosted sedimentary deposits of zinc, lead and silver with minor copper and barite.
They normally comprise many beds of sulphide laminae. Frequently the lenses are stacked and more than one horizon is
economic.
Ore lenses and mineralized beds often are part of a sedimentary succession up to hundreds of metres in thickness with a
horizontal extent much greater than the vertical extent. Individual laminae or beds may extend over tens of kilometres
within the depositional basin.
The major metallogenic sedex events occurred during the middle Proterozoic, early Cambrian, early Silurian and middle
to late Devonian to Mississippian. The middle Proterozoic and Devonian-Mississippian events are recognized world
wide. One of the type examples of a Sedex deposit is the former world-class Sullivan Mine at Kimberly, BC.
"Shuswap-type" zinc-lead deposits, of the types described in the Adjacent Properties section of this report and shown on
Figure 3a, can be considered as a subdivision of the larger class of clastic and carbonate hosted sedimentary exhalative
deposits. The Shuswap deposits are a transitional type in that they are hosted by both clastic and carbonate rocks, often
within a single deposit.
The environment of deposition was a shallow water platform marginal to the large long-lived sedimentary basin which
extended from the northern Selkirk Mountain southeasterly to southwestern Montana. The lithologies within the
sedimentary sequences that host the various known Shuswap deposits include arenaceous and pelitic clastic sediments
interbedded with thin but widespread carbonate horizons. The sediments were deposited during repeated marine
transgressions and retreats across a crystalline basement of continental crust. The presence of scapolite-bearing gneisses
indicates that evaporites may have formed in places.
Widespread horizons of tuffaceous rocks and metavolcanic amphibolites occur within the platformal sediments,
indicating the occurrence of coeval volcanic activity. Local development of conglomerates points to the presence of
active faulting during deposition.
The zinc-lead sulphide deposits occur in stratiform sulphide-enriched layers that can be 10 km or more in length. The
thicknesses of these sulphide layers are generally in the order of up to 2 metres, but within the larger deposits, zones of
enrichment in base metals occur which can attain thicknesses of 15 metres or more. The base metal content varies
among the various known deposits, but in general zinc content is higher than lead, and copper is relatively minor. The
Copper King zone at the Cottonbelt Deposit is an exception; chalcopyrite is the dominant sulphide mineral. Of the
known deposits, historically reported grades generally vary between 5% and 11% combined Pb/Zn. Silver values are less
than 50 grams per tonne. The geological potential for increasing reserves at several deposits is excellent, but problems of
difficult access, rugged terrain and complex structure have inhibited exploration and development.
The mineralogy of the deposits is usually some combination of pyrite, pyrrhotite, sphalerite and galena with varying
amounts of chalcopyrite, magnetite, barite, fluorite and graphite. Host rocks are typically sequences of quartzite, marble,
calc-silicate schist or gneiss and pelitic schist. Most deposits are intruded by dykes, sills and irregular masses of
pegmatite.
The presence of graphite-rich sedimentary horizons near some deposits indicates the presence of local euxinic
conditions. Some of the mineralized systems include stratiform layers of barite and fluorite, and one deposit is associated
with an extensive oxide iron formation.
The sulphide deposits are often surrounded by an extensive halo of manganese enrichment within the same stratigraphic
horizon. This halo is due to primary dispersion of manganese beyond the limits of sulphide deposition.
The crystalline basement on which the platform sediments were deposited is thought to be pre-Mid Proterozoic
continental crust. The host rocks of the Shuswap deposits are probably Late Proterozoic to Lower Paleozoic in age,
correlative with similar lithologic units of this age in the northern Selkirk Mountains adjacent to the Shuswap Terrane on
the east (two Shuswap-type deposits, the Wigwam and the Rift, occur in Cambrian and/or Eocambrian rocks in the
Selkirks). If this is the case then Proterozoic rocks equivalent to the thick Purcell and Windermere Groups appear to be
missing. An alternative hypothesis is that rocks of Purcell and Windermere age are represented by very thin sedimentary
horizons at the base of the platform sequence.
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Most of the rocks have been regionally metamorphosed to amphibolite grade and involved in several phases of folding.
Compressive tectonics from Late Paleozoic to Jurassic time was followed by extensional faulting in the Cretaceous and
Early Tertiary. These events have produced an exceedingly complex structural setting and correlation of units is difficult.
The regional metamorphism has resulted in recrystallization of the sulphide minerals in the deposit. Grain sizes tend to
be relatively coarse and thus amenable to metallurgical concentration. Folding of the originally tabular deposits could
also enhance the mineability of ore zones.
9.0

Mineralization

Historic exploration on the River Jordan Deposit has focused primarily on stratiform base-metal massive sulphides that
occur near the top of a carbonate sequence. The sulphide horizon is well exposed along both limbs of the Copeland
Synform. Numerous trenches and shallow adits occur in the Cliff, East, and Northeast Zones.
Cliff Zone
In the Cliff Zone, massive sulphides range from 1.5 m to >3 m thick. A vertical zonation within the massive sulphide
layer is recognizable; at the base is a dark weathering 0.2 to 1.0 m layer of mostly sphalerite and galena, with minor
pyrrhotite. This is overlain by 0.5 to 2 m of rusty weathering, massive, fine-grained pyrrhotite containing eyes of grey
quartz and fine grained sphalerite and galena. Above the pyrrhotite-dominant middle layer is a 0.2 to 1.0 m siliceous
horizon hosting coarse-grained pyrite with galena, sphalerite, and minor pyrrhotite. This siliceous upper layer is most
easily distinguished by its abundant pyrite and light grey to white weathered surfaces. Brecciation and footwall sulphide
stockworks were noted in the Cliff Zone. Barite has not been recognized.
East Zone
In the East Zone, massive sulphide layers are approximately 0.5 to 1.0 m thick, consisting mostly of sphalerite and
galena with lesser pyrrhotite and pyrite within a siliceous matrix. Barite has not been noted. On the north limb is a
pyrrhotite-rich zone containing wall rock breccia fragments. This zone is similar in mineralogy and appearance to the
middle layer of the Cliff Zone massive sulphide unit. Multiple layering over an interval of 3 m occurs on the north
limb. The extrusive carbonatite layer is present in the East Zone but has not been sampled.
Northeast Zone
In the Northeast Zone there are up to three massive sulphide layers separated by calcareous and siliceous layers with
barite spanning a total interval of 1.5 m to 3.0 m. Three sulphide layers, intersected in diamond drill holes drilled by
Bralorne Pioneer Mines Ltd., were previously interpreted to be structural repetitions of the same unit.
10.0

Exploration

The reader is referred to the Section 6 (Exploration History) for a description of exploration carried out prior to the
current Property ownership.
Between August 8, 2008 and August 24, 2008, a sampling and mapping program was carried out on the River Jordan
Property by personnel of Discovery Consultants. The program comprised the mapping of the sulphide zone where
exposed, the sampling of the sulphide zone, and the completion of an orientation magnetometer survey over selected
areas of mineralization.
In total, 152 rock samples were collected within and adjacent to the mineralized zone and within the underlying
carbonatite zone. The samples collected during the program were stored in secure premises from the end of the program
before being submitted for analysis to Acme Analytical Laboratories Ltd (“Acme”). Analytical results have subsequently
been received and the results of the program have been compiled. The locations of assays of significant mineralization
are shown on Figure 5 and the lead, zinc and silver values are shown in Table 2..
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Table 2: Significant Mineralization
Sample Numbers

Zone

Width (m)

Pb %

Zn %

Ag g/t

32 - 35

Cliff

3.5

9.1

10.4

58

36 - 38

Cliff

2.5

3.5

2.7

5

39 - 41

Cliff

2.0

0.9

3.6

4

71 - 72

Peak

2.0

1.2

4.5

14

108

West

1.0

8.2

21.5

91

110

Lake

1.0

3.0

4.2

39

119

Lake

1.0

3.9

2.7

44

120

Northeast

0.5

2.2

2.8

19

123

Northeast

0.35

12.8

0.2

71

128

Northeast

1.0

5.7

2.3

52

132

Northeast

0.4

14.7

0.3

75

135

East

1.0

15.6

2.7

128

140 - 141

East

2.0

1.7

4.3

19

Some of the sulphide showings were sampled by a single sample. For others, where the thickness of the sulphides was
greater than one metre, more than one sample was collected. The maximum thickness in any one sample was 1.0 metres.
The samples in Table 2 are from semi-massive to massive sulphide beds and lenses in marbles (calc-silicates) and
quartzites. Pyrrhotite, galena, sphalerite, pyrite and magnetite are the common minerals.
Values of 9.1% Pb and 10.4% Zn for a combined 19.5% over a thickness of 3.5 metres were encountered in samples
802GBR032 to 803GBR035. This zone also included an average 58 grams per tonne Ag.
Sample 802GBR108 contained 8.2% Pb and 21.5% Zn over a 1.0 metre thickness. Sample 802GBR132 contained 15.6%
Pb, 2.7% Zn and 128 grams per tonne Ag over 1.0 metre.
These values are comparable to previous sampling on the Property.
11.0

Drilling

Annual reports of the BC MEMPR for 1963, 1965 and 1966 record a total of 11 drill holes with an aggregate footage of
15,874 feet (4,838 m) having been drilled on the Property. However, no drill logs or records of analyses pertaining to
the drilling exist in government records, not has the author been able to obtain from private sources any such
information.
Fyles (1970) reports the drilling of a later hole on the Property but no details of this hole are available.
12.0

Sampling Method and Approach

Previous exploration and sampling programs results, though included in this Report as a historical reference, are not
verifiable. The reader is cautioned that all these historical programs, including the 1990s programs, predate NI 43-101
regulations and may not meet the present standard for quality control.
The soil and/or rock samples collected in the above described programs are believed to be representative of the material
sampled. The rock samples were chip and grab samples and as such are samples of the better mineralized material
present and are not necessarily representative of the average material as a whole.
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The exploration programs in the Exploration History section all predate NI 43-101. However they were all supervised by
professional engineers and geoscientists and it is the author’s belief that the programs were professionally managed and
the sampling method and approach was appropriate for the stage of mineral exploration undertaken and to accepted
industry standards at that time.
The Property owner, Silver Phoenix, carried out a mapping and sampling program on the Property in August 2008. This
program was monitored by and the data interpreted by the author. The sulphide horizon was mapped where
outcropping and rock chip and grab samples were collected. The rock chip samples were collected across the sulphide
horizon to a maximum of 1 metre in width. In areas of glacially polished outcrop, sampling was achieved with the use of
a chainsaw type rock saw equipped with a diamond blade. With the diamond saw parallel cuts were made across the
outcrop and intervening material chipped out with the aid of a rock chisel.
Where not glacially polished the horizon was sampled by continuous chip sampling across the horizon. Samples were
also collected from the unmineralized material bounding the horizon.
13.0

Sample Preparation, Analyses and Security

The reader is cautioned that all of the historical programs carried out on the Property predate NI 43-101 specifications,
which came into effect on February 1, 2001, and may not meet the present industry standard for sample preparation,
analysis and security.
The First Standard 1991 program used both Acme of Vancouver, BC, and Min-En Labs and Chemex Labs Ltd.
(“Chemex”), both of North Vancouver, BC. Chemex was acquired by the Australian Laboratory Services ALS in
October 1999 and is now known as ALS Chemex Labs Ltd. (“ALS Chemex”). Assayers Canada is the new operating
name of Mineral Environments Laboratories, (known commonly as Min-En Labs).
Acme, ALS Chemex and Min-En (now Assayers Canada) have BC certified professional assayers on staff who supervise
all analytical work and they routinely include analysis of standards and repeat analysis of randomly picked samples for
quality assurance and control.
The 1991 program comprised the collection of 29 rock chip samples; all of which were analyzed by ICP (Inductively
Coupled Plasma) or whole rock methods. Fourteen of these rocks were analyzed for base and precious metals and four
for light rare-earth analysis.
ICP analysis and gold analysis by acid leach were carried out on 3 samples at Acme as well as one gold assay.
Whole rock analyses were carried out on 9 samples at Chemex. Four rock samples were analyzed for light rare-earth
elements, also at Chemex.
The remaining samples were analyzed at Min-En Labs by ICP methods. Several of these samples were also assayed for
Ag, Pb, Zn, Ba and F.
No samples from the recent field program carried out on behalf of Silver Phoenix have yet been submitted for analysis.
It is the opinion of the author that the sample preparation and analytical procedures at the time of the 1990s exploration
programs followed normal industry practice appropriate for the stage of mineral exploration undertaken and to accepted
industry standards at that time, and are adequate. Earlier programs also likely followed accepted standards of the time.
Procedures detailing security of samples in earlier programs are not mentioned in previous reports but would likely not
be to present accepted standards.
For the 2008 Silver Phoenix program, chain of custody was maintained on the rock samples, which were stored, under
lock and key, in the facilities of Discovery Consultants in Vernon, BC, until they were sent, via bonded carrier, to Acme
in Vancouver, BC for analysis.
These samples were crushed to 70% passing 10 mesh and a 250 g split was pulverized to 85% passing 250 mesh. A 0.5 g
sub-sample was leached with 180 ml of aqua regia (HCl-HNO3-H2O) at 95˚C for one hour, and diluted to 600 ml, and
analyzed by ICP-MS techniques (Acme’s Group 1F-MS, 36 elements).
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Twenty-nine of the samples were submitted to over-limit assays for Pb and Zn ± Ag. A 1.0 g sub-sample was leached
with 180 ml of aqua regia (HCl-HNO3-H2O) at 95˚C for one hour, and diluted to 600 ml, and analysed by ICP emission
spectrometry (Acme’s Group 7AR method).
14.0

Data Verification

The author has reviewed all the assessment reports listed in the References section of this Report. Analyses have been
quoted in this Report both from historical references as well as more recent references, which have verifiable certificates
of analysis along with full descriptions of sample collection and preparation. Report conclusions are based on all
available data. The reader should be aware that these data are previous to and do not meet National Instrument 43-101
criteria. However on all of the assessment reports the author’s certificate of qualifications is attached and the author was
qualified through membership in an appropriate professional organization.
Mineral title record numbers and expiry dates of the River Jordan property were checked against information on the BC
Ministry of Energy, Mines and Petroleum Resources Mineral Titles Division website.
In August 2008, Silver Phoenix carried out preliminary geological mapping and rock sampling on the Property. The
mapping program visually confirmed both the general accuracy of historical mapping and the presence of a mineralized
horizon on the Property. The samples were sent to Acme for analysis and the results confirmed the historic results.
An orientation magnetometer survey across the mineralized horizon, using a McPhar proton magnetometer, revealed the
efficacy of this type of survey in locating mineralization in snow and talus covered areas. A more detailed survey over
snow and talus areas is recommended for Phase I.
Acme inserted quality control and quality assurance samples with each batch. These include preparation and analytical
blanks, duplicates and standards.
Acme inserted blank rock samples into the sample stream to test for possible contaminated during the sample
preparation procedures. The results indicate that there were no problems of contamination during the sample
preparation.
Acme regularly included analysis of a duplicate sub-sample of pulp approximately every 35 samples. For the pulp
duplicate analyses the precision was good and acceptable. Similarly, the results of the analytical control blanks and the
standard samples indicate no problems with the analyses.
Four field blank samples were inserted into the sample stream; no problems of sample preparation were encountered.
Acme has ISO 9001:2000 accreditation.
15.0

Adjacent Properties

Though some distance from the Property, the Ruddock Creek property of Selkirk Metals Corp and Doublestar
Resources Ltd, located 80 km northwest of the Property is very similar in setting and mineralogy to the Property and is
the subject of ongoing exploration by Selkirk Metals. Recently reported drill intersections include 22.6 m of 13.97% zinc
and lead, reported on the Stockwatch website (Stockwatch.com on the worldwide web) on November 23, 2006, and 5.13
m of 21.27% zinc and 4.61% lead reported on Stockwatch on January 5, 2007.
The Ruddock Creek property, MINFILE numbers 082M-082, 083 and 084, contains three mineralized areas, referred to
as the E, F, G, M zone, E, F, G, M zone, (see 082M-084), the T zone (082M-083) and the Q, R, V, U zone, (082M-082).
These occur as contorted layers and lenses of several metres in thickness that are traced intermittently over a strike
length of several kilometres within schist, siliceous calc-silicate gneiss, quartzite and marble.
A resources at Ruddock Creek was reported in the Canadian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy Bulletin, April 1982. At
the time these were reported as “drill indicated reserves”. Such a nomenclature and the accompanying resource
calculation cannot be considered to be compliant under the new National Instrument 43-101 (NI 43-101) qualifications
and is therefore not quoted.
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Approximately 45 km northwest of the Property and 32 km south-southeast of Ruddock Creek, the Cottonbelt property
lies along the northwestern margin of the Frenchman Cap Dome. A description of the Cottonbelt property is contained
on the BC MEMPR MINFILE website as MINFILE occurrence 082M086.
At the Cottonbelt, mineralized zones occur on both limbs of a syncline within the 'Cottonbelt Sequence', a
heterogeneous package of dominantly calcareous rocks. At the base of the Cottonbelt Sequence is a buff-weathering
carbonatite layer overlain by calcareous schists and a calcareous to relatively pure white quartzite. A distinctive greyweathering, white limestone overlies the quartzite, which is overlain by interlayered micaceous and calcareous schists and
an impure grey-weathering crumbly limestone. The sulphide layer, enveloped by a thin layer of very siliceous calcareous
schist and garnet sillimanite schist, defines the top of the Cottonbelt Sequence.
The mineralization comprises an oxide-sulphide layer, traced intermittently through a strike length of 5 km in the
western (upper) limb (Cottonbelt Zone) of the Grace Mountain syncline and 2 km in the lower limb (McLeod Zone). It
varies in thickness from a few tens of centimetres to approximately 2 metres. Mineralization generally consists of coarsegrained sphalerite, magnetite, galena and minor pyrrhotite in a dark green, pyroxene-amphibole-quartz-garnet 'skarn'
rock or, as layers within a lighter coloured, more siliceous calcareous gneiss, or as disseminated grains in a siliceous
granular marble.
The mineralized zones are parallel with bedding in the metasediments and dip about 35 degrees southwest. Several adits,
shafts and raises have exposed mineralization intermittently over a strike distance of 1650 metres. The main ore zone, as
exposed on surface, is up to 3.7 m wide and 76 m long.
About 2.5 km northwest of the main zone, within the same stratigraphic unit, are several smaller occurrences of
sulphides including the Copper King (082M 144). Here the main copper showing suggests a zone comprising several
bands of quartz mineralized with chalcopyrite and minor bornite, sphalerite and pyrite alternating with beds of micaschist and crystalline limestone. The chalcopyrite occurs as blebs and disseminations in the quartz.
The McLeod Zone (082M-125) lies about 460 m northeast of the Cottonbelt zone.
Unclassified reserves of the Cottonbelt were reported by the Canadian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy (CIM Bulletin,
Vol. 75, No. 840, - April 1982). This resource cannot be considered to be compliant under current NI 43-101
qualifications and therefore is not quoted.
Sixty km south-southeast of Revelstoke the Big Ledge Deposit (082LSE012) is located south of the core zone of the
Thor-Odin Dome in an east-west trending succession of metasedimentary rocks. The rusty weathering succession
consists of a heterogeneous mixture of schist and gneiss, calcareous quartzite, calc-silicate gneiss, marble and
amphibolite. The mineralized horizon is in the core of a fold which is a tight antiform, inclined to the south and
overturned to the north.
Showings of pyrrhotite, pyrite, sphalerite, galena, chalcopyrite and marcasite occur along a layer known as the Ledge for
a distance of over 10 km. The Ledge consists of fine grained, dark graphitic-sericitic schist, dark quartz-rich schist, calcsilicate gneiss and minor siliceous marble layers. Pyrite and pyrrhotite are disseminated throughout these units resulting
in a characteristic rusty weathering. Drilling indicates that there are at least four massive sulphide layers within the Ledge.
It is not known if these are individual layers or fold repetitions of one or more layers. The massive sulphide layers
consist of medium to coarse-grained pyrrhotite or pyrite with varying amounts of dark sphalerite. Quartz-eyes are
common in the massive sulphide layers and sphalerite is commonly aligned parallel to layering in the adjacent schists.
The Ledge averages 30 m in thickness and is conformable to bedding. Pyrrhotite is the most abundant sulphide and
pyrite, usually in nodular masses, is locally abundant. Sphalerite is erratically distributed with the pyrrhotite. Galena is
occasionally present in minor amounts along with the other sulphides but the only notable concentrations are small
occurrences in calcareous beds adjacent to the main mineralized sections. In general, the sulphides are coarsely
crystallized; a small amount of the ore minerals are intergrown with pyrrhotite. Iron sulphides are usually accompanied
by scattered graphite flakes.
A zone of heavier mineralization occurs in the upper portion of the rock series. This zone ranges from 61 cm to over 6
m in thickness (old drill records indicate up to 18 m). This zone is conformable with bedding but the sulphides are
erratically distributed in irregular massive and disseminated bodies. There is a large amount of granitic and pegmatitic
material in this zone. Sphalerite appears to be most abundant in disseminated sulphide sections but small irregular highgrade patches occur with both the massive and disseminated sulphides.
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A resource has been historically reported at the Big Ledge but as with Ruddock Creek, Cottonbelt and River Jordan this
resource predates National Instrument 43-101 and cannot be considered to be NI 43-101 compliant.
Three km west-northwest of the Property, the Mount Copeland molybdenum deposit (MINFILE 082M-002) began
production on July 1970 and ceased production in July 1974. Reserves at the start of production were reported as
163,278 tonnes grading 1.82% MoS2.
To the northwest of the River Jordan area, at the headwaters of Copeland Creek, the Wild Goose occurrence comprises
high-grade Pb, Zn and Ag mineralization as pods in vertical, northerly trending shear zones.
The author has replied upon other experts for the information in this section.
The amount, grade and type of mineralization on a nearby property are not necessarily indicative of the mineralization
on the Property that is the subject of this Report.
16.0

Mineral Processing and Metallurgical Testing

Metallurgical testing of silver-lead-zinc mineralization from the River Jordan Deposit is reported in MINFILE to have
been carried out in 1961 by CANMET. No results of this testing are available.
17.0

Mineral Resource and Mineral Reserve Estimates

According to MINFILE, the River Jordan Deposit contains “measured geological reserves” of 2.6 million tonnes
grading 37.7 grams per tonne silver, 5.1 per cent lead and 5.6 per cent zinc at ten per cent dilution.
This historical estimate predates NI 43-101 and the author has not been able to identify its original source. Therefore the
author cannot comment on the relevance or reliability of the historical estimate; that is, the author has no information to
determine how the historical estimate was calculated and how the categories used are different from resource categories
set out in sections 1.2 and 1.3 of NI 43-101.
Silver Phoenix has not completed the work necessary to have the historical estimate verified by a Qualified Person.
Silver Phoenix is not treating the historical estimate as a NI 43-101 defined mineral resource or mineral reserve, and the
historical estimate should not be relied upon.
20.0

Recommendations

The geological mapping, rock sampling, geophysical and diamond drilling programs should be directed toward the
definition of zones of thickening within the deposit caused by folding of the mineralized sulphide horizon.
As noted in this Report, a preliminary program for Silver Phoenix on the Property, comprising the collection of 152 rock
samples and geological mapping, has been carried out. Further work, comprising Phase I, should be carried out once
access to the property is available in 2009.
Phase I should consist of further geological and structural mapping, rock sampling and a magnetometer/VLF-EM
survey, as a follow-up to the August 2008 exploration. As noted, detailed mapping of the property by a trained structural
geologist would allow the accurate placement of drill holes during a Phase II program.
The Phase I program is estimated to cost $56,650. Contingent upon further favourable results in Phase I, a program of
diamond drilling should comprise the Phase II program, budgeted at $239,250.
The reader is cautioned that positive results in Phase I are no guarantee that the drilling program proposed for
Phase II will be successful. The reader is further cautioned that in the event that the Phase II drill program is
successful, much more drilling and investment will be required to properly evaluate the Property.
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21.0

Budget

21.1

Phase I - Geological Mapping, Rock Sampling and Magnetometer and VLF-EM Survey

Field personnel: mapping, magnetometer &
VLF-EM survey
Geologist(s): 15 days @ $700/day
Field technicians: 15 days @ $400/day

10,500
6,000

Crew mobilization: hotel, meals

5,000

Helicopter support and fuel
10 hours @ $2000/hour
Field supplies, freight, communications

20,000
800

Analysis: 30 rock samples @ $40/sample

1,200

Data compilation, reporting & drafting

8,000
Subtotal

Contingency – 10%

$51,500
5,150

Total Phase I

$56,650

IT IS THE OPINION OF THE AUTHOR THAT THE CHARACTER OF THE RIVER JORDAN
PROPERTY IS OF SUFFICIENT MERIT TO JUSTIFY THE RECOMMENDED PROGRAM.
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21.2

Phase II – Diamond Drilling

Field personnel
Geologist(s): 20 days @ $700/day
Field technician: 20 days @ $450/day
Cook/first aid attendant: 20 days @ $500/day

14,000
9,000
10,000

Crew mobilization

3,000

Camp rental: 20 days @ $400/day

$8,000

Drill mobilization and demobilization

10,000

Contract drilling costs: 1000 metres @ $100/metre

100,000

Helicopter support and fuel
20 hours @ $2000/hour

40,000

Equipment rental: 20 days @ $100/day

2,000

Field supplies and consumables

6,500

Analysis: 200 rock samples @ $35/sample

7,000

Freight and communications

1,000

Data compilation, reporting & drafting

7,000
Subtotal

Contingency – 10%

$217,500
21,750

Total Phase II

$239,250

The Big Showing Property
The following technical information has been extracted from the technical report entitled “NI 43-101 and Assessment
Report on the Mammoth, Scout and the Big Showing Property” dated February 2007, revised December 2007, February
6, & 25, 2008, April 10, 2008 and May 8, 2008 (the “Big Showing Technical Report”) prepared by Qualified Person
James A. Turner. A copy of this Technical Report can be found in the Company’s disclosure page on www.sedar.com.
The following extract makes references to various figures. In order to view those figures, please see the Technical
Report in www.sedar.com.
4.0

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION (Figure 1 & 2)

4.1

Location

The Property straddles the northern spur of Goldsmith Mountain, southeast of the confluence of Boyd Creek and the
Incommapleux (Fish) River. The lower portions of the property are covered with a dense forest of hemlock, spruce,
cedar, pine, and alder. The underbrush is mostly willow, alder and devil’s club. Thin overburden covers most of the
region below tree line, and significant areas above tree line.
The Property is part of the northern Badshot Range of the Selkirk Mountains, 20 km northeast of Camborne and 70 km
southeast of Revelstoke, British Columbia (NTS Map Sheet 93 K/13; 50o 52’ 30” N latitude, 117o 34’ 10” W longitude;
Fig.1).
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4.2

Property Description

The property forms a continuous block of 4 mineral claims totaling 1,285.524 hectares and is located in the Revelstoke
Mining Division of central British Columbia. The Big Showing, Mammoth and Scout are legacy claims, the Ruby Silver
is a cell claim. The Big Showing and Mammoth were staked on October, 2001, transferred to William Murray on January
9, 2002 and then transferred to Silver Phoenix on December 20, 2006. The Scout was staked by William Murray on
September 23, 2003, and then transferred to Silver Phoenix on December 20, 2006. The Ruby Silver was acquired on
February 27, 2006, by William Murray then transferred to Silver Phoenix on December 20, 2006.
4.3

Property Tenure

The claims, listed below, are all located on government (crown) land and are shown on Figure 2. The author has verified
all of the claims as shown on the government website. The property has not been legally surveyed.
Claim Name
Big Showing
Mammoth
Scout
Ruby Silver

Table 1: BIG SHOWING PROPERTY SUMMARY
Record No.
Units
Area
Expiry Date
(ha)
390111
20
500
Dec 5, 2009
390112
12
300
Dec 5, 2009
405424
8
200
Dec 5, 2009
529121
14
285.524
Dec 5, 2009

Mineral claims in British Columbia may be kept in good standing by applying assessment work on or before the
anniversary date. The date of a purchase and sale agreement is February 14, 2003. There are two vendors under this
agreement, William Murray and Leland Voll.
5.0

ACCESSIBILITY,
PHYSIOGRAPHY

5.1

Access

CLIMATE,

LOCAL

RESOURCES,

INFRASTRUCTURE

AND

The nearest towns that could provide logistical support are Nakusp, on the eastern shore of Upper Arrow Lake, and
Revelstoke, located on the Trans Canada Highway in the Columbia River Valley. Access from Nakusp is via 50 km of
paved road north and east to the settlement of Camborne at the mouth of the Incommapleux River, and from there 20
km up river. Seasonal logging road access was available until the fall of 2006 when it was blocked by a rock slide;
helicopter access from Nakusp or Revelstoke (approximately 30 min. one way) or jet boat from Camborne are
alternatives. A steep trail (now overgrown) switchbacks from river level 1100 m (3500 ft) up to a narrow ridge then
drops 150 m (500 ft) to the (main) BIG Showing.
The area is steep and extremely rugged, having 2133 m of vertical relief and mountain peaks reaching 2743 m. Steepfaced cirques, knife-edge ridges, and cliffs over 100m are common.
Persons working in the area will benefit from having had experience traversing steep terrain; fixed ropes are advisable in
some areas, and the assistance of an experienced alpinist is recommended (for safety and ease of accessibility) if
mineralized cliff-face exposures are to be evaluated.
Former camp and helicopter-landing locations (UTM 11, 458815E and 5635964N) are overgrown and inaccessible; the
trail leading from the Big Showing northwest, along contour, to the previously established camp area is similarly
overgrown and would require a significant effort to rehabilitate.
There are no appropriate camp areas near the Big Showing. Helicopter access requires toe-in landing procedures.
A helicopter accessible, camp site (July 24-27) is located in a depression on the ridge due west of the Big Showing (ref.
map in pocket, station no. 249; 2020m). The “peak 2179” showing and gossan showing are accessible from it; however
the Big Showing is not.
A fly camp was established July 24, 2007 and removed the morning of July 27th. Two days were spent in the vicinity of
the “peak 2179” showing (Figs. 5 and 6), evaluating rock types and structural styles, prospecting along-trend of the
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showing, and sampling the iron-rich marble succession. The third day was spent on the Big Showing where a 16m cross
section was chip sampled at the level of the Big Showing portal. The local geological setting of the showing was also
assessed.
The topography is less rugged south of the Big Showing near the Scout and Mammoth showings where author Turner
examined in 2005.
5.2

Climate and Physiography

The area is within the Interior Wet Belt where precipitation exceeds an average of 100 cm per year. Winters in the area
are usually severe and bring several metres of snow-pack. The highest average temperatures occur in July at 23o C, and
average lowest temperatures occur in January at –20o C (night).
Several post-glacial drainage features or depressions are now swamps and streams. Glaciation has carved rugged cirques
and tarns. Glacial Moraines dominate most of the cirques. Large and small Glaciers occur locally.
The field season lasts from early June to the latter part of October.
5.3

Local Resources and Infrastructure

Nakusp (pop. 3,000), is one of the administrative and logistical centres of the region and offers many basic services such
as food stores, fuel and lumber supplies. Helicopter services and small aircraft are also available. Nakusp is connected
to the south via highway 5 and to the north via highway 6. Revelstoke (pop. 9000) is the major town in the area. It is
serviced by road, and rail from Vancouver.
There are no apparent serious impediments to exploration in the form of surface rights alienation, but this would require
careful checking before any development work was contemplated. At present, electrical power is not available on the
property, but power lines are within 40 km. In the event of mining activities, there appear to be ample sites for
processing facilities, waste storage areas, and tailing ponds.
6.0

HISTORY

Discovery of the initial showing on this property was in the summer of 1906 by the Edward Ballie Syndicate of
Nelson B.C.
Production for the Mammoth in 1907 amounted to 76 tonnes of hand sorted “ore” that yielded 249 grams of
gold, 484 kilograms of silver, 23 tonnes of lead and 1.95 tonnes of zinc (MINFILE # 82KNW077). The
Consolidated Mining and Smelting Company (now Teck-Cominco) optioned the property in the summer of
1913 but little work was done before 1914.
Church and Jones (1999) describe the former Mammoth Mine:
“The mine consists of an adit driven 180 metres southeast and several side tunnels crosscutting the main ridge. Some tunnels broke through to
surface which now give views of the valleys of Boyd Creek to the east and the Incomappleux River to the northwest [Photo page 1-this report].
These workings develop a seam of galena, pyrite and argentiferous tetrahedrite, up to 25 centimetres thick, on an essentially horizontal rolling
fissure, dipping locally 5° to 10° northeast, in a fine grained, dark grey limestone bed that strikes 150°, and dips 80° northeast. These beds
are succeeded to the southwest by other units of the Index Formation (Lardeau Group), including a bed of pure white crystalline limestone and
west of that a thick band of green chlorite schist. The host rocks at the mine site are cut by a set of northeast striking vertical joints. Southeast
from the adit, along the ridge, there are several small quartz veins and a band of limestone that has been heavily replaced by pyrite (with minor
gold) and iron carbonates.”
In circa 1919 a tunnel was started on the Big Showing . The following description is taken from the Report of the
Minister of Mines for 1919:
“The vein outcrops on the west side of the creek and is somewhat similar in character to that of the Scout, except that the
sulphides are exposed on the surface, due to the action of erosion at this point keeping pace with that of oxidation. It conforms
to the stratification of the enclosing rocks and can be traced for many thousands of feet. The surface exposure at the outcrop is
rightly called a "big showing," the width of the mineralized ledge being about 50 feet which a considerable quantity of galena
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occurs as patches and disseminations in a quartz gangue. The Intervening bands of barren material are stained in places with oxide of
Iron. At this point the line of the surface cuts the vein at an angle which is not normal to the dip; hence the true width is not
represented and is about 20 feet.
Ore can be traced for some distance up the hill until the vein becomes covered. It is reported that ore has been found in a precipitous bluff near
the summit. A sample of the galena from the surface ran: Gold, trace; silver 1.6 oz.; lead, 23.5 per cent.; zinc, 1.5 per cent. A sample of the
iron-stained ledge-matter ran: Gold, trace; silver, trace; lead, nil; zlnc, 4 per cent.
At an elevation of about 5,000 feet and at a vertical distance of 300 feet below the surface showing a tunnel has been driven for 171 feet. The
first 66 feet of which follows a course of S 20 O E., and the next 105 feet due south. In driving this tunnel they did not allow for the dip of
the vein, and it is therefore in the foot-wall side. When this was recognized a crosscut was started at a point 126 feet from the portal and was
driven in a direction of N 80O E. for 42 feet; it was abandoned within about 20 feet of the vein. For prospecting purposes this tunnel-site is
well chosen, but for operating the property on a large scale a more favorable site might be obtainable at a lower altitude and in a more accessible
place.” Report MM 1919 page 142-143.
The advent of World War I halted exploration on the property. The ground became open in 1973 when the
Leask Syndicate staked it. Their claims lapsed in the fall of 1977 but were re-staked in the spring of 1978; the
claims lapsed on May 28 th, 1979. On May 29th, 1979, eighteen units were located using the modified grid
system. It is not known who did this staking. Detailed mapping and prospecting commenced in the first part
of June 1979 and continued until the end of July 1979. An additional 4 units comprising the Goldy group were
tied on to the existing claim group on July 21 , 1979.
In the early 1980’s, the Big Showing and the Scout were re-staked as the A to F group of six 2-post claims.
The property was held by P. F. Explorations Ltd. and subsequently optioned to Summer 90 Resources Ltd. in
1984, and re-optioned to New Campbell Island Mines Ltd. Work in the following years included geological
mapping and geochemical soil and rock sampling.
Subsequent work by H.A. Simmons (International) Ltd. and W.J. Olsson Associates Ltd. included geologic
mapping and geochemical soil and rock sampling (MINFILE report 82KNW077;July 24,1985, January 6,
2006).
Resource Estimates
The British Columbia Minfile detail report No. 82KNW078 dated July 24, 1985 by the BC Geological Survey, as updated
by G. Owsiack, P. Geo, reports a “historical estimate” of reserves of “217,620 tonnes at probable 754 grams per tonne
silver and possible 398,883 tonnes at 480 grams per tonne silver, both with associated values in gold, lead and zinc.”
The Minfile report states that it obtained its information from the 1987 annual report of New Campbell Island Mines
Limited. James Turner, one of the authors of this Technical Report on the Big Showing Property, could not locate the
1987 annual report of New Campbell Island Mines Limited.
The same Minfile report also disclosed at page 2 that there were “resources” of “217,620 tonnes at indicated 754 grams
per tonne silver and inferred 398,883 tonnes at 480 grams per tonne silver, both with associated values in gold, lead and
zinc.”
The authors of this Technical Report on the Big Showing Property view the two historical estimates as relevant as they
apparently relate to the Big Showing Property. On the other hand the authors view the two above referenced historical
estimates as unreliable for a number of reasons. First, it is apparent from the fact that the “reserve” numbers and the
“resource” number are identical that the Minfile should be reporting either “resources” or “reserves” but not both.
Second, as the 1987 annual report of New Campbell Island Mines Limited cannot be located, it cannot be determined
who created the historical estimates, it cannot be determined when the historical estimates were created and it cannot be
determined how such historical estimates were created. Accordingly, the two historical estimates must be treated as
unrealiable.
It is not known whether the above two historical estimates use categories other than ones set out in sections 1.2 and 1.3
of National Instrument 43-101.
The British Columbia Geologic Survey Branchs’ report of Major Silver Deposits of British Columbia (Open file 199810) (the “Major Silver Deposits Report”) written by, L.D. Jones (P.Geo.), D.V. Lefebure (P.Geo.), G. Owsaicki (P.Geo.),
and T.G. Schroeter (P.Eng.) has reported the Big Showing in Table 6, page 3,as having “resources” as: “Inferred 398,845
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tonnes of 173,497.575 kilograms of silver (435.000gm/t) and 195 kilograms of gold, and Indicated 217,599 tonnes of
148,837.716 kilograms of silver (684.000gm/t).” The authors of the Major Silver Deposits Report state that their source
of information was the 1987 annual report of New Campbell Island Mines Limited.
The authors of this Technical Report on the Big Showing Property view the historical estimate contained in the Major
Silver Deposits Report as relevant as it apparently relates to the Big Showing Property. On the other hand the authors
view the Major Silver Deposits Report historical estimate at unreliable for a number of reasons. First, although the
Major Silver Deposits Report refers to the same 1987 annual report for New Campbell Island Mines Limited referred to
in the above described Minfile Report, the reported historical estimate is inconsistent with both historical estimates
reported in the Minfile Report. Second, as the 1987 annual report of New Campbell Island Mines Limited cannot be
located, it cannot be determined who created the historical estimate, it cannot be determined when the historical
estimate was created and it cannot be determined how such historical estimate was created. Accordingly, the historical
estimate referred to in the Major Silver Deposits Report must be treated as unrealiable.
Readers of this Technical Report on the Big Showing Property are cautioned to note that it cannot be said that the
above three historical estimates were made in compliance with National Instrument 43-101. Further, it is apparent that
the historical estimates were made prior to February 1, 2001 and, therefore, do not qualify as either a “mineral resource”
estimate or a “mineral reserve” estimate under National Instrument 43-101.
In 2005 James A Turner conducted a property visit to the BIG SHOWING PROPERTY for the purpose of writing an
assessment report. The results of this report are in BC Assessment Report # 28321. A summary is presented
throughout this report.
In 2007 Dr, Robert I. Thompson mapped, prospected and sampled in and around the Big Showing. Seventeen chip
samples were collected at the portal level of the Big Showing. Analyses (35 element,ICP) are reported below and show
anomalous values in Pb and Zn.
7.0

GEOLOGICAL SETTING as summarized by Leask 1980

7.1

Regional Geological Setting (Figure 3)

The BIG SHOWING PROPERTY is hosted by the Lardeau Group, a black, grey and green weathering succession of
phyllite, quartzite, meta-volcanic rocks and carbonate rocks of Lower Paleozoic age (Read and Wheeler, 1979) that forms
part of a arcuate fold belt called the Kootenay Arc. The arc extends from Revelstoke, south and east along Trout and
Kootenay lakes before turning southwest to Salmo and into conterminous U.S..
The Lardeau Group is part of an Noeproterozoic-Paleozoic of regional significance. In ascending order, it consists of
the following major stratigraphic divisions:1) The Neoprotoerozoic Horsethief Creek Group of quartz-feldspar grit,
phyllite, schist and carbonate; 2) the Eocambrian Hamill Group dominated by quartzite and pelitic quartzite; 3) the
Lower Cambrian Mohican and Badshot formations consisting of micaceous carbonate and marble; 4) the Lower
Paleozoic Lardeau Group (ref. above); and 5) the Upper Paleozoic Milford and Kaslo groups dominated pelitic schist,
amphibolite, carbonaceous phyllite, and cherty quartzite
These stratigraphic units were deposited in a linear basin called the Lardeau Trough, situated outboard of the Cordilleran
miogeocline (Thompson and others, 2005). This basin was subsequently deformed and metamorphosed early in the
Jurassic, and intruded by plutons of dioritie to granite composition during the Jurassic and Cretaceous as part of
Cordilleran orogenic events.
7.2

Property Geology (Figure 4; after Leask,1980)*

The Property geology is dominated by the following 7 map units (Leask, 1980) shown on figure 4a: 1) unit1A: green
weathering quartz-grit phyllite; 2) unit 1B; gray-green and light green weathering phyllitic siltstone; 3) unit 2A: lead-zinc
bearing silicified carbonate; 4) unit 2B: iron- and manganese-rich containing massive magnetite,hematite, galena and
sphalerite; 5) unit 3A: gray sugary limestone; 6) unit 3B: gray graphitic limestone with thinly interbedded dark graphitic
phyllite; 7) unit 4: dark green phyllite and greenstone.
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These map units trace a series of tight upright folds having subhorizontal, north-northwest trending hinges and
subvertical axial planes. Parasitic fold hinges on the limbs of map scale folds, have the potential to contain
thickened sulphide layers.
8.0

DEPOSIT TYPES (after Thompson, 2007)

8.1

Relationship between Mineralization, Iron-rich Carbonate, and Structure:

“The concentration of base- and precious-metals in this region was a two-part process:
1) deposition of metal-rich layers in an iron-rich carbonate succession that accumulated on the sea floor, perhaps in
a restricted basin proximal to active faults; and
2) mobilization and selective concentration of metal-rich layers during folding and metamorphism.
These two events were separated by a significant period of time: deposition of the metal-rich rocks occurred in the
Paleozoic Period, some time between 540Ma and 360 Ma; folding and metamorphism much later, approximately 180
million ago.
The Big Showing, the “peak 2179” showing, and the newly discovered “gossan showing” are hosted by a rustyweathering iron-rich marble succession. Constituent rock types are described in the map legend (Fig. 6). The distribution
of iron-rich carbonate is regional, extending well beyond property limits, and supports the notion of regional
stratigraphic control on the distribution of rocks having potential for sulphide concentrations.
Tight, upright folds visible in cliff-face exposures adjacent to the “peak 2179” showing, illustrate the dominant structural
pattern. In this style of folding, rock material is redistributed: fold limbs are thinned as material flows along them and
into the fold hinge-zone where excess rock accumulates in a complex “crumple” of faulted, smaller scale folds.
Figure 7: Rusty-orange weathering marble typical of rock units hosting Sulphide mineralization. Here, contorted layers of
marble, and siliceous pelitic marble illustrate the structural complexity observed at the outcrop scale.
Figure 8: View to the north northeast (ref. Fig. 5) showing the detailed distribution of rock units within the zone of
economic interest on the Big Showing property. The long, narrow limbs of two major anticlines (see fold axes),
separated by a narrow synclinal keel, illustrate thickening in fold hinges as a product of material flow along fold limbs.
“Pinch and swell” structures occur in the thin layer of marble bounded by more competent green phyllite. This
exposure is along strike and approximately 500m south of the Big Showing and provides an explanation for the
lenticular shape of the showing.
The ideal setting from an exploration viewpoint is a fold hinge where thin, sulphide-rich layers are structurally thickened.
This may apply to the “peak 2179” showing where it extends down-dip toward an inferred synclinal hinge zone.
9.0

MINERALIZATION AND ALTERATION

Three main areas of mineralization occur on the property:
1. The Big Showing formerly the Ruby Silver Showing.
2. The Scout Showing
3. The Mammoth Showing
The Big Showing: According to Leask (1980) the Big Showing (Figure 9, 10) consists of a lower zone 15-25 feet
thick at 4600-4700 feet elevation, and an upper zone 10-40 feet thick at 4800-4950 feet.elevation. In both zones,
galena and sphalerite occur as patches and disseminations. He interpreted these zones to be in the hinge of a
parasitic fold.
Thompson (2007) observed sphalerite and galena as crystal aggregates, patches and disseminations within a succession of
iron-rich carbonate rocks adjacent to green, variegated phyllite. The lower zone of mineralization is a steep east-dipping
layer approximately 2 m thick, although disseminated sulphides are present across a width of approximately 17 m. He
did not examine the upper zone.
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The Scout Showing (Figure 11): The showings occur at 5800-6000 feet (1768-1829 m) and consist of galena,
sphalerite, and pyrite, which occur within the silicified carbonates of a fold hinge as patches and disseminations.
Massive galena shoots, up to 5 feet wide and 25 feet long, were observed in the Scout 76 m long drift. Assays
reported from the Scout Showing run as high as 55.5% lead, 58..4 oz/ton silver and 0.1 oz/ton gold (Newton
Emmons, 1914). A sample reported in Leask (1980), ran 19.6% lead, 14.1 oz/ton silver and 0.092 oz/ton gold.
The Scout showing was observed and sampled by Turner in August 2005
The Mammoth Showing consists of several occurrrences of galena, sphalerite, tetrahedrite, and argentite in
subhorizontal cross fractures within a carbonate host unit within 33 metres of the Scout Fault. The showings are
located at elevations of 2256 to 2438 m. Turner observed the Mammoth Showings and old workings from the air
(see title page photo) but no ground-based observations were made. This description is based on Minister of
Mines reports (see references).
10.0

EXPLORATION

10.1

Exploration (2005)

In the spring of 2005 Bill Murray and a helper conducted 5 days of work on the property:
Work Performed: prospecting
Start: June 3 /2005
End: August 25/2005
“A] Spent one day working on the Southeast side.
The terrene is very steep, were able to travel a long way on the 4 wheeler as there is a logging road that cuts through the corner of the property.
The bush is very heavy going from the road to the property and then gets very steep. Spent most of the day in the trees, did not find anything of
interest.
B] Spent one day working on the Northeast end of property.
Not as steep in this area but did not find anything of interest other than an old claim post just off the road.
C] Spent the day on the Northwest end of the property west of the creek. Terrene [sic] is very steep in this area and the only way to prospect it
would be to come down from the top with a safety rope. Found lots of float.
D] Spent one day working on the North end of property.
Found some small veins in a couple spots on the east side of the creek about 300 meters from the road and 130 to 150 meters above the creek,
and flagged the location. Took some samples but did not have them assayed. It was very steep going and we had to use a rope to get back down.
E] Spent one day on the west side at north end of the property. There is an old trail on this side of the property that goes all the way to the top.
We did not make it all the way to the top as we did not have enough time. Got just below what looked like an old helicopter landing. The
trail is very steep and takes just about as long to go down as it does to go up. The terrene is too steep here to put in a 4 wheeler trail. We
found some float that someone earlier had flagged, did not take any samples.
In August, 2005, James A. Turner, PGeo, Bill Murray and two prospectors examined the Mammoth and Scout
Showings.
10.2

Exploration 2006

In 2006 Turner an analysis of linear features observed on a Spot-5 Satellite image of the area.
Characteristics and Uses of Satellite Data
This study consisted of three parts:
Part 1 involved making detailed maps of the area based on Satellite imagery. Data were orthocorrected,filtered and enhanced to create a useable image with a resolution of 2.5 metres.
These images were then used to generate maps of the area.
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Part 2 focused on identifying linear features and transfering them into AutoCad drawings.
Part 3 focused on identifying linear features that may represent faults and fractures in bedrock,
predicated on the notion thatprecous and base matals may be associated with structures of this
type.
Image Description
The Satellite scene was Geocoded, using a first order algorithim. The data was also levelled to show a
spectral resolution of 0-255 greyscale. The resulting image was then filtered and enhanced and used
as a base to make maps of the area.
Terms Used to Describe Linear Features
Linear features are,,typically, geomorphic, topographic or bedrock in origin. These features can be
enhanced or suppressed using a variety of filters. Definitions used in this section are summarised
below.
A linear feature expresses line-like characteristics of surface features or roughness without structural
implications.
A curvilinear feature expresses full or partial circular features on an image without inferring
structure.
A lineament is one or more mappable features forming a linear or curvilinear pattern that is
distinctive, through-going, and typically related to one or more fault(s) and/or fracture(s) in bedrock
(the crust).
A linear intersection is the point where two or more linears or lineaments intersect.
In the analysis by Turner, north-south and east-west linear features are “N-S” and “E-W” respectively; the remainder
are labelled using their north-hemisphere orientation.
10.3

Exploration 2007

In 2007 Discovery Consultants of Vernon BC contracted R. I. Thompson to conduct mapping and sampling of the Big
Showing area, hence he is listed as a co-author.
11.0

SAMPLING METHOD AND APPROACH

All geochemical sampling, of the BIG SHOWING PROPERTY, (i.e. soil, rock and trench) was conducted by wellrespected and competent geologists and geological engineers (see list of references). Details of sampling methods are
found in the assessment reports describing each of the projects. Sample sites were tagged in the field. Sample intervals
were normally 5-20 metres apart. Previous grids were not found, most are over-grown. Turner is of the opinion that the
sampling methods used were adequate considering the nature of the project and industry standards at the time.
A geological reconnaissance mapping and prospecting program was conducted by Thompson on portions of the Big
Showing, from July 24 to July 27, 2007. Twenty-nine field stations were examined and described; of these, seventeen
rock chip samples and grab samples were taken and sent for analysis.
Prospecting and collecting rock samples involved climbing steep slopes and following sharp ridges. The lower zone Big
Showing was accessed by a helicopter toe-in landing.; however, the lack of landing sites, impenetrable underbrush and
time limitations made reaching the upper zone unfeasible. Safe and timely access to the upper zone would involve
personnel with alpine mountain climbing experience and the use of ropes.
Samples collected by Thompson (2007) were sent to Acme Analytical Laboratories in Vancouver. Site locations and
descriptions are shown on Figures 10 and 11.
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Previously reported analytical results for grab samples represent the best mineralized material present. The chip samples
(Thompson, 2007) represent the average rock composition across each sample interval (ref. Table 3).
12.0

SAMPLE PREPARATION, ANALYSES AND SECURITY

All trench and rock samples taken by James A. Turner were placed in plastic bags and closed with ties. Acme Analytical
Laboratories Inc. completed the analysis. The geochemical results were transmitted to the writer via e-mail. Samples
were delivered via the writer directly to the Lab.
The rock samples were prepared by air-drying, then crushing to 10-mesh (<2 mm); a 250 g portion was pulverized to
200-mesh (<75 microns). The sample pulps are in a locked facility for long-term storage under the auspices of Acme
Analhytical Laboratories..
At Acme Analytical Laboratories, the samples were analyzed for 32 elements using two methods. Gold content was
determined to the 0.2 ppb level using the Acme Group 3A wet digestion method. A 10 g sample was digested in Aqua
Regia, and analyzed by Graphite Furnace Atomic Absorption Spectroscopy or Inductively Coupled Plasma Mass
Spectroscopy (ICP-MS). The Acme Group 1 D multi-element method was used on a minimum 1 g pulp to determine
other elements and gold to the ppm level. In this method, the samples were digested in hot Aqua Regia and analyzed by
Inductively Coupled Plasma Atomic 'Emission Spectroscopy (ICP-AES).
13.0

DATA VERIFICATION

No sample data verification other than those provided by TSL (blanks, standards, duplicates) was included in the 2005
program.
Table 2: Samples collected by James A. Turner, P.Geo. Figure 2a 2004 assessment report
Acme file # A505047 Received: AUG 30 2005 * 5 samples in this disk file.
Analysis: GROUP 7AR - 1.000 GM SAMPLE, AQUA - REGIA (HCL-HNO3-H2O) DIGESTION TO 100 ML, ANALYSED BY ICP-ES.
AU** BY FIRE ASSAY FROM 1 A.T. SAMPLE.
ELEMENT Northings

Eastings

Elevation Description

SAMPLES

Cu

Pb

Zn

Ag

Au**

%

%

%

gm/mt

gm/mt

19771

5634092

459575

2077

-grab from 10 cm minor Gn, sph

0.002

0.33

0.59

16

0.01

19772

5634058

459652

2050

-adit area, rusty and sil. limestone

0.085

5.32

13.23

396

0.27

0.01

2.92

1.08

181

0.07

0.191

0.17

34.55

58

0.21

0.089

0.39

12.42

96

0.03

0.553

1.46

4.26

158

5.76

splotch of galena and sphalerite
19773

5633983

459654

2050

-adit area, rusty and sil. limestone
minor galena

19774

5633993

459522

2050

-grab near adit, rusty mesh textured
minor gn, cpy and smithsonite
and light brown sphalerite

19775

5634032

459601

2050

-1 m chip from inside adit
light coloured sphalerite

STANDARD R-2a/OxL34

These samples were taken in the area thought to be at or along strike from the SCOUT showing. An adit was found: it
was approx. 2m square at the opening and drifted down at an angle of 25-30o into the hill. It appeared to be 3-5 m deep.
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Some offset drifting was done, presumably to follow the structure. Galena, sphalerite and some chalcopyrite
mineralization appears to be stratabound in nature.. It is not known if any production came from this adit.
The writer is familiar with the geochemical database and has verified locations of anomalies reported in the data with
values as reported in the original assessment reports. Much of the sampling was done prior to implementation of
National Instrument 43-101 quality control measures and data verification procedures applied at that time may have
varied from those now required under the Instrument. However, the analytical procedures and industry standards
used at the time are considered adequate.
Turner has not verified any conclusion formed from the linear interpretation.
The Big Showing was systematically chip sampled on both sides of the portal. Table 3 highlights the lead-zinc-silvergold-copper values of the chip sampling across the lower zone of the Big Showing. Geology and rock geochemical
values at the lower zone of the Big Showing are shown in Figures 20 and 21.
Table 3: Geochemical values at the Big Showing (lower zone)
Sample

Chip sample
interval
(metres)

Pb

Zn

Ag

Au

Cu

(ppm)

(ppm)

(ppm)

(ppb)

(ppm)

07TW-287

2.0

68

28

<0.1

0.6

55

07TW-288

1.0

1,870

4,203

0.5

2.0

310

07TW-289

0.5

8,393

2,985

1.7

0.6

70

07TW-290

1.0

2,013

759

0.6

1.3

868

07TW-291

0.5

2,170

1,053

1.2

2.7

851

07TW-292

0.5

1,850

2,004

1.5

8.4

1,578

07TW-293

1.0

>10,000

1,109

2.9

1.1

276

07TW-294

1.0

1,359

377

1.0

2.5

510

07TW-295

1.0

346

216

0.1

<0.5

61
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The Waverley Tangier Property
The following technical information has been extracted from the technical report entitled “Technical Report on the
Waverly –Tangier Property” and is dated December 6, 2005, revised February 2007, December 2007, February 6 & 25,
2008, April 8, 2008 and November 14, 2008 (the “Waverly Tangier Technical Report”) prepared by Qualified Person
James A. Turner. A copy of this Technical Report can be found in the Company’s disclosure page on www.sedar.com.
The following extract makes references to various figures. In order to view those figures, please see the Technical
Report in www.sedar.com.
4.0

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION

4.1

Property Location Figure 1

The WAVERLEY Property is situated at the head of the North Fork of Downie Creek, about 1 ½ miles below the
summit flats separating that creek from the North Fork of the Illecillewaet River.
Although the property is tributary to Downie Creek, which flows into the Columbia River 46 miles above Revelstoke,
the present route is by an old wagon-road about 28 miles in length [estimated], following the North fork of the
Illecillewaet river from Albert Canyon, on the main line of the Canadian Pacific Railway 21 miles east of Revelstoke.
The claims cover the Tangier River Valley to the southeast and the upper waters of Sorcerer Creek to the northwest.
The coordinates of the claims are 51o 27’ 04” N latitude and 117o 58’ 05” W longitude and are located on NTS Map
Sheet 82 N/5W BC.
This map is presented on the UTM projection in grid zone 10. The horizontal datum is NAD 83 and the vertical datum
is NGVD 1983.
4.2

Property Description Figure 2

The property forms a continuous block of 25 un-patented claims totaling 4446.196 hectares and is located in the
Revelstoke Mining Division of central British Columbia.
The claims were re-staked in 2006 and filed under the name of Silver Phoenix Resources Inc. The claims are contiguous.
The claims, listed below, are all located on government (crown) land and are shown on Figure 2.
The author has verified the “cell” claims were acquired by using the modified grid system map staking of BC. Three
claims the Waverley, Tangier and George 1 were acquired by ground staking. The author can verify the position of the
cell claims as shown in Figure 2 and 4 of this report. The author can pass no judgment on the location of the Legacy
Claims, however they have been tied into the Modified Grid System.
The property has not been legally surveyed.
Table 1: WAVERLEY Property Summary
Tenure
Number

Claim Name

Map
Number

Good To
Date

Status

Area

Tag Number

388305

WAVERLEY

082N041

2009/dec/05

GOOD

300.0

210654

388306

TANGIER

082N041

2009/dec/05

GOOD

300.0

210655

392044

GEORGE 1

082N031

2009/dec/05

GOOD

500.0

210658

531408

FALLS

082N

2009/dec/05

GOOD

120.828

547640

GEORGE 5

082N

2009/dec/05

GOOD

342.807

547641

ROAD

082M

2009/dec/05

GOOD

160.994

547644

GEORGE 5

082N

2009/dec/05

GOOD

40.338

547646

GEORGE 6

082N

2009/dec/05

GOOD

504.887
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Tenure
Number

Map
Number

Good To
Date

Status

Area

547739

Claim Name
TANGIER
PASS

082N

2009/dec/05

GOOD

262.016

547740

TANGIER2

082N

2009/dec/05

GOOD

282.068

547741

GEORGE 8
SORCERER
1

082N

2009/dec/05

GOOD

302.623

082M

2009/dec/05

GOOD

181.015

082N

2009/dec/05

GOOD

161.491

547747

GEORGE 9
SORCERER
4

082M

2009/dec/05

GOOD

201.297

547748

TANGIER 3

082N

2009/dec/05

GOOD

20.145

547749

082N

2009/dec/05

GOOD

20.18

547750

GEORGE 5
SORCERER
3

082M

2009/dec/05

GOOD

160.972

547786

GEORGE 2

082N

2009/dec/05

GOOD

201.843

547787

GEORGE3

082N

2009/dec/05

GOOD

40.363

547788

SORCERER

082M

2009/dec/05

GOOD

20.134

547790

SORCER

082N

2009/dec/05

GOOD

20.136

547799

TANGIER 2

082N

2009/dec/05

GOOD

40.292

547821

SORCER

082N

2009/dec/05

GOOD

40.268

547824

SORCER 3

082N

2009/dec/05

GOOD

181.207

548966

TANGIER 2

082N

2009/dec/05

GOOD

40.292

TOTAL

4446.196

547742
547745

Tag Number

Mineral claims in British Columbia may be kept in good standing by applying assessment work, on the anniversary date.
The WAVERLEY Property requires assessment at the higher level.
To keep the existing WAVERLEY Property in good standing, the annual assessment work or cash-in-lieu obligations
total about $21,000 for the assessment work.
A property may have more than 1 year applied.
4.3

Tenure

Silver Phoenix Resources Inc. has title to 100 % of the Waverley Property.
4.4

Environmental Liabilities

There appear to be no significant environmental issues related to the project. Previous disturbance of the area from
road construction and mining has apparently been properly reclaimed in accordance with regulations in effect at that
time. Some clean–up of previous workings may be required.
4.5

Status of Required Permits

An annual Mineral & Coal Notice of Work and Reclamation Program permit has to be filed with the Ministry of Energy
and Mines for British Columbia. This permit allows the user to conduct road building, drilling, trenching and timber
cutting. Any use of water is also included. The permit forms consist of 11 schedules. A reclamation bond will also be
required. The author does not know if any permits have been applied for.
5.0

ACCESSIBILITY,
PHYSIOGRAPHY

5.1

Access

CLIMATE,

LOCAL

RESOURCES,

INFRASTRUCTURE

AND

Access is to the property in August 2005 was by Helicopter from Revelstoke a distance of 50 km. The owner has
constructed a one-lane road to just north of the property. Logging companies are in the process of upgrading this road.
Logging road access has been achieved.
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5.2

Climate and Physiography

The lower portions of the property are covered with a dense forest of fir, spruce, cedar, pine, and alder. The underbrush
is mostly willow, alder and devil’s club. Very few outcrops occur in the area, which is covered by thick layers (up to 200
m) of drift and glacial till. Thin overburden occurs on the higher elevations and above tree line of the claims.
The topography of the Waverley Workings is fairly steep, consisting of ridges trending roughly northwest, generally
parallel to the drainage pattern. Relief is of the order of 1500 m vertically with the highest mountains approaching 2500
m. Steep faced cirques, knife-edge ridges, and cliffs over 90 m are common above 2000 m. The Tangier Workings are at
a lower elevation, below treeline near the saddle of two valleys.
Several post-glacial drainage features or depressions are now swamps and streams. Glaciation has carved rugged cirques
and tarns. Glacial Moraines dominate most of the cirques. Large and small Glaciers occur locally.
The area is within the Interior Wet Belt where precipitation exceeds an average of 40 inches per year. Winters, in the
area are usually severe and bring several feet of snow-pack. The highest average temperatures occur in July at 23o C and
average lowest temperatures occur in January at –30o C (night).
The field season lasts from early June to the latter part of October.
5.3

Local Resources and Infrastructure

Revelstoke (pop. 9,000), is one of the administrative and logistical centres of the region and offers many basic services
such as food stores, fuel and lumber supplies. Helicopter services and small aircraft are also available. Revelstoke is
serviced by road (Trans-Canada Highway), and rail from Vancouver.
There are no apparent serious impediments to exploration in the form of surface rights alienation, but this would require
careful checking before any development work was contemplated. At present, electrical power is not available on the
property, but power lines are within 40 km. In the event of mining activities, there appear to be ample sites for
processing facilities, waste storage areas, or tailing ponds.
Timber, water, sand and gravel are available on or near the property. Heavy-duty equipment is available in Revelstoke.
A suitable camp can be built on the property.
6.0

HISTORY

The old underground workings, which are quite extensive, date back to 1897 and 1898, when the property was being
operated by the Gold Fields of British Columbia, an English company. The mines were closed down in 1890 and were
idle until 1918, when a new company took them over. Since then a small crew, varying from two to six men has been
engaged on development during the summer months, putting in all occasional winter. Work done from 1918 to 1921
includes some 200 feet of tunneling.
The property comprises two separate showings, the Waverley Workings and Tangier Workings of which the
former is the most important.
Waverley Workings Figure 3-11
In 1886, the Waverley Property is mentioned in the Ministry of Mines reports, some development of the surface
exposures of the Tangier and Waverley veins started at that time by the Gold Fields of B. C. Limited.
In 1898, a great amount of work was done on the Waverley and Tangier mines, a property belonging to Gold Fields of
B.C. Limited.
In 1918, after lying idle since 1899 the new management, composed of Seattle and Spokane men, planned excessive
development. Trucks were used to take ore to Albert Canyon located on Highway #1 thirty km east of Revelstoke.
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In 1919, G.H. Walters of Spokane, T. Graham and O. Sandberg of Albert Canyon acquired the property. There was a
possibility of opening up a considerable body of low-grade silver-lead ore….
In 1920, G. H, Walters had the old tunnels cleaned out in preparation for further mining and development work.
Between 1918 and 1921, 200 feet of tunneling was dug by a crew of between2 and six men.
In October 1987, a short exploration program was conducted by: Mandalla Resources Ltd. under the direction of INGA
Engineering & Consulting Ltd. The work comprised of grid layout and geologic mapping. INGA’s recommendations
for the Waverley are as follows:
“Due to the ruggedness of the terrain and resulting physical limitations four drill holes…” [could be drilled: at 45o, 020 &
060 azimuth, two from tunnel #1 and two from tunnel #2].
Tangier Workings: Figures 11 and 12
In 1923, Orville Young supervised road construction at the Waverley mine. The road from Albert Canyon was improved
after the Flat Creek: route was abandoned. The old workings were cleared and timbered (for complete observation). A
small crew stayed through the winter.
IN 1924, Orville Young directed a small crew on the Waverley Property.
In 1925, a small crew de-watered the winze from the 100-foot level of the Tangier exposing a nice showing of silver-lead
ore.
In 1929, active exploration of the Waverley and Tangier veins exposed replacement mineralization, which continued on
strike toward southeast.
In 1951, an effort was made to reopen the old property at the head of Tangier Creek and off the north fork of Downie
Creek. Six miles of road was re-habilitated before forest fires on Tangier creek shut down operations.
In October 1987, a short exploration program, conducted by Mandalla, comprised of grid layout and geological
mapping. INGA’S recommendations for the Tangier are as follows:
“Six [short] drill holes are recommended for the “Tangier Zone” [Tangier Workings] at this time.
These holes cover known, near surface, exposures of replacement mineralization and check the depth
potential of these zones. ”, [ Drill holes could be located the shaft and drilled at 45 o and 60 o at
020 o , 040 o and 060 o azimuth].
6.1

Early Development (1899-1987) and Exploration – compiled from Minister of Mines Annual Reports 18961968 by W. Murray

“The underground workings, which in the aggregate, will amount to about 3,000 lineal feet, mostly crosscut and develop
one big ore-shoot. In the case of this shoot, which lies on the footwall side of the vein, replacement of the limestone
walls has occurred on an extensive scale.
The examination was necessarily confined to the surface showings, No.1 and No. 2 tunnels, as the workings below No.2
tunnel were inaccessible owing to a cave near the portal of No. 3 tunnel and the bad condition of the timbers in the
winze below No. 2 tunnel (the lower workings have since been made accessible). Practically all the development was
done on the Waverley and Montague claims, principally on the former.
Commencing at the surface and preceding downwards, the workings are briefly as follows: On the Montague claim, at an
elevation of about 6,200 feet, a short crosscut. Encountered the vein at a distance of 20 feet and a winze was sunk 17
feet on carbonates containing streaks of galena. A sample across 4 feet near the bottom of the winze gave: Gold, 0.04
oz.; silver, 8 oz.; lead, 11 per cent. About 350 feet south-easterly along the outcrop a sample across 18 inches in a
shallow cut gave: Gold, 0.02 oz.; silver, 14.4 oz.; lead, 14.9 per cent.
On the Waverley claim, about 750 feet south-easterly from the above crosscut and at about the same elevation, No. 1
tunnel was driven 90 feet on the vein just below its apex. In this tunnel the width of the vein varies from 14 Inches to 2
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feet. Near the portal of the tunnel a winze was sunk on the vein to a depth of 45 feet, the lower portion of which was
caved and inaccessible. A sample across 2 feet at the top of the winze gave: Gold, 0.06 oz.; silver, 39.02 oz.; lead, 17 per
cent,
About 300 feet south-easterly from and 84 feet vertically-below No. 1 tunnel, No.2 tunnel is a crosscut 330 feet in
length. At 85 feet in from the portal, the footwall of the ore-body was reached and drifted on for 85 feet northwesterly
and 50 feet southeasterly. The 85-foot drift breaks through to the surface. Above the intersection of the crosscut and the
two drifts a small stope was started. A sample across a width of 10 feet in the stope gave: Gold, 0.24 oz.; silver, 77.2 oz.;
lead, 18 per cent.
The crosscut, passing through the ore-body, was then continued 245 feet farther. As the ore passes by insensible
gradations into barren limestone, the width of what may constitute “ore" can only be determined by extensive sampling,
having In view the grade of material which can he economically milled. The total width of the mineralized zone cut by
the main tunnel is approximately 66 feet, including a horse of barren limestone of undetermined width, but which for
sampling purposes was assumed to be 16 feet wide. The mineralization is strongest on the footwall side of the zone, as
shown by the above-mentioned sample taken in the stope.
Samples along the crosscut gave as follows: Across 34 feet, including the good ore on the footwall side: Gold, 0.02 oz.;
silver, 16 02: lead, 2.5 per cent. The 16-foot limestone horse was then omitted and a sample across 16 feet on the
hanging-wall side of the zone gave: trace gold, silver, 2.4 oz, lead, 0.2 per cent. Little importance can be attached to
these results, however, mill tests being required to give reliable information on the values to be expected.
The hanging-wall of the ore-zone, which is marked by a seam of calcite, was drifted on southeasterly for a distance of
about 70 feet. The hanging wall seam was not drifted on in the opposite direction, but a little farther along the crosscut a
semicircular tunnel driven north- westerly is in country-rock for the most part, but breaks into the hanging-wall of the
ore zone near the face. As a short crosscut tunnel had been run off the drift at this point, it was possible to get a sample
across a 16-foot section, which gave: Gold, trace; silver, 2.8 oz.; lead, 1 per cent.
Further, along the main crosscut another tunnel, driven 60 feet northwesterly along a seam of calcite, is in country-rock.
Several short tunnels and a 26-foot raise off the main crosscut in the ore-zone showing strong mineralization, a grab
sample from several hundred tons of material stored in these places giving: Gold, 0.14 oz.; silver, 36.8 oz; lead, 15.5 per
cent. On the first south-easterly drift above mentioned, which follows the foot-wall of the ore-body, a winze was sunk
110 feet, at which point an offset was made to connect with a raise 260 feet up from No. 3 tunnel.
The vertical depth between No.2 and No. 3 tunnels is 350 feet, and three intermediate levels have been turned off from
the big winze and raise, named the 150 foot, 250 foot, and 350 foot levels, which means that they are respectively that
distance vertically below No. 1 tunnel. As for reasons stated above, all the workings below No.2 tunnel were
inaccessible, the information relating to them has been taken from the old company’s maps and records, which show
that the ore body was encountered and developed on all three intermediate levels, with good results as to width, length,
and values.
No. 3 tunnel, 450 feet vertically below No.1 tunnel, is a crosscut about 635 feet long which apparently was discontinued
a short distance from the expected intersection with the vein.”
6.2

Production

The GSC in 1928 reported, “that 15 tons of sulphide “ore”, shipped to Wales in the early days, contained 1.5 ounces
gold, 130 ounces silver, and 25 per cent lead per ton.”
7.0

GEOLOGICAL SETTING as summarized by Barovic and Gibson et al.

7.1

Local Regional Geological Setting Figure 13

“Rocks in the Sorcerer-Tangier Creeks area fall on the eastern flank of the Selkirk fan structure and near the northern
extent of the Selkirk allochthon. The northern Selkirk Mountains are underlain by a sequence of miogeoclinal
metasediments and metavolcanics that accumulated along the western margin of ancestral North America.
These rocks have been assigned into five lithologic units: the Neoproterozoic Horsethief Creek Group, the Precambrian
Hamill Group, the Lower Cambrian Badshot Formation and the lower Paleozoic Lardeau Group.
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These regional units are described below.
Horsethief Creek Group (Neoproterozoic: uPrHsc)
The Horsethief Creek Group comprises dark grey, green and tan calcareous phyllite and schist, intercalated with variable
amounts of micatious quartzite and grit. Light and dark grey marble horizons are present throughout the section.
Volcanic rocks consisting of chloritic schist are found locally.
Hamill Group (Lower Cambrian: uPrCmH)
The Hamill group comprises a thick sequence of quartzitic rocks beneath the Badshot Formation. The Goldstream
River area, northwest of the Waverley Project, comprises a large volume of volcanic rock. The volcanics are composed
of equal portions of massive and amygdaloidal chloritic greenstones. Volcanic conglomerate, grit, quartzite and lapilli
tuff horizons are intercalated with the greenstone.
Badshot Formation (Lower Cambrian: ICmB)
The Badshot Formation comprises mainly of grey, thick bedded to massive micritic limestone. Lenses of marble are
observed within the limestone and commonly contain black argillaceous material. Algal pellets and Archeocyathids have
been found in several locations by James T. Files (1964).
Lardeau Group-Index Formation (lower Paleozoic: CmDLI)
The Lardeau Group overlies the Badshot limestone and includes a great thickness of sedimentary and volcanic rocks.
This sequence is un-fossiliferous and highly deformed. Greenstone, thinly layered calcarious green phyllite and minor
micatious quartzite make up the Index Formation.
Selkirk Stocks (Cretaceous: MJSgd)
The Fang Stock intrudes the Lardeau Group just southwest of the George claims. The stock is a monzonite to
granodiorite.
During the Late Jurassic and Paleocene the northern Selkirk Mountains was displaced eastwards by 200 to 300
kilometers resulting in the complex pattern of superposed folding and faulting of the northwest-trending Selkirk fan
structure. The eastern flank of the fan structure is characterized by a northeast-verging imbricate thrust system that is
part of the Rocky Mountain thrust belt. In contrast, the western flank of the fan structure is dominated by southwestverging fold-nappes and thrust faults. Rocks along the western flank range from a pervasive greenschist facies to
amphibolite facies towards the core of the Selkirk Fan.
A Middle Jurassic suite of granodiorite and quartz monzonite was followed by a Mid Cretaceous suite of quartz
monzonite, diorite and granite.”
7.2

Project Geology Figure 14

Underlying the Waverley Property is a series of north to northwest striking metamorphosed Precambrian sediments,
which dip to the east. Extrusive greenstones are interbedded with the sediments at certain horizons and intrusive rocks
of similar appearance are rather sparingly developed. All these rocks are complexly folded in a series of essentially
isoclinal anticlines and synclines. The sediments include crystalline limestones, quartzites, mica schists, slates, phyllites,
argillites, and chlorite schists, and are cut by numerous stocks, dykes, and sills of granitic rocks of Mesozoic age. The
latter include granite, granodiorite, quartz diorite, granite pegmatite, aplite, and a few fine-grained lamprophyre dykes.
Ortho and paragneisses are abundantly developed in the southwestern corner of the map area. (Barovic 1987).
Waverley Workings
All of the Waverley Workings are in a band of light grey, crystalline limestone with fine-grained, argillaceous, and
carbonaceous limestones intercalated, the whole calcareous member being about 2,500 feet thick. Below, or west of the
marble, are argillaceous to carbonaceous grey or black schists and phyllites and above, or east of it, green or
grey phyllites appear as intercalations in the limestone before the latter gives way to grey or brown quartzites with
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interbedded green and light grey phyllites. All the rocks dip steeply to the northeast and strike northwest, they are
rather complexly contorted by minor folds.
The WAVERLEY workings were not examined by the writer. However, examination by Barovic in 1987
noted that:
“The Waverley veins are confined to a zone of dark grey or black, fine-grained limestone within the main light
grey, coarsely crystalline band and this zone is more complexly folded and twisted than the surrounding rocks.
Within the zone are intercalations of the normal light grey marble.”
Tangier Workings
On the Tangier workings a band of white to grey marble at least 120 feet wide strikes north 30 degrees to 5 degrees west
and dips very steeply to the east. In the west, the marble is in contact by a considerable thickness of pyritic black,
carbonaceous schist. The workings are on the edge of Sorcerer Creek.
The vein has been drifted on for 220 feet to the southeast. It consists of calcite and some quartz and a fine-grained
mixture of pyrite, jamesonite, galena, sphalerite, and, at several places, small amounts of grey copper. The mineral
identified as jamesonite (lead-sulphur-antimonide) is quite abundantly but finely intergrown with the sphalerite and must
contribute a large percentage of the lead in the ores. The vein is in the marble at or near the schist contact and occurs
generally between two well -defined fault walls.
Occasionally replacement of limestone by vein matter has
enlarged the vein beyond the walls. Some mineralization was noted in the schists to the west of the vein proper. The
width of the vein varies from 5 feet to a little more, and averages about 2 feet.
7.3

Structure

Rocks in the Selkirk allochthon have undergone at least three stages of deformation. Phase 1 is related to the larger
Selkirk fan structure that may have inverted much of the stratigraphy of the Goldstream slice of the allochthon. Large,
tight isoclinal to recumbent folds with strong axial planar foliation along northwest fold axes define Phase 2 folding. A
third phase of deformation is characterized by kink folds, crenulation cleavages and broad, upright, open folds (Raven,
1997, p. 10).
On the Waverley Property the average strike is northwest and the dip steep (60o to 90o) to the northeast. Minor folding
of a complex: nature is abundant and shear zones and fissures are common. In the crystalline limestone on the Waverley
Workings two major joint systems, striking north 15 degrees east and north 45 degrees west and dipping 70 degrees
northwest and 30 degrees southwest, respectively, are developed.
8.0

DEPOSIT TYPES modified after GSC summary report 28

Stratabound mineral occurrences in the project area are of two main types: massive sulfide vein and carbonate
replacement deposits.
The present sulphides are formed by, oxidation (by ascending meteoric waters), of original gold and silver bearing
pyritic galena-sphalerite deposits in limestone. The sulphides were deposited along fissures in the limestone and by
replacement of the limestone. Mineralization is found as irregular bodies elongated along the predominate shear and
fault zones. Larger bodies of mineralization occur in crosscutting shears and faults. Veins of quartz and calcite occur
locally but appear to be mostly barren.
The Waverley and Tangier mineralization is similar to Polymetalic Manto-Type Replacement Deposits such as the
Midway of northern BC and the Bluebell in southeast BC. J.L. Nelson describes the ore controls and genetic model
of these deposits as:
“The irregular shapes of these deposits and their occurrence in carbonate hosts emphasize the importance of ground preparation in
controlling fluid channels and depositional sites. Controlling factors include faults, fault intersections, fractures, anticlinal
culminations, bedding channel ways (lithologic contrasts), karst features and pre-existing permeable zones. In several districts karst
development associated with unconformities is believed to have led to development of open spaces subsequently filled by ore. Some
deposits are spatially associated with dikes.”
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“Manto deposits are high-temperature replacements as shown by fluid inclusion temperatures in excess of 300O C, high contents of
Ag, presence of Sn, W and complex sulphosalts, and association with skarns and small felsic intrusions. They are the product of
pluton-driven hydrothermal solutions that followed a variety of permeable pathways, such as bedding, karst features and fracture
zones.”
9.0

MINERALIZATION after Barovic 1987

9.1

Waverley (Workings) Mineralization

“The “ores” [mineralized rocks] exposed in the Waverley are highly oxidized and consist of decomposed limestone, vein
calcite, and quartz: limonite, anglesite (lead Sulphate), some cerussite (lead carbonate), malachite, and azurite, smithsonite
(zinc carbonate), and occasional residual nodules of galena and argentiferous tetrahedrite. Silver and gold values are
present.
9.2

Tangier (Workings) Mineralization

The Sulphides, occurring very clean in several places are arranged in lenticular bodies along the vein. Grey copper seems
most abundant where quartz is the predominant gangue mineral. At the southeastern face of the drift about 4 feet of
quartz and calcite contain disseminations of sulphides and grey copper.
Assays given by B. T. O`Grady, assistant resident mining engineer, of sulphide ore from the shaft dump, show values of:
gold, 0.06 ounce; silver, 16.0 ounces; lead, 8.5 per cent; and zinc, 5 per cent; and some of the cleaner pyrite assayed 5.6
ounces of gold per ton. These assays cannot be taken as representative of the ore exposed underground.”
10.0

EXPLORATION 2003-2007

In September 2003, William Murray reported six samples from the Tangier Workings:
Table 2 Tangier samples from Murray
Description
Cu(ppm) Pb(ppm) Zn(ppm) Ag(oz/t) Au(oz/t)
D1 Grab from Tangier dump
D2 Grab from Tangier dump
D3 Grab from Tangier dump
D4 Grab from Tangier dump
Cut 1 Grab from Tangier dump
Cut 2 Grab from Tangier dump

29
4
5
4
19941
1718

3407
7196
147
24
34
29
8
4
>9999 >99999
>9999 >99999

.20
.07
.02
<.01
103.74
28.45

.010
<.001
<.001
<.001
.162
.049

High values in Antimony (Sb), Cadmium (Cd) and Strontium (Sr) also occur in the samples. In November 2004 a
shipment from the Tangier Dump:
William Murray also reported construction of 10.5 km of a trail 3 metres wide on the Sorcerer 2, 6 and Waverley and
Tangier Claims.

Sterling Mining

Table 3 Samples from the Tangier Workings Dump
Au(oz/ton) Ag(oz/ton)
Pb(%) Zn(%)
.380
50.80
25.2
10.02 60 lb sample
1.082
74.00
Pyritic
20 lb sample

These samples were sent to Chris Christopherson Inc. of Kellogg, Idaho. The samples were fire assayed. In Appendix
II is a copy the assay certificate for November 9, 2004. The writer feels that the samples were hand picked from
the dump and may not be representative of the average grade of the dump.
In 2005 William Murray reported work on the property: Work consisted of further construction of a trail and a property
examination (BC assessment report # 28144).
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In 2006 William Murray applied cash-in-lieu of assessment work. The claims were re-acquired in 2006 by Silver Phoenix
Resources Inc. using the MTO system.
In 2007 Discovery Consultants of Vernon, BC conducted a silt and rock geochemistry program over the northwest
portion of the property (Figure 15 & 16). The results are preliminary and an assessment report is in progress.
A total of 68 silt and 14 rock samples were collected. The samples came from streams and various outcrops along the
northwest extent of the Waverley and Tangier workings. The samples were analyzed for Au and 35 Element ICP.
The following table summarizes the results of this survey the maps are included in this report.
Preliminary results from 2007
Element

Range

Silt (68) Figure 15
-6 Field Duplicates
-3 Lab Standards
-3 Lab Blanks

Ag (ppb)
Cu (ppm)
Pb (ppm)
Zn (ppm)
As (ppm)
Au (ppb)
Mo (ppm)
Sb (ppm)

21 - 813
6.32- 87.83
3.54 - 101.80
29.9 - 226.4
1.4 – 25.0
<0.2 – 85.8
0.17 – 1.32
0.07 – 6.60

Rock(14) Figure 16
-2 Pulp Samples
-2 Standards
-1 Lab Blank

Ag (ppm)
Cu (ppm)
Pb (ppm)
Zn (ppm)
As (ppm)
Au (ppb)
Mo (ppm)
Sb (ppm)

0.4 – 33.4
122.2 – 9781.0
15.9 – 1291.0
18 – 2310
13.8 – 7124.0
0.8 – 1131.0
<0.1 – 0.2
3.8 – 1850.0

# of samples

Table 4:
> Upper Limit

3 > 100
3 > 1%
1 > 1%
1 > 1%
1 > 1%
3 > 2000

Stream Sediment Results
Six creeks were anomalous in Ag, Au, Cu and/or Pb. The areas with anomalous Cu-As-Sb±Au±Ag in rocks were not
identified by the stream sediment survey, indicating that the mineralization is not widespread.
Rock Results
Rock samples 808CR02 to 05 were taken upslope from the area of a copper float discovery (808CR01) along the logging
road. These samples contain pyrite, pyrrhotite and chalcocite mineralization within quartz-carbonate veins and stringers.
Malachite, azurite and bornite staining is present. Three samples contain strongly anomalous copper, arsenic, and
antimony. Anomalous zinc, gold and silver also occur in one of the samples.
Approximately one kilometre to the southeast, 2 limestone samples were collected having quartz veining with copper
mineralization. Geochemically, the samples contained strongly anomalous copper, antimony and silver, with minor gold
values.
A third area of interest lies approximately 2.4 km northwest of the copper float discovery. The sample, consisting of a
quartz-carbonate vein with galena (808CR07) contained >1% Pb and 33 ppm Ag.
11.0

SAMPLING METHOD AND APPROACH

All geochemical sampling on the WAVERLEY PROPERTY i.e. underground and shipped ore, was conducted by wellrespected and competent geologists and geological engineers. Sample methodology conducted by government geologists
are not quoted in the MINFILE reports or the Minister of Mines Annual Reports for the specific year.
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Work carried out by Barovic in 1987 comprised of sampling the Tangier Workings dump, the sampling procedure was
not disclosed but is presumed to be random grab samples over the extent of the “ore” pile, four samples were taken.
Samples were also taken of the Waverley wall rock. The writer is of the opinion that the sampling method used was
adequate considering the nature of the project and industry standards at the time.
Work carried out by the author included sampling the Tangier Workings dump. Three random grab samples were taken.
These samples are from the “ore” and random grab may not adequately represent the material selected for sample.
Sample sites were selected randomly over the pile, but mineralized boulders are much easier to see (rusty etc.) than nonmineralized ones. Samples were tagged in the field and intervals were 5-20 metres apart. A grid set up by Barovic in
1987 is overgrown.
11.1

Sieved Silt Sampling Method and Approach

Large amounts of high-energy streambed sediment were wet sieved to obtain about 2.5 kg of coarse sand and silt (-20
mesh or <850 microns). The samples were collected by carefully shovelling the sediments into a -20 mesh stainless steel
sieve (diameter 36 cm, depth 17 cm) that rests in a large aluminum pan containing water. Some liquid detergent was
added to the wash water to prevent flotation of small metallic mineral grains. Using handles on the sieve, a rotary-type
motion like a washing machine was used to sieve the sediments. Sieves and pans were thoroughly cleaned after each
sample.
The stream sediments were collected from creeks that show on the 1:20,000 BCGS maps and contain sufficient stream
sediments. Many of the mapped creeks are not viable for sampling. GPS readings and thread chain were used to locate
the sites. Site locations are shown on Figure 15.
11.2

Rock Sampling Method and Approach

A reconnaissance type prospecting and rock sampling program was conducted by C. Lynes of Rich River Exploration in
August 2007. Fourteen rock chip and grab samples were taken and sent for analysis
The rock samples were sent to Acme Analytical Laboratories in Vancouver. Site locations are shown on Figure 16.
Rock descriptions are summarized in Table 7. Rock samples that are grab samples represent the best mineralized
material present. The chip samples are representative of the average rock composition as a whole.
12.0

SAMPLE PREPARATION, ANALYSES AND SECURITY

All rock samples taken by James A. Turner were placed in plastic bags and closed with ties. Acme Analytical
Laboratories Inc. completed the analysis. Samples were delivered via the writer directly to the Lab. The geochemical
results were transmitted to the writer via e-mail.
The rock samples were prepared by air-drying, then crushing to 10-mesh (<2 mm); a 250 g portion was pulverized to
200-mesh (<75 microns). The sample pulps will be in locked facility for long-term storage. Access to this facility is only
through the particular Laboratory.
At Acme Analytical Laboratories, the samples were analyzed for 23 elements using two methods. Gold content was
determined to the 0.2 ppb level by Fire Assay from a 1 A.T. (assay ton) sample. The other elements were analyzed by
ACME’s group 7AR method. A 1.0 g sample was digested in Aqua Regia; digestion to 100 ml and analyzed by Graphite
Furnace Atomic Absorption Spectroscopy or Inductively Coupled Plasma Mass Spectroscopy (ICP-MS) finish.
12.1

Silt Sampling Preparation, Analysis and Quality Control- 2007 survey

Field-sieved samples were sent by truck with a bonded transportation company to Acme Analytical Laboratories Ltd., in
Vancouver, BC, for sample preparation and analysis.
Sample Preparation
The field samples were sieved to -80 mesh (<177 microns).
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Analysis
Following aqua regia (HCl-HNO3-H2O) digestion, the samples were analyzed by ICP-MS techniques (method Group
1F-MS). Gold and 36 other element determinations were made. The sub-sample for digestion and analysis was 30 g.
The use of aqua regia digestion preceding gold analysis is suitable for geochemical stream sediment surveys. Gold in
native form and within sulphide and secondary oxide minerals was determined. The ICP-MS determined a suite of
elements that assists in interpretation.
Quality Control (QC)The laboratory has inserted blank ‘silt’ samples at the start of each batch and also within the batch.
These samples went through the same preparation and analysis as the regular samples. The analysis of the blanks shows
no problems with contamination in the sample preparation. The analytical results of the silt samples are shown in the
Table Y.
Precision is monitored by the collection of duplicate field samples. Duplicate field samples were collected at 3 of the 62
sites and inserted into the sample stream. The precision indicates the cumulative error in the field sampling, laboratory
sample preparation and analysis. Field sample collection is assumed to be the largest component. The data base is not
large enough to measure the precision by Thompson-Howarth Plots in a statistically rigorous manner.
The laboratory also monitors precision by analyzing another sub-sample of -80 mesh sediments. This is done about one
every 30 analyses. The results indicate the precision of the sample preparation and analysis. The data base is not large
enough to measure the precision in a statistically rigorous manner.
The laboratory has inserted a standard, after about every 30 samples, to monitor for errors in the analytical process. The
analyses of the inserted standards show acceptable results. Acme Analytical Laboratories Ltd. has ISO 9001:2000
accreditation.
12.2

Rock Sample Preparation, Analysis and Quality Control- 2007 survey

Rock sample preparation involved crushing the sample to 10 mesh, then pulverizing a 250 g split to -150 mesh. A 30
gram sub-sample was digested in hot (95° C) aqua regia (HCl-HNO3-H2O);following this, the samples were analysed by
inductively-coupled plasma mass spectrometry (ICP-MS) techniques (Acme’s Group 1DX). Analysis of 36 elements was
made. The analytical results of the rock samples are shown in the Table 8.
Quality control samples from the lab are included with each batch to ensure that the analytical results are valid. These
include control blanks, duplicates and standards. The laboratory inserts blank samples at the start of each batch and also
within the batch. These samples go through the same preparation and analysis as the regular samples. Similarly,
standard reference materials of similar composition to the samples are analysed.
Within the batch of fourteen samples, one pulp duplicate was run, along with two analyses of a standard and two
analyses of a blank sample. No problems with the quality control samples are evident.
13.0

DATA VERIFICATION

Sample data verification other than those provided by ACME (blanks, standards, duplicates) was included in the 2005
program.
Table 5 Samples taken by James Turner on the Tangier Workings Dump
From ACME ANALYTICAL LABORATORIES LTD. 852 E. HASTINGS ST. VANCOUVER BC V6A 1R6
To Blue Map Geomatics
Acme file # A505047 Received: AUG 30 2005 * 5 samples in this disk file.
Analysis: GROUP 7AR - 1.000 GM SAMPLE, AQUA - REGIA (HCL-HNO3-H2O) DIGESTION TO 100 ML,
ANALYSED BY ICP-ES. AU** BY FIRE ASSAY FROM 1 A.T. SAMPLE.
Northings
SAMPLES

Eastings

Elevation

Description

Cu
%

Pb
%

Zn
%

Ag
gm/mt

Au**
gm/mt

40
19776
19777
19778
STANDARD R-2a/OxL34

Grab fro Dump
Grab fro Dump
Grab fro Dump

0.033
0.001
0.025
0.553

32.6
0.11
16.5
1.46

2.34
1.94
1.96
4.26

1489
8
646
158

8.57
6.13
9.27
5.76

Table 6: Samples taken by Barovic 1987 and others
Barovic
Sample #

Waverley wall rock

4826 c
4827
4828
4829
4830
4831
4832
4833
4834 c

W. O. Young 1924
Tangier Workings

Waverley Tunnel No 2

6.5 feet beginning from
footwall in the first stope

Waverley Tunnel No 1

Au
oz/ton

Ag
oz/ton

Pb
%

Zn
%

0.024
0.810
2.902
0.704
0.010
0.006
0.006
0.010
0.010
0.320
0.030
1.640
1.070
0.630

1.71
10.55
12.62
1.29
0.10
0.05
0.05
0.08
0.05
25.40
32.60
95.70
73.20
64.90

0.35
9.28
13.98
0.02
0.07
0.02
0.02
0.02
0.02
17.90
19.50
26.70
27.60
23.00

15.46
2.22
1.19
0.59
0.01
0.01
0.04
0.06
0.01

Tangier dump
Tangier dump
Tangier dump
Tangier dump
grab
grab
grab
grab
grab
200 ton dump
200 ton dump coarse
select dump
select dump
Winze Pile

0.04
0.12
0.05
0.06
0.10
0.06
0.09
0.02
0.25
0.04
0.16
0.23
0.16
0.20
0.05

13.6
12.0
26.5
18.9
16.7
22.4
11.0
13.5
96.3
37.8
37.2
69.7
15.8
44.6
32.4

4.8
3.1
1.7
4.7
42.2
3.7
5.8
14.6
24.4
12.6
34.4
27.5
9.1
17.5
22.5

+ 5 feet
+12 feet
+18 feet
+ 5 feet
+ 7 feet
+ 12 feet
+ 10 feet
Select hard
Select soft
Top of Winze 4 ft
Bottom of Winze 4 ft
North Outcrop
North Outcrop
North Outcrop

0.09
0.07

11.9
23.4

19.8
18.7

North 3 ft
Winze 3 ft

Short Tunnel

Wales (1928)
Production

gm/t
51.400

gm/t
4456.40

25.00

13 tonnes
Hand sorted

41
BC Gov. (MMAR 1921)

2.050
8.200

584.40
726.70

8.50
8.50

5.00
15.00

Tangier dump
winze 30 ft level

In September 2003, William Murray reported six samples from the Tangier Workings Dump:
Description

Cu(ppm) Pb(ppm) Zn(ppm) Ag(oz/t) Au(oz/t)

D1 Grab from Tangier dump
D2 Grab from Tangier dump
D3 Grab from Tangier dump
D4 Grab from Tangier dump
Cut 1 Grab from Tangier dump
Cut 2 Grab from Tangier dump

29
4
5
4
19941
1718

3407
7196
147
24
34
29
8
4
>9999 >99999
>9999 >99999

.20
.07
.02
<.01
103.74
28.45

.010
<.001
<.001
<.001
.162
.049

High values in Antimony (Sb), Cadmium (Cd) and Strontium (Sr) also occur in the samples.
In November 2004 a shipment from the Tangier Workings Dump yielded: Appendix II
Au(oz/ton) Ag(oz/ton)
.380
50.80
1.082
74.00

Sterling Mining

Pb(%)
25.2
Pyritic

Zn(%)
10.02 60 lb sample
20 lb sample

Much of the sampling was done before implementation of National Instrument 43-101 quality control measures and
data verification procedures applied at that time may have varied from those now required under the Instrument.
However, the analytical procedures and industry standards used at the time are considered adequate.
These results verify previous results for the Tangier Workings Dump material. Previous workers have shown
that economic mineralization occurs on the property. The authors sampling of the Tangier Workings Dump
verifies some of the earlier results. The project warrants continued exploration.
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Table 7
Samples taken by
Discovery
Consultants, Vernon
B.C.

Sample
Number
808CR01

UTM
Easting
429841

UTM
Northing
5702914

808CR02

430002

808CR03

along road

Sample
Type
float

Visible
Mineralization
copper float

5703269

upslope of copper
float

20 cm chip

py, po, chalcocite
as massive pods

430008

5703269

upslope of copper
float

15 cm chip

pod of massive
py-chalcocite

808CR04

430008

5703269

upslope of copper
float

808CR05

430008

5703269

upslope of copper
float

808CR06

428570

5705107

Location

logging road

25 cm chip
across vein

chalcocite, mal
stain, bornite stain

qtz-carb vein, 2025 cm, with
galena and

42

float

possible
tetrahedrite
qtz vein with
copper-py

5702341

float

qtz vein, mal,
bornite staining

430484

5702356

float

808CR10

430420

5702388

808CR11

430485

5702614

808CR12

430522

5702518

creek bed
avalanche chute?

float

808CR13

430110

5702646

road cut

outcrop?

808CR14

430179

5702570

culvert along road

slide debris

808CR07

428543

5705130

808CR08

430527

808CR09

Abbreviations
py = pyrite
po = pyrrhotite
qtz = quartz
carb = carbonate
mal =
malachite

logging road

along road

outcrop

silicified,
chalcocite, mal
bornite stain
silicified, highly
altered,
semi-massive
pyrite bands,
stringers
10% pyrite as
pods and semimassive
stringers of semimassive pyrite
hematite stain
heavy gossanous,
sericite
rusty sulphides,
heavily oxidized
mal stained qtz,
hematite staining

43

Table
8

Rock Sample Results 2007

Sample

Lab

ID

Rpt #

808CR01
808CR02

Discovery Consultants

Ag

Pb

As

Sb

Zn

Cd

Au

Mo

Tl

Cu

Cu PPM

PPM

PPM

PPM

PPM

PPM

PPM

PPB

PPM

PPM

PPM

van07000732

7824

12.2

50.2

2472.0

1850.0

922

9.1

26.9

<0.1

0.98

7824.0

van07000732

>10000

44.2

299.0

7124.0

>2000

2310

22.4

142.8

<0.1

11

>10000.0

808CR03

van07000732

>10000

18.9

81.7

3580.0

1313.0

306

2.2

105.0

<0.1

13.37

>10000.0

808CR04

van07000732

>10000

>100.0

168.1

>10000.0

>2000

>10000

146.8

1131.0

<0.1

53.48

>10000.0

808CR05

van07000732

300

<0.1

31.6

85.3

21.5

18

<0.1

1.5

<0.1

0.3

300.1

808CR06

van07000732

812

33.4

>10000.0

16.9

25.0

36

14.1

9.7

0.1

0.1

811.8

808CR07

van07000732

3586

2.8

32.1

188.6

236.6

142

1.7

1.0

<0.1

0.38

3586.0

808CR08

van07000732

7751

>100.0

1291.0

511.7

1745.0

646

28.1

68.4

<0.1

3.72

7751.0

808CR09

van07000732

9781

>100.0

390.5

413.0

>2000

814

27.3

242.7

<0.1

1.8

9781.0

808CR10

van07000732

122

3.8

76.4

35.0

9.9

21

0.3

13.9

<0.1

0.03

122.2

808CR11

van07000732

143

5.4

15.9

10.4

20.9

25

0.3

1.8

<0.1

0.03

142.7

808CR12

van07000732

219

0.4

235.0

23.9

3.8

33

0.2

1.3

0.2

0.08

219.0

808CR13

van07000732

195

0.5

123.9

92.3

4.4

58

<0.1

0.8

<0.1

<0.01

195.0

808CR14

van07000732

1171

0.4

59.9

13.8

4.0

43

0.2

1.9

<0.1

<0.01

1171.0

Pulp Duplicates:
808CR13

van07000732

195

0.5

123.9

92.3

4.4

58

<0.1

0.8

<0.1

<0.01

195.0

808CR13r

van07000732

209

0.5

132.3

99.6

4.9

64

<0.1

1.5

<0.1

<0.01

209.9

Reference Materials:
STD DS7

van07000732

106

0.5

77.1

47.7

5.4

388

5.6

62.6

4.1

0.17

106.1

STD DS7

van07000732

119

0.8

74.2

48.3

7.2

393

5.6

58.6

4.2

0.19

118.6

BLK

van07000732

<0.1

<0.1

<0.1

<0.5

<0.1

<1

<0.1

<0.5

<0.1

<0.01

<0.1

G1

van07000732

6.5

<0.1

2.7

<0.5

<0.1

46

<0.1

1.2

0.4

<0.01

6.5

G1

van07000732

2.8

<0.1

2.8

<0.5

<0.1

44

<0.1

<0.5

0.4

<0.01

2.8

Prep Wash:

44

Waverley
Property
Silt
Sample
Results
(2007)
Table
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Sample

Lab

ID

Rpt #

UTM

Ag

Pb

As

Sb

Zn

Cd

Au

Mo

Tl

Hg

Cu

PPB

PPM

PPM

PPM

PPM

PPM

PPB

PPM

PPM

PPB

PPM

808V001

van07000738

429459.0000

808V002

van07000738

429593.5752

5703195.0000

185

32.24

10.4

2.02

67.8

0.24

2.3

0.87

0.03

55

40.78

5703316.3943

239

60.03

2.7

1.58

30.7

0.29

1.4

0.27

0.03

30

6.32

808V003

van07000738

808V004

van07000738

429204.0000

5703385.0000

42

15.00

6.0

0.36

42.2

0.06

1.5

0.38

0.02

8

20.03

429303.7880

5703407.9199

39

16.71

6.2

0.34

42.3

0.05

1.6

0.34

0.02

9

808V005

19.23

van07000738

428723.0000

5704224.0000

47

16.67

8.1

0.29

51.9

0.06

3.6

0.42

0.03

7

27.97

808V006

van07000738

428904.0834

5704272.7774

44

17.89

8.2

0.31

53.3

0.05

0.6

0.42

0.03

9

29.15

808V007

van07000738

428672.0000

5704272.0000

55

18.05

6.5

0.29

53.2

0.08

3.1

0.42

0.04

9

20.13

808V008

van07000738

428792.2298

5704358.7561

64

17.55

10.2

0.49

51.1

0.13

1.5

0.44

0.03

15

22.92

808V009

van07000738

429575.1090

5703161.1596

143

37.17

14.9

3.04

84.0

0.35

1.5

0.61

0.06

99

47.42

808V010

van07000738

429680.2017

5703238.2362

139

27.33

11.4

4.40

56.8

0.13

11.3

0.53

0.05

40

46.24

808V011

van07000738

429729.0000

5703036.0000

242

19.21

12.0

6.60

54.9

0.22

1.1

0.60

<0.02

25

41.18

808V012

van07000738

429795.7438

5703094.0419

91

18.29

9.6

4.07

45.0

0.21

0.8

0.74

<0.02

26

33.85

808V013

van07000738

429786.0000

5702980.0000

87

18.83

10.7

3.40

49.1

0.18

1.1

0.47

0.03

28

35.93

808V014

van07000738

429814.0000

5702962.0000

76

11.17

6.9

1.94

46.1

0.18

1.3

0.50

<0.02

20

23.58

808V015

van07000738

429928.6399

5703048.7252

103

31.45

21.3

4.53

81.0

0.51

1.5

0.86

0.03

48

45.65

808V016

van07000738

430172.0000

5702586.0000

162

59.50

11.0

2.20

87.4

0.36

1.6

1.32

0.03

48

87.83

808V017

van07000738

430358.4602

5702443.1281

317

53.64

18.3

3.16

121.7

0.51

10.4

1.31

0.03

59

29.18

808V018

van07000738

430536.0000

5702346.0000

813

66.89

16.4

6.60

115.8

0.51

7.1

1.17

0.06

59

31.38

808V019

van07000738

430595.3849

5702324.3367

123

22.15

8.3

1.16

60.9

0.15

1.1

0.34

0.05

15

15.08

808V020

van07000738

430640.0000

5702257.0000

38

13.74

6.4

0.42

49.7

0.08

0.7

0.27

0.03

<5

15.17

808V021

van07000738

431488.4400

5701651.0100

801

101.80

25.0

3.64

158.0

0.84

79.4

0.72

0.07

38

27.82

808V022

van07000738

431621.0696

5701388.8048

219

35.97

11.2

1.28

102.1

0.42

3.6

0.66

0.04

17

19.06

808V023

van07000738

431758.1582

5701283.6361

50

15.54

3.3

0.67

150.5

0.96

0.6

0.26

0.03

7

11.05

808V024

van07000738

431960.0000

5701199.0000

50

14.00

2.7

0.55

100.6

0.62

0.5

0.26

0.02

<5

11.22

808V025

van07000738

432041.0000

5701025.0000

307

70.82

4.8

2.92

64.2

0.32

6.4

0.26

0.03

9

18.14

808V026

van07000738

431795.4588

5700903.1996

239

44.46

4.2

2.77

67.9

0.41

7.1

0.27

0.02

12

17.83

808V027

van07000738

431718.7535

5700868.4915

38

17.28

8.1

0.23

46.4

0.03

0.5

0.32

0.03

<5

34.00

808V028

van07000738

431754.0000

5700660.0000

29

16.02

7.2

0.22

46.0

0.03

<0.2

0.37

0.03

<5

28.80

808V029

van07000738

431405.0000

5701499.0000

375

101.10

6.7

1.69

56.2

0.22

85.8

0.23

0.02

12

26.09

808V030

van07000738

428176.0000

5705121.0000

133

35.17

9.8

0.54

63.2

0.13

1.3

0.48

0.04

44

47.87

808V031

van07000738

429538.5285

5703171.8504

40

12.50

3.8

0.66

41.2

0.07

1.7

0.25

0.03

14

11.54

808V032

van07000738

429504.5004

5703179.9467

113

32.41

2.5

0.89

70.7

0.07

1.0

0.25

0.02

19

7.40

808V033

van07000738

429353.3460

5703301.1270

122

24.65

10.0

0.95

64.8

0.18

1.2

0.40

0.05

33

30.20

808V034

van07000738

429241.1404

5703346.6657

47

18.83

6.7

0.22

54.7

0.07

1.2

0.39

0.03

13

22.93

808V035

van07000738

428547.0000

5704586.0000

232

35.66

6.0

1.31

75.0

0.10

1.3

0.51

0.03

33

75.03

808V036

van07000738

428520.0000

5704685.0000

363

51.06

7.9

1.54

62.8

0.25

2.2

0.51

0.06

49

52.85

808V037

van07000738

428443.0000

5704867.0000

170

57.18

12.8

1.50

64.2

0.25

2.5

0.56

0.05

44

47.40

808V038

van07000738

428581.0000

5704955.0000

205

43.49

20.8

1.65

70.6

0.25

3.6

0.87

0.05

50

65.05

808V039

van07000738

428610.3437

5705065.1800

126

22.61

7.5

0.46

128.7

0.16

1.1

0.33

0.03

27

38.87

808V040

van07000738

428566.0000

5705124.0000

39

11.22

5.1

0.26

43.7

0.06

0.8

0.17

0.03

13

14.98

Easting

Northing

45
808V041

van07000738

428627.0000

5705201.0000

270

38.72

20.3

0.77

120.7

1.12

1.7

0.41

0.05

33

32.73

808V042

van07000738

428651.1167

5705312.8736

51

13.46

7.9

0.40

47.3

0.11

0.9

0.24

0.03

16

16.17

808V043

van07000738

428735.0000

5705133.0000

73

13.93

11.0

0.38

226.4

0.08

0.9

0.26

0.02

10

20.22

808V044

van07000738

428754.2483

5705120.0938

76

17.47

8.3

0.52

90.6

0.11

0.6

0.27

0.03

18

23.95

808V046

van07000738

425111.3985

5708735.0748

38

9.39

6.7

0.15

47.3

0.04

2.4

0.27

<0.02

<5

29.27

808V047

van07000738

425265.0000

5708738.0000

38

10.41

7.4

0.14

43.9

0.04

0.9

0.22

<0.02

<5

32.30

808V048

van07000738

425137.0000

5708726.0000

35

8.24

5.4

0.14

47.3

0.04

1.4

0.33

<0.02

<5

26.17

808V049

van07000738

425839.0000

5708639.0000

21

3.54

1.4

0.07

29.9

0.03

1.6

0.20

<0.02

8

27.30

808V051

van07000738

426248.0000

5708467.0000

99

18.38

12.3

0.27

74.1

0.09

1.3

0.67

<0.02

17

40.59

808V052

van07000738

426581.0000

5708266.0000

42

11.88

8.5

0.14

39.5

0.04

0.2

0.23

<0.02

<5

28.56

808V053

van07000738

426975.7451

5708035.5137

41

8.48

6.9

0.10

55.9

0.04

0.7

0.34

<0.02

7

17.91

808V054

van07000738

427062.0000

5707974.0000

170

15.06

10.3

0.19

61.4

0.07

2.9

0.61

<0.02

17

25.68

808V055

van07000738

427394.5160

5707545.7925

79

19.44

11.2

0.22

59.4

0.05

8.7

0.53

0.03

13

23.82

808V056

van07000738

427687.0563

5707092.0388

80

23.69

7.3

0.31

60.4

0.04

1.4

0.43

0.02

17

30.32

808V057

van07000738

427713.9719

5707091.9188

62

29.50

9.6

0.48

70.0

0.07

0.9

0.36

<0.02

11

30.10

808V058

van07000738

427785.5635

5706767.2222

43

18.98

13.4

0.22

49.2

0.04

0.8

0.49

0.02

8

27.69

808V059

van07000738

427917.6035

5706302.7518

93

22.50

13.5

0.30

66.8

0.05

0.9

0.38

<0.02

10

26.19

808V060

van07000738

427977.0000

5705909.0000

141

19.21

7.9

0.17

61.4

0.17

1.8

0.34

0.04

18

21.01

808V061

van07000738

428391.2771

5704611.0263

141

32.38

6.5

1.26

53.8

0.17

1.2

0.36

0.04

26

41.29

808V062

van07000738

428139.3470

5705276.1689

54

14.93

9.1

0.33

50.5

0.08

1.0

0.32

0.03

9

25.60

808V063

van07000738

428101.6259

5705651.5172

78

21.48

13.7

0.31

67.6

0.09

1.2

0.46

0.03

14

33.18

808V068

van07000738

428066.0000

5705727.0000

48

14.76

9.8

0.28

40.7

0.05

0.9

0.27

0.03

9

21.98

Pulp Duplicates:
808V015

van07000738

103

31.45

21.3

4.53

81.0

0.51

1.5

0.86

0.03

48

45.65

808V015r

van07000738

104

30.58

20.3

4.33

79.7

0.52

1.1

0.80

0.03

47

44.07

808V032

van07000738

113

32.41

2.5

0.89

70.7

0.07

1.0

0.25

0.02

19

7.40

808V032r

van07000738

107

31.23

2.5

0.87

71.0

0.07

0.9

0.27
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394.2
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104.40
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3.4
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0.06
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808V050

The vein on the Tangier Workings is situated in a more favorable location for further exploration. Drilling would not be
difficult.
These conclusions have met the objective of determining if the WAVERLEY is a Property of merit and may host an
economic deposit.
The 2007 geochemical survey was designed to test the possible extent of the Waverly and Tangier Workings. The
preliminary results demonstrate there is potential along strike to the northwest of the main zone, although stream
sampling may have limited the extent. More work is needed in this area.
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USE OF PROCEEDS
Past Use of Funds
The following table sets out the principal past use of the funds previously raised by the Company selling Special
Warrants and expended to July 31, 2008:

Special warrants
Auto and travel
Bank charges
Filing fees
Exploration costs
Management fees
Office and miscellaneous
Professional fees
Promotion
Repairs and maintenance
Supplies
Telephone and utilities
Transfer agent
Interest income
Administration total

Year
Ended
December
31, 2004

Year
Ended
December
31, 2005

Year
Ended
December
31, 2006

Year
Ended
December
31, 2007

One Month
Ended
October 31,
2008

482,480

Nine
Months
Ended
September
30, 2008
-

25,000

131,750

505,900

4,399
100

1,215
123
202
498
(11)
21,803

11,266
16
6
30,000
396
2,532
449
138
1,418
(257)
45,964

-

1,145,130

14,955
53
989
30,000
1,750
5,102
70
417
2,090
(1,220)
54,206

15,513
305
1,468
40,000
7,614
41,908
8,907
540
27
2,310
590
(28,829)
90,353

8,276
201
8,869
5,302
72,000
3,032
54,769
2,050
2,569
768
(17,363)
140,473

60
7
181
9,500
147
2,850
371
50
(948)
12,218

54,469
682
11,332
5,483
196,500
13,216
99,527
19,806
1,182
784
9,256
1,408
(48,628)
365,017

-

-

-

105,000

-

-

105,000

4,489

11,241

23,482

82,106

98,795

5,351

225,464

15,000
277

Total

Mineral property acquisition
costs
Mineral property
expenditures
Reclamation deposit
Equipment purchases
Warrant issue costs (unpaid
at July 31)
Total Expenditures

321

372

2,935

2,500
1,981

-

132,305

2,500
5,609
132,305

26,613

57,577

80,623

281,940

239,268

149,874

835,895

TOTAL

(1,613)

74,173

425,277

200,540

(239,268)

(149,874)

309,235

Available Funds
The Company raised $1,145,130, through the issuance of Special Warrants.
As of October 31, 2008, the Company’s working capital was $309,235 and is to be expended as detailed below.
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Principal Use of Funds
The Company intends to use the Available Funds as follows:

1.
2.
3.

4.

Description

Amount

To pay the estimated remaining costs of the Offering
To conduct the recommended Phase 1 exploration program on the River Jordan
Property
To cover the estimated general and administrative expenses for 12 months
following the Offering: (a) management fees, $114,000, (b) auto & travel, $12,000,
(c) bank charges, $300, (d) office and misc. $7,200, (e) accounting $12,000, (f) audit,
$15,000, (g) legal, $25,000, (h) promotion, $7,200, (i) telephone, $2,400, (j) transfer
agent and filing fees, $26,000, (k) interest income (4,250)
To provide for general working capital to fund ongoing operation
TOTAL

$25,000
$56,650
$216,850

$10,735
$309,235

The Company intends to spend the funds available to us as stated in this prospectus. There may be circumstances,
however, where, for sound business reasons, a reallocation of funds may be necessary.
SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Overall Performance
The following discussion and analysis is based on the Issuer’s financial position and should be read in conjunction with
the Company’s audited financial statements included with this prospectus.
The Company is an exploration stage company engaged in the exploration and development of three properties located
in British Columbia, Canada and therefore has no existing cash flow from operations. The level of the Company’s
future operations will be determined by the availability of capital resources which will be derived from this Offering and
future financings.
The Company has acquired 100% interest in three properties, the Big Showing Property, the Waverly Tangier property
and the River Jordan Property. In consideration for each property, the Company issued 750,000 shares and paid $35,000
for a total of 2,250,000 shares and $105,000.
The Company has had no revenues since incorporation as it is in the initial stages of operation. The operations to date
have consisted of initial organizational costs and commencement of exploration. Included in these costs were
management fees paid to the President and a director of $42,500 for the nine months in 2008, $30,000 in each of 2007,
2006 and 2005 and $15,000 in 2004. The Company also incurred management fees for the Chief Financial Officer of
$22,500 for the nine months in 2008 and $7,500 in 2007. The Company raised financing totaling $1,145,130 through
subscriptions received for common shares at $0.25 per share during 2004 to 2007. In 2007, these share subscriptions
were cancelled and the Company has issued special warrants as replacement.
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Selected Annual Information
The following is a summary of certain selected financial information from the financial statements included in this
prospectus. The Company was incorporated on February 14, 2003 and has selected December 31 as its financial year
end. The most recent quarter completed is the third quarter in 2008. The following information has been prepared in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Current Assets
Resource Property
Costs
Total assets
Total Long term
liabilities
Total liabilities
Net Loss for the
Period
Net loss per share
(basic and diluted)
Share capital
outstanding
Cash dividends

Period ended
September 30, 2008
Unaudited
525,904

Year ended
December 31, 2007
Audited
725,668

Year ended
December 31, 2006
Audited
527,609

Year ended
December 31, 2005
Audited
94,724

219,116
750,752

120,321
852,500

38,214
571,854

14,732
110,051

Nil
199,100

Nil
93,742

Nil
32,772

Nil
22,196

247,376

91,354

54,673

46,062

$0.11

$0.05

$0.04

$0.03

2,250,000
Nil

2,250,000
Nil

1,500,000
Nil

1,500,000
Nil

In 2003, the Company entered into an agreement to acquire a 100% interest in the Big Showing Property in the
Revelstoke Mining Division of British Columbia. In consideration for the interest in the property, the Company issued
750,000 shares in 2003 to one director of the Company and a person who subsequently became a director and paid
$35,000 in April 2007 to these two persons who were then both directors.
In 2004, the Company entered into an agreement to acquire 100% of the Waverly Tangier Property, also located in the
Revelstoke Mining Division of British Columbia. In consideration for the 100% interest, the Company issued 750,000
shares in 2004 to one director of the Company and a person who subsequently became a director and paid $35,000 in
August 2007 to these two persons who were then both directors.
In 2006, the Company entered into an agreement to acquire 100% interest in the River Jordan Property, again located in
the Revelstoke Mining Division of British Columbia. In consideration for the property, the Company issued 750,000
shares to one director of the Company and a person who subsequently became a director and paid $35,000 in August
2007 to these two persons who were then both directors.
Financing was raised from 2004 to 2007 through share subscriptions. In 2004 $25,000 was raised, in 2005 $131,750 was
raised, in 2006 $505,900 was raised and in 2007 $482,480 was raised. In July 2007 the Company issued 4,580,520 special
warrants and cancelled the common share subscription agreements.
Results of Operations
In 2005 spending began to increase due to the acquisition of properties and raising of financing. The resulting loss for
the year was $46,062 (2004 - $22,835). This loss included management fees paid to the President and director of the
Company of $30,000 (2004 - $15,000), travel of $11,266 and promotional costs of $2,532 and miscellaneous costs of
$2,264.
In 2006 the loss for the Company increased by $8,611 to $54,673. This was due primarily to an increase in travel of
$3,689 and an increase in promotional costs of $2,570 related to increased spending on the properties (2006 - $23,482;
2005 - $11,241) and costs associated with the raising of financing.
In 2007 the loss for the Company increased by $36,681 to $91,354. This was primarily a result of increased professional
fees of $41,908 relating to the preparation of financial statements and other work relating to the preparation of the
prospectus. Other significant increases in comparison to the prior year were increases to management fees (increase of
$10,000), office expenses (increase of $5,864), and promotion (increase of $3,805). The increase of expenses was offset
by an increase in interest income of $27,609 due to the large cash balances on hand.
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The loss for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 was $247,376 compared to $59,569 for the comparable nine
months of 2007. This was due primarily to stock compensation expense related to the issuance of stock options of
$106,124, increase in management fees of $49,500 and an increase in professional fees relating to the preparation of the
prospectus of $29,858.
Summary of Quarterly Results
The following is a summary of certain selected financial information for eight most recently completed quarters:
2008
Revenues
G&A
Expenses
Option
Benefits
Net
Loss(Gain)
Net loss per
share – basic
and diluted
Total Assets
Liabilities(L.T.)
Cash
Dividends
Working
Capital
Resource
Property
Expenditures
Share Capital:
-Authorized
-Outstanding
-Special
Warrants
-Options

2007
Q2
Nil

Q3
Nil

Q2
Nil

Q1
Nil

Q4
Nil

Q3
Nil

165,437

64,247

35,055

38,582

27,303

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

161,691

56,640

29,045

(0.07)
750,752
Nil

(0.03)
758,306
Nil

Nil

2006
Q1
Nil

Q4
Nil

31,670

22,628

16,278

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

31,785

14,994

26,783

17,792

15,218

(0.01)
812,613
Nil

(0.01)
852,500
Nil

(0.01)
1,030,546
Nil

(0.01)
1,002,732
Nil

(0.01)
942,205
Nil

(0.01)
571,854
Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

326,804

493,281

569,510

631,926

718,639

870,071

851,964

494,837

80,334

2,494

15,967

22,845

39,098

2,500

17,664

12,077

Unlimited
2,250,000

Unlimited
2,250,000

Unlimited
2,250,000

Unlimited
2,250,000

Unlimited
2,250,000

50,000,000
2,250,000

50,000,000
1,500,000

50,000,000
1,500,000

4,580,520
Nil

4,580,520
Nil

4,580,520
Nil

4,580,520
Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

The Company’s results are measured in Canadian dollars using Canadian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP). Note 2 of the notes to the audited and interim financial statements indicates the accounting principles under
which the financial data has been prepared.
During the final quarter of 2006 and in the first quarter of 2007, $508,425 and $395,080 were received respectively for
share subscriptions. This cash received increased the working capital and enabled the Company to initiate the
preparation of the prospectus and increase mineral property expenditures. A portion of the mineral expenditure in 2007
included the $35,000 acquisition payment per property as well as various general exploration costs (Table 2, 3 and 4
below).
Table 1 Operating Expenses
2008
Auto and
travel
Management
Fees
Other
Professional
Fees
Promotion
Total

Q3

Q2

Q1

Q4

Q3

2,365

772

5,139

630

3,951

28,500
117,875

28,500
5,587

15,000
4,182

15,000
4,698

16,548
149
165,437

29,166
222
64,247

9,055
1,679
35,055

16,997
1,257
38,582

2007
Q2

2006
Q1

Q4

8,627

2,305

3,904

7,750
3,586

8,500
4,573

8,750
998

7,500
2,958

8,488
3,528
27,303

5,923
4,047
31,670

10,500
75
22,628

1,916
16,278
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Table 2 Big Showing Property
Big Showing Acquisition
Big Showing - Work
Program
Big Showing - Total

Q3

2008
Q2

Q1

Q4

Q3

-

-

-

-

-

-

749
749

6,696
6,696

3,117
3,117

9,713
9,713

Q3

2008
Q2

Q1

Q4

Q3

-

-

-

-

-

10,342

(162)

7,288

11,172

10,342

(162)

7,288

Q3

2008
Q2

-

2007
Q2

Q1

2006
Q4

35,001

-

-

2,500
37,501

6,333
6,333

7,500
7,500

Q1

2006
Q4

35,001

-

-

22,878

-

9,998

4,577

11,172

22,878

35,001

9,998

4,577

Q1

Q4

Q3

Q1

2006
Q4

-

-

-

35,001

-

-

-

69,992

1,907

1,983

8,556

6,507

-

1,333

-

69,992

1,907

1,983

8,556

41,508

-

1,333

-

Table 3 Waverly Tangier Property
Waverly Tangier Acquisition
Waverly Tangier Work Program
Waverly Tangier Total

2007
Q2

Table 4 River Jordan Property
River Jordan Acquisition
River Jordan Work Program
River Jordan - Total

2007
Q2

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Since incorporation, the Company’s capital resources have been limited. The Company has had to rely upon the sale of
equity securities for the cash required for capital acquisitions, exploration and development, and administration.
The Company does not have any commitments for material capital expenditures and none are presently contemplated
other than as disclosed above and/or over normal operating requirements. The Company may require funds in order to
fund exploration programs on the Big Showing Property, the Waverly Tangier Property and the River Jordan Property
and as a result, the Company will have to continue to rely on equity and debt financing in the future. There can be no
assurance that financing, whether debt or equity, will always be available to the Company in the amount required at any
particular time or for any particular period or, if available, that it can be obtained on terms satisfactory to the Company.
From incorporation to the date of this prospectus, the Company completed private placement offerings of 4,580,520
Special Warrants at the price of $0.25 per Special Warrant, for total proceeds of $1,145,130. As at September 30, 2008
the Company has incurred issue costs of $132,305 related to the private placement offerings for net proceeds of
$1,012,825. From incorporation to the date of this prospectus, the Company issued a total of 2,250,000 Shares in
connection with the acquisition of the Big Show Property, the Waverly Tangier Property and the River Jordan Property.
The property transactions are considered to be related party transactions and consequently 750,000 common shares
issued as initial payment for each property were recorded at the nominal carrying amount of the property of the related
party vendors. The cash payments of $35,000 per property were charged to deficit in 2007.
Upon the exercise of all of the Special Warrants issuable on exercise of the Special Warrants, the Company will not
receive any additional proceeds.
On the final receipt of this prospectus by the Commission qualifying the issuance of all of the Special Warrant Shares
the Company will have a total of 6,831,520 Shares and nil Special Warrants issued and outstanding. Please see
“Consolidated Capitalization” and “Plan of Distribution”.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
The Company has not entered into any material off-balance sheet arrangements such as guarantee contracts, contingent
interests in assets transferred to unconsolidated entities, derivative instrument obligations, or with respect to any
obligations under a variable interest entity arrangement.
Financial Instruments and Other Instruments
The Company's financial instruments consist of cash, accounts payable and accrued liabilities. It is management's
opinion that the Company is not exposed to significant interest, currency or credit risks arising from its financial
instruments and that their fair values approximate their carrying values, unless otherwise noted.
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit risks consist principally of cash.
To minimize the credit risk the Company places these instruments with high credit quality financial institutions.
Proposed Transactions
The Company is continually reviewing potential merger, acquisition, investment and joint venture transactions and
opportunities that could enhance shareholder value. Other than completion of the proposed Offering, there are no
transactions being contemplated by management or the board at this time that would affect the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of any asset of the Company.
Related Party Transactions
During the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the
Company had the following related party transactions:
a) The Company acquired the Waverly Tangier Property and River Jordan Property from the President and director of
the Company and a person who subsequently became a director of the Company.
b) The Company incurred management fees for the President and director of the Company of $49,500 (2007 - $30,000,
2006 - $30,000, 2005 - $30,000). The Company also incurred management fees for the Chief Financial Officer of
$22,500 (2007 - $7,500). The amounts were measured at the exchange amount, which is the amount agreed upon by
the transacting parties and are on terms and conditions similar to non related entities.
c) The Company granted to five directors and one officer incentive stock options to purchase up to 680,000 shares in
the capital of the Company at the price of $0.25 per share exercisable until July 7, 2013. See “OPTIONS AND
OTHER RIGHTS TO PURCHASE SECURITIES – Options” at page 55.
Commitments
a) The Company is committed to a management services agreement with the President and a director of the Company.
The agreement requires payments of $84,000 per year commencing April 1, 2008. This contract is payable monthly
and may be terminated by both parties by giving one month’s notice.
b) The Company is committed to a management services agreement with the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.
The agreement requires payments of $30,000 per year commencing October 1, 2007. This contract is payable
monthly and may be terminated by both parties by giving one month’s notice.
c) The Company is obligated to make certain payments and issue shares as described in Note 4 to the audited financial
statements included with this prospectus in connection with acquisition of its mineral properties.
Changes in Accounting Policies
Effective January 1, 2007, the Company adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (“CICA”) Handbook
Section 1506, "Accounting Changes". This section permits accounting policy changes only in the event that a change is
made within a primary source of GAAP, or where a change is warranted to provide more relevant and reliable
information. All accounting policy changes are to be applied retroactively, unless there is no specific transition
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provisions or it is impracticable to do so. Any prior period errors identified also require retroactive application. The
revised standards did not have any material impact on the Company’s financial statements.
Effective January 1, 2007, the Company adopted the recommendations of CICA Handbook Section 1530 (“CICA
1530”), “Comprehensive Income” and Section 3855 (“CICA 3855”), “Financial Instruments - Recognition and
Measurement”. These sections provide standards for recognition, measurement, disclosure and presentation of financial
assets, financial liabilities and derivatives financial instruments. Under the new standards, policies followed for periods
prior to the effective date generally are not reversed and therefore, the comparative figures have not been restated.
CICA 1530 provides standards for the reporting and presentation of comprehensive income, which represents the net
income and other comprehensive income for the period from transactions and other events and circumstances from
non-owner sources. Other comprehensive income includes changes in unrealized foreign currency translation amounts
arising from self-sustaining foreign operations, unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale assets and changes in the
fair value of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges to the extent they are effective and are excluded from net income
calculated in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. The adoption of CICA 1530 did not
result in any significant adjustments to the carrying values of the Company’s previously recognized financial assets and
liabilities at January 1, 2007 and had no impact on opening deficit.
Under CICA 3855, financial instruments must be classified into one of five categories: held-for-trading, held-to-maturity,
loans and receivables, available-for sale financial assets or other financial liabilities.
All financial instruments, including derivatives, are recognized at fair value on their initial recognition, except for those
arising from certain related party transactions which are accounted for at the transferor’s carrying amount or exchange
amount in accordance with CICA Handbook Section 3840, “Related Party Transactions”. Subsequent measurement and
changes in fair value will depend on their initial classification, as follows: held-for trading financial assets are measured at
fair value and changes in fair value are recognized in net income; available-for-sale financial instruments are measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recorded in other comprehensive income until the investment is impaired at which
time the amounts will be recorded in net income; financial assets classified as held-to-maturity, loans and receivables, and
financial liabilities other than those classified as held-for trading are measured at amortized cost, using the effective
interest method of amortization. CICA 3855 also requires that transaction costs incurred in connection with issuance of
financial instruments either be capitalized and presented as a reduction of the carrying value of the related financial
instrument or expensed as incurred. If capitalized, transaction costs must be amortized to income using the effective
interest method. CICA 3855 does not permit the restatement of financial statements of prior periods.
The Company designated its financial instruments as follows:
Cash
Accounts payable
Amounts due to related party

held-for-trading
other financial liabilities
other financial liabilities

In addition, the Company has elected to account for transaction costs related to the issuance of financial instruments as
a reduction of the carrying value of the related financial instruments. The Company did not have any available for sale
financial assets, held-to-maturity instruments and outstanding contracts with embedded derivatives at January 1, 2007.
The adoption of CICA 3855 did not result in any significant adjustments to the carrying values of the Company’s
previously recognized financial assets and liabilities at January 1, 2007 and had no impact on opening deficit.
Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adopted CICA Handbook Section 3031, “Inventories”. CICA 3031 introduces
changes to the measurement and disclosure of inventory and converges with international financial reporting standards
and is effective for interim and annual periods relating to the Company’s fiscal years beginning on or after January 1,
2008. The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.
Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adopted CICA Handbook Section 3862, “Financial Instruments - Disclosure”
and Section 3863, “Financial Instruments - Presentation” which replace CICA 3861, “Financial Instruments - Disclosure
and Presentation”. CICA 3862 increases the emphasis on recognition and management of the risks associated with
recognized and unrecognized financial instruments. This section carries forward the former presentation requirements
and is effective for the Company’s fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2008. The adoption of this disclosure
standard did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.
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Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adopted CICA Handbook Section 1535, “Capital Disclosures”, which
establishes standards for disclosing information about an entity’s capital and how it is managed. This standard is effective
for interim and annual financial statements for the Company’s fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2008. The
adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.
New accounting pronouncements not yet adopted
In February 2008, the Accounting Standards Board issued CICA Handbook Section 3064, “Goodwill and Intangible
Assets”, which replaces CICA Handbook Section 3062, “Goodwill and Intangible Assets”, and CICA Handbook
Section 3450, “Research and Development Costs”. Section 3064 establishes standards for the recognition, measurement
and disclosure of goodwill and intangible assets. This new standard is effective for the Company’s interim and annual
consolidated financial statements commencing January 1, 2009. The Company is currently assessing the impact of the
new standard and has not yet determined its effect on the Company’s financial statements.
In February 2008, the CICA Accounting Standards Board (“AcSB”) adopted a strategic plan for the direction of
accounting standards in Canada. As part of that plan, accounting standards in Canada for public companies will
converge with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). The Company continues to monitor and assess the
impact of convergence of Canadian GAAP and IFRS.
DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES DISTRIBUTED
Shares
Our authorized share capital consists of an unlimited number of Shares without par value. As at the date of this
prospectus, we had a total of 2,250,000 Shares issued and outstanding. The Company issued 750,000 Shares on the
acquisition of the Big Showing Property (see “General Description of the Business”), the Company issued a further
750,000 Shares on the acquisition of the Waverly Tangier Property (see “General Description of the Business”) and the
Company issued a further 750,000 Shares on the acquisition of the River Jordan Property (see “General Description of
the Business”).
All of the Shares of the Company rank equally as to voting rights, participation in a distribution of the assets of the
Company on a liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Company and the entitlement to dividends. The holders of
the Shares are entitled to receive notice of all meetings of shareholders and to attend and vote the Shares at the
meetings. Each Share carries with it the right to one vote.
In the event of the liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Company or other distribution of its assets, the holders
of the Shares will be entitled to receive, on a pro rata basis, all of the assets remaining after the Company has paid out its
liabilities. Distribution in the form of dividends, if any, will be set by the Board of Directors.
Special Warrants
The Company issued 4,580,520 Special Warrants under a non brokered private placement with 4,563,520 Special
Warrants being issued on July 31, 2007 and 17,000 Special Warrants being issued on September 30, 2007. The Special
Warrants were issued at the price of $0.25 per Special Warrant.
Each Special Warrant is exercisable into a Share (a “Special Warrant Share”).
The Special Warrants were issued pursuant to prospectus exemptions under applicable securities legislation.
The Special Warrants are not exercisable by the Purchaser during the first 12 months following the date of the issuance
of the Special Warrants. The Special Warrants will be deemed to be exercised at the earlier of: (a) two years from the
issuance of the Special Warrants; and (b) following the receipt for a final prospectus of the Company which qualifies the
issuance of the Special Warrant Shares on the exercise of the Special Warrants and in accordance with the terms of the
Prospectus.
See “Plan of Distribution” at page 77.
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CONSOLIDATED CAPITALIZATION
Since the date of the audited financial statements for the Company’s most recent financial year ended December 31,
2007, the Company has not issued any Shares and has not issued any Special Warrants. Please refer to “Prior Sales”
following for further information on the prior issuances of securities. The table below describes the Company’s current
share and loan capital structure as of the date of this prospectus.
Designation of
Security

Shares
Special Warrants
Total capitalization

Number
authorized

Outstanding as at
December 31, 2007

Outstanding at Date hereof
(unaudited)

Outstanding after giving
effect to the Offering(1)(2)

Amount

Number

Amount

Number

Amount

Number

unlimited

$3(1)

2,250,000(2)

$3(1)

2,250,000(2)

$1,012,825

6,830,520

4,580,520

$1,078,679(3)

4,580,520(4)

$1,012,825(4)

4,580,520(4)

$1,078,682

6,830,520

$1,012,825

6,830,520

-

(5)

$1,012,825

6,830,520

(1) Each set of 750,000 shares issued as consideration for each of the three properties are recorded in the financial
statements as $1.00 ($3.00 in aggregate).
(2) The Company issued 750,000 Shares under the Big Showing Purchase Agreement and a further 750,000 Shares
under the Waverly Tangier Purchase Agreement and a further 750,000 Shares under the River Jordan Purchase
Agreement.
(3) The Special Warrants were issued at the price of $0.25 per Special Warrant.
(4) Of these, 4,563,520 Special Warrants were issued on July 31, 2007 and a further 17,000 Special Warrants were issued
on September 30, 2007.
(5) There will be no outstanding Special Warrants following the deemed exercise of the Special Warrants.
OPTIONS AND OTHER RIGHTS TO PURCHASE SECURITIES
As at the date of this prospectus, there are 680,000 incentive stock options to acquire Common Shares, there are
4,580,520 Special Warrants each exercisable to acquire one Common Share and there are no warrants or other
convertible securities outstanding. Upon completion of the Offering, there will be 680,000 outstanding incentive stock
options to acquire Common Shares, no outstanding Special Warrants and no outstanding share purchase warrants. See
“Plan of Distribution”.
Options
On April 18, 2008, the Board of Directors of the Company adopted an incentive Stock Option Plan (the "Plan")
pursuant to which options may be granted to directors, officers, employees and consultants of the Company. The Plan
may be administered by the Board of Directors of the Company or a committee of the Board of Directors.
The following is a summary of the terms of the Plan:
1.

The number of Common Shares to be reserved and authorized for issuance pursuant to options granted under
the Plan is 10% of the issued and outstanding common shares of the Company from time to time;

2.

Under the Plan, the aggregate number of optioned shares granted to any one optionee in a 12-month period
must not exceed 5% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares;

3.

The number of optioned shares granted to any one consultant in a 12-month period must not exceed 2% of
the issued and outstanding Common Shares. The aggregate number of optioned shares granted to optionees
who are employed to provide investor relations activities must not exceed 1% of the issued and outstanding
shares in any 12-month period while the Company is listed on the CNQ and 2% while the Company is listed
on the TSX Venture Exchange;

4.

While listed on the CNQ, the exercise price for options granted under the Plan will not be less than the market
price of the Common Shares and while listed on the TSX Venture Exchange or any other stock exchange the
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exercise price will not be less than the market price of the Common Shares less the applicable discounts
permitted by the stock exchange on which the Common Shares are listed;
5.

Options will be exercisable for a term of up to five years (if the Company is listed on the CNQ or a TSX
Venture Exchange Tier 2 issuer) or ten years (if the Company is a TSX Venture Exchange Tier 1 issuer),
subject to earlier termination in the event of death or the optionee’s cessation of services to the Company;

6.

Options granted to persons providing investor relations activities will be subject to vesting no more than one
quarter of such options each three months. Otherwise, options will not be subject to any particular vesting
provisions, except as may be stipulated in an optionee’s option agreement and in accordance with the rules of
the stock exchange on which the Common Shares are listed;

7.

Options granted under the Plan are non-assignable, except by will or the laws of descent and distribution; and

8.

The Board of Directors shall have full and exclusive power to interpret the Plan, to adopt such rules,
regulations and guidelines for carrying out the Plan as it may deem necessary or proper, all of which powers
shall be exercised in the best interests of the Company and in keeping with the objectives of the Plan. Any
decision of the Board in the interpretation and administration of the Plan shall lie within its sole and absolute
discretion and shall be final, conclusive and binding on all parties concerned.

As of the date of this Prospectus the Company has granted incentive stock options to purchase a total of 680,000 shares
of the Company at the price of $0.25 per share up to July 7, 2013 to the following persons:.
Name
David Lajack

Director

July 8, 2008

Number of
Shares Subject to
Option
100,000

Wesley Pomeroy

Director

July 8, 2008

100,000

$0.25

July 7, 2013

James McFaull

Director

July 8, 2008

100,000

$0.25

July 7, 2013

Leslie Kjosness

Director

July 8, 2008

100,000

$0.25

July 7, 2013

Leland Voll

Director &
Promoter
Chief Financial
Officer &
Secretary (1)

July 8, 2008

100,000

$0.25

July 7, 2013

July 8, 2008

180,000

$0.25

July 7, 2013

Roxann Eddy
Total

Position With
Company

Date of Grant

Exercise Price

Expiry Date

$0.25

July 7, 2013

680,000

(1) Roxann Eddy is the only executive officer who has been granted incentive stock options.
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Special Warrants
As at the date of this prospectus, the following are the Special Warrants held by all executive officers and past executive
officers of the Company, as a group, all directors and past directors of the Company, as a group, and all consultants of
the Company. No employees or past employees of the Company hold any Special Warrants.
Category

Number Of Special
Warrants
owned before
completion of the
Distribution

Issuance Price
of the Special
Warrants

Exercise Price of
the Special
Warrants

Number and class of
securities owned after
completion of the
Distribution(1)

All executive
officers (1
individual in the
aggregate)

2,000 Special Warrants

$0.25

NIL

2,000 Shares (2)

All directors who
are not also
executive officers
(5 individuals in
the aggregate)

107,500 Special Warrants

$0.25

NIL

107,500 Shares(3)

Nil Special Warrants

$0.25

NIL

Nil Shares

All other
employees (nil)
Totals
(1)
(2)
(3)

109,500 Special Warrants

109,500 Special
Warrants
Shares owned beneficially. All of such shares will be owned of record after deemed exercise of Special
Warrants.
This number does not include the 2,025,000 Shares which are held by William Murray who is also an executive
officer but who does not own any Special Warrants.
This number includes 500 Shares to be issued to Leland Voll, a director of the Company, on the deemed
exercise of the 500 Special Warrants held by him, but does not include the 225,000 Shares which are held by
Leland Voll.
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PRIOR SALES
The following table summarizes the shares and special warrants which have been issued by the Company since the date
of the incorporation (February 14, 2003):
Date

Number of Securities

Type of Securities

Issue Price

Purpose of Issuance

February 14, 2003

1 (1)

Common Shares

$0.01

Issued on incorporation

February 14, 2003

750,000(2)

Common Shares

$0.01 (5)

Issued for property
acquisition.

March 15, 2004

750,000(3)

Common Shares

$0.01 (5)

Issued for property
acquisition.

June 7, 2007

750,000(4)

Common Shares

$0.01 (5)

Issued for property
acquisition.

July 31, 2007

4,563,520

Special Warrants

$0.25

Private Placement

September 30, 2007

17,000 (2)

Special Warrants

$0.25

Private Placement

-2,250,000 Common
Total Issued and
Shares and
Outstanding
-4,580,520 Special
Warrants
(1) Returned to the Company for cancellation on February 14, 2003.
(2) These Common Shares were issued to the founders of the Company, William Murray and Leland Voll, in
consideration for the acquisition of their Big Showing Property. See “The Business of the Company – Description
and General Development”.
(3) These Common Shares were issued to the founders of the Company, William Murray and Leland Voll, in
consideration for the acquisition of their Waverly Tangier Property. See “The Business of the Company –
Description and General Development”.
(4) These Common Shares were issued to the founders of the Company, William Murray and Leland Voll, in
consideration for the acquisition of their River Jordan Property. See “The Business of the Company – Description
and General Development”.
(5) Although the shares forming each set of 750,000 shares issued as consideration for the three properties of the
Company were issued at the price of $0.01 per share, each set of 750,000 shares is recorded in the financial
statements at $1.00, that is, $3.00 in aggregate for the three set of 750,000 shares (2,250,000 shares in aggregate).
ESCROWED SECURITIES
Pursuant to the Canadian Securities Administrators’ National Policy 46-201 (“NP 46-201”), securities held by principals
of the Company are held in escrow pursuant to NP 46-201 for a period of time following the Company’s offering as an
incentive for the principals to devote their time and attention to the Company’s business while they are securityholders.
Principals include all persons or companies that, on the completion of the Company’s offering, fall into one of the
following categories:
a)
b)
c)
d)

Promoters of the Company during the two years preceding the offering;
Directors and senior officers of the Company or the directors and senior officers of a material operating
subsidiary of the Company;
Those who own and/or control more than 20% of the Company’s voting securities immediately before or after
completion of the offering;
Those who own and/or control more than 10% of the Company’s voting securities immediately before or after
completion of the Offering if they also have appointed or have the right to appoint one or more of the
Company’s directors or senior officers or one or more of the directors or senior officers of a material operating
subsidiary;
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e)
f)

Associates and affiliates of any of the above; and
A principal’s spouse and their relatives that live at the same address as the principal will also be treated as
principals.

William Murray, Leland Voll and Wesley Pomeroy will be required to enter into an escrow agreement (the “Escrow
Agreement”) with the Company and Pacific Corporate Trust Company, as escrow agent, effective the date of
completion of the Offering. The other directors and senior officers of the Company are not subject to escrow pursuant
to NP 46-201 as their holdings of securities of the Company individually carry less than 1% of the voting rights attached
to the Company’s securities that are issued and outstanding on a fully diluted basis.
Accordingly, a total of 2,352,000 Shares (the “Escrowed Shares”, also called the “Escrowed Securities”) held by the
Principals listed below will be deposited into escrow on closing of the Offering pursuant to NP 46-201 and the Escrow
Agreement, as follows:
Name

William Murray(3)(5)
Leland Voll(3)(5)
Wesley Pomeroy
Totals
(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)

Number of Shares In
Escrow
(At completion of
Offering) (1)
2,025,000
225,500(4)
102,000
2,352,500

Percentage of Outstanding
Shares In Escrow
(At completion of Offering) (1)
29.64%
3.30%
1.49%

Percentage of Outstanding
Shares In Escrow
(At completion of Offering On
A Fully Diluted Basis) (2)
26.96%
3.00%
1.36%
31.32%(2)

At the completion of the Offering, there will be 6,830,520 Shares issued and outstanding.
Based on 7,511,520 shares on a fully diluted basis.
Each of William Murray and Leland Voll is a promoter of the Company.
Prior to the Offering, Leland Voll held 225,000 Shares and 500 Special Warrants.
Each of William Murray and Leland Voll will receive additional common shares pursuant to the Company’s
acquisition of certain mining properties. Refer to "BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY - Significant Acquisitions and
Significant Dispositions”. These shares will be deemed to be additional “escrow securities”, subject to the same
restrictions as disclosed herein for “escrow shares”.

As the Company will be considered an ‘emerging issuer’ as that term is defined under the National Policy 46-201, a
principal’s escrowed securities will be released according to the following schedule:
On the date the Company’s Shares are listed on a Canadian
exchange (the “listing date”)

1/10 of the escrowed securities

6 months after the listing date

1/6 of the remaining escrowed securities

12 months after the listing date

1/5 of the remaining escrowed securities

18 months after the listing date

1/4 of the remaining escrowed securities

24 months after the listing date

1/3 of the remaining escrowed securities

30 months after the listing date

1/2 of the remaining escrowed securities

36 months after the listing date
the remaining escrowed securities
*In the simplest case, where there are no changes to the escrow securities initially deposited and no additional
escrow securities, the release schedule outlined above results in the escrow securities being released in equal
tranches of 15% after completion of the release on the listing date.
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PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS
The following table sets out the number of Shares and Special Warrants owned by our principal shareholders as at the
date of this prospectus, including the number of all classes of securities to be owned by the principal shareholders after
the exercise or deemed exercise of the Special Warrants and the percentages of each class of securities known to the
Company to be owned by the principal shareholders before and after the completion of the distribution contemplated
hereunder. The securities are owned of record and beneficially.
Name of
Principal Shareholder

Number and class
of securities owned
before
completion of the
Offering

Percentage
of class
before
completion
of the
Offering (1)

Number and class of
securities owned after
completion of the
Offering(2)

Percentage of class
after completion of
the Offering (2)

William Murray,
President, CEO,
Director & Promoter (3)

2,025,000 Shares(4)
Nil Special Warrants

90.00%
Nil%

2,025,000 Shares
Nil Special Warrants

29.64% Shares
Nil% Special
Warrants

Leland Voll,
Director & Promoter (5)

225,000 Shares(4)
500 Special Warrants

10.00%
0.01%

225,500 Shares
Nil Special Warrants

3.30% Shares
Nil% Special
Warrants

Nil Shares
102,000 Special
Warrants

Nil%
2.09%

102,000 Shares
Nil Special Warrants

1.49% Shares
Nil% Special
Warrants

Wesley Pomeroy,
Director

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)

Based on 2,250,000 issued and outstanding Shares prior to the completion of the Offering.
Following the completion of the Offering there will be 6,831,520 Shares outstanding.
Each of William Murray and Leland Voll is a promoter.
These shares were issued in consideration for the Big Showing Property, the Waverly Tangier Property and the
River Jordan Property.
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DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS
Name, Address, Occupation and Security Holdings
The following table sets out information regarding each of our directors and executive officers, including the
municipality of residence, the position and office held and the period of time served in this position, their principal
occupation for the previous 5 years, and the number and percentage of securities beneficially owned, directly or
indirectly, or over which control or direction is exercised.
Name, Municipality
of Residence and
Position held

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)

Date Appointed
Principal Occupation in the previous 5 years

Number (and
Percentage) of Securities
Held(1)(2)

William Murray (4)
Canoe, BC, Canada,
President, CEO,
Director & Promoter

February 14, 2003

- President, CEO and a Director of the
Company since February 2003.
-Prospector

2,025,000 Shares
(90.00%)
Nil Special Warrants
(Nil%)

James McFaull (5) (6)
Whitehorse, Yukon,
Canada,
Director

October 1, 2006

- Exploration and Production Geologist

Nil Shares
(Nil%)
Nil Special Warrants
(Nil%)
225,000 Shares
(10%)
500 Special Warrants
(0.01%)

Leland Voll,
Wainwright, Alberta,
Canada
Director and Promoter

November 1, 2006

- Mechanic

Wesley Pomeroy (3) (5)
Centennial, Colorado,
USA,
Director

December 1, 2006

- Geologist for several oil and gas
companies.

Nil Shares
(Nil%)
102,000 Special Warrants
(2.23%)

Leslie Kjosness (3) (5)
Langley, BC, Canada,
Director

May 24, 2007

- President of Golden Arch Resources Ltd..,
a mineral exploration company listed on the
TSX Venture Exchange.

Nil Shares
(Nil%)
Nil Special Warrants
(Nil%)

David Lajack (3) (6)
Tucson, Arizona, USA,
Director

May 24, 2007

- Geologist for Andover Ventures Inc., a
mineral exploration company listed on the
TSX Venture Exchange.

Nil Shares
(Nil%)
5,000 Special Warrants
(0.11%)

Roxann Eddy (4)
Kelowna, BC, Canada,
CFO & Secretary

January 1, 2004

- Commercial Insurance Broker

Nil Shares
(Nil%)
2,000 Special Warrants
(0.044%)

Calculated based on the total number of securities issued and outstanding at the date of this prospectus.
The Shares held by Messrs. Murray and Voll and the Shares to be issued to Mr. Voll on the exercise of the Special
Warrants are to be held in escrow. See “Escrowed Securities” at page 58 for further information.
Member of our Audit Committee.
Member of the Disclosure Committee.
Member of the Compensation Committee.
Member of the Technical Committee.
All of our directors will hold office until the next annual general meeting of our shareholders.
As at the date of this prospectus, the Company had a total of 2,250,000 Shares and 4,580,520 Special Warrants issued
and outstanding, of which the directors and executive officers of the Company owned or held control or direction over,
as a group, directly or indirectly, 2,250,000 Shares (equal to 100% of the issued and outstanding shares) and 109,500
Special Warrants (equal to 2.39% of the issued and outstanding Special Warrants). Upon the exercise or deemed exercise
of the Special Warrants, the directors and senior officers will own as a group, directly or indirectly, an aggregate of
2,359,500 Shares which will represent 34.54% of the then outstanding Shares.
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Corporate Cease Trade Orders or Bankruptcies
None of our directors, officers or principal shareholders is, or has been within the last 10 years, a director or officer of
any other issuer that, while that person was acting in that capacity, was the subject of a cease trade or similar order or an
order that denied the issuer access to any statutory exemptions for a period of more than 30 consecutive days or became
bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject to or instituted any
proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold
the assets of that issuer.
Penalties or Sanctions
None of our directors, officers or principal shareholders are, or have been, the subject of any penalties or sanctions
imposed by a court relating to Canadian securities legislation or by a Canadian securities regulatory authority or has
entered into a settlement agreement with a Canadian securities regulatory authority or been subject to any other penalties
or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body that would be likely to be considered important to a reasonable
investor making an investment decision.
Personal Bankruptcies
None of our directors, officers or principal shareholders, or personal holding company of such persons, has, within the
last 10 years, become bankrupt or made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or been
subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager
or trustee appointed to hold its assets.
Conflicts of Interest
The transactions in which directors, senior officers, promoters or principal holders of our securities have had an interest
in are described under the headings “Interest of Management and Others in Material Transactions”, “Stock Options”
and “Executive Compensation”. Other than as described under these headings, there are no material transactions with
the directors, senior officers, promoters or principal holders of our securities that have occurred since incorporation.
Certain of our directors and officers also serve as directors and/or officers of companies which may enter into contracts
with the Company in the future. In the event that this occurs, a conflict of interest will exist. Directors in a conflict of
interest position are required to disclose such conflicts to the Company.
Management of Junior Issuers
The persons forming our management team and our directors and officers are described briefly below.
William Murray, age 63, is the President, Chief Executive Officer a Director of the Company and a Promoter of the
Company. Mr. Murray completed Grade X at Kelowna Senior High in June 1962. Mr. Murray provides management
services to the Company and expects to devote 70% of this time to the Company. Mr. Murray has been in the mining
industry for the past 18 years as a prospector. He is also the founding member and President of Alaska Ventures Inc. a
private exploration company that holds mining properties in the state of Alaska.
Leland Voll, age 53, is a Director of the Company and a Promoter of the Company. Mr. Voll graduated from grade 12 in
1975. Mr. Voll expects to devote 5% of his time to the Company. Mr. Voll has owned his own Automotive Shop and is
currently in a supervisory and training position with his current employer, Penn West Energy Trust, which is involved in
the oil and natural gas industry.
James McFaull, age 55, is a director of the Company. Mr. McFaull expects to devote 5% of his time to the Company. Mr.
McFaull graduated from the University of British Columbia in 1976 with a Bachelor of Science Degree (Geology). Mr.
McFaull has been a Exploration and Production Geologist for the past 35 years. His work led to the discovery of seven
ore bodies, which became four open pits and three underground mines.
Wesley Pomeroy, age 54, is a director of the Company. Mr. Pomeroy expects to devote 5% of his time to the Company.
Mr. Pomeroy graduated from the Colorado State University with a Bachelor of Science Degree (Geology) in August
1977 and from the University of Colorado with an MBA in Finance in December 1990. He has been a member of the
American Association of Petroleum Geologists (AAPG) and the Rocky Mountain Association of Geologists (RMAG)
since August 1977, and a certified State of Wyoming Professional Geologist since September 1998. Mr. Pomeroy has
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played an active role as a Geologist in the Oil & Gas Industry for the past 30 years. Mr. Pomeroy also serves as a
Director of Metalline Mining Company, an American Stock Exchange listed company with properties in Mexico.
Leslie Einar Kjosness, age 59, is a director of the Company. Mr. Kjosness completed grade 11 in Edmonton in 1967. Mr.
Kjosness expects to devote 5% of his time to the Company. Mr. Kjosness is President and Director of Golden Arch
Resources Ltd. a junior mining company listed on the TSX. He is the President and founder of Paragon Drywall &
Plastering Ltd., specializing in structural steel framing, interior design and finishing for commercial and residential
projects, including schools, hospitals and condominium towers.
David Lajack, age 54, is a director of the Company. Mr. Lajack expects to devote 5% of his time to the Company. Mr.
Lajack has worked as a consultant in the industry and has co-authored published papers on geology and geochemistry.
Mr. Lajack received his Bachelor of Science from Central Michigan University in 1996. He has been self-employed as a
geologist since 1997. He has worked in lode mineral exploration since the early 1980’s. He is a founding member and
President of Royal Pretoria Gold Ltd., a private exploration company. Mr. Lajack is also a director and officer of several
TSX Venture listed companies, namely a director of Geo Minerals Ltd., a director and Chief Operating Officer of
Andover Venture Inc., and a director of Alix Resources Inc.
Roxann Eddy, age 44, is the Chief Financial Officer and Secretary of the Company. Ms. Eddy graduated from Grade XII
from Salmon Arm Senior High in 1982. She obtained her CAIB Level 2 License, Insurance Brokers in 1996 and
completed Leels 1 and 2 of Basic Accounting at Okanagan College in Salmon Arm in 2008. Ms. Eddy expects to devote
70% of her time to the Company. Ms. Eddy has been in the Insurance Industry for the past 23 years as a Commercial
Insurance Broker. The last 15 years her portfolio consisted of working with clients in the Forest Industry.
See “Directors and Officers – Name, Address, Occupation and Security Holdings” for further information about our
directors and executive officers.
EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Compensation of Named Executive Officers
Set out below are particulars of the compensation paid to the Named Executive Officers of the Company. Named
Executive Officers are:
(a)

the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, despite the amount of compensation
of that individual;

(b)

each of the Company’s three most highly compensated executive officers, other than the CEO and CFO,
who were serving as executive officers at the end of the most recently completed financial year and whose
total salary and bonus exceeds $150,000 per year; and

(c)

any additional individuals for whom disclosure would have been provided under (b) but for the fact that
the individual was not serving as an executive officer of the Company at the end of the most recently
completed financial year.

As at December 31, 2007, the end of the most recently completed financial year of the Company, the Company had two
named Executive Officers, William Murray and Roxann Eddy. Their positions within the Company are set out in the
summary of compensation table below.
Summary of Compensation
The following table is a summary of compensation paid to the Named Executive Officers for each of the Company’s
two most recently completed financial years.
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Annual Compensation
Name and principle
position of Named
Executive Officer

Long Term Compensation
Awards

Financial
Year(1)

Salary

Bonus

Payouts

Other
Annual
Compensation

Securities
Under
Options /
SARs(2)
Granted

Restricted
Shares or
Restricted
Share Units

LTIP(3)
Pay-Outs

All
Other
Compensation

William Murray
Chief Executive
Officer and
President (4)

2007

$30,000 (6)

$NIL

$NIL

$NIL

$NIL

$NIL

$NIL

William Murray
Chief Executive
Officer and
President (4)

2006

$30,000 (6)

$Nil

$Nil

$Nil

$Nil

$Nil

$Nil

William Murray
Chief Executive
Officer and
President (4)

2005

$30,000 (6)

$Nil

$Nil

$Nil

$Nil

$Nil

$Nil

Roxann Eddy
Chief Financial
Officer and
Secretary (5)

2007

$7,500

$Nil

$Nil

$Nil

$Nil

$Nil

$Nil

Roxann Eddy
Chief Financial
Officer and
Secretary (5)

2006

$Nil

$Nil

$Nil

$Nil

$Nil

$Nil

$Nil

2005
$Nil
$Nil
$Nil
$Nil
$Nil
$Nil
$Nil
Roxann Eddy
Chief Financial
Officer and
Secretary (5)
(1) The Company’s financial year-end is December 31.
(2) Stock Appreciation Rights.
(3) Long term incentive plans.
(4) William Murray became the Chief Executive Office and President on February 14, 2003.
(5) Roxann Eddy became the Chief Financial Officer and Secretary effective January 1, 2004.
(6) This amount was paid pursuant to a Management Services Agreement dated July 1, 2004 which was amended and
restated as of April 1, 2008. From July 1, 2004 to March 31, 2008, the Company was to pay Mr. Murray $2,500 per
month plus GST and as of April 1, 2008 the Company is to pay Mr. Murray $7,000 per month (without GST). See
“Interest of Management & Others In Materials Transactions” at page 81 and “Material Contracts” at page82.
Long-Term Incentive Plans, Options and SARs
Awards in Most Recently Completed Financial Year
During the most recently completed financial year, there were no incentive stock options or SARs (stock appreciation
rights) granted to the Named Executive Officers. The Company has no long-term incentive plans in place and therefore
there were no awards made under any long-term incentive plan to the Named Executive Officers. A "Long-Term
Incentive Plan" is a plan under which awards are made based on performance over a period longer than one financial
year, other than a plan for options, SARs (stock appreciation rights) or restricted share compensation.
Options and SARs
The Company has an aggregate of 680,000 incentive stock options outstanding. No SARs have been granted since the
Company’s incorporation.

65
Termination of Employment, Change in Responsibilities and Employment Contracts
There are no other compensatory plans or arrangements with respect to the Named Executive Officers resulting from
the resignation, retirement or other termination of employment or from a change of control of the Company.
Compensation of Directors
The Company has no standard arrangement pursuant to which directors are compensated by the Company for their
services in their capacity as directors, except for the granting from time to time of incentive stock options. Currently, an
aggregate of 500,000 incentive stock options have been granted to directors.
INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
None of our directors and executive officers and their associates were indebted to us during the financial year ended
December 31, 2007 or up to the most recent quarter ended September 30, 2008.
AUDIT COMMITTEE AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Audit Committee
National Instrument 52-110 of the Canadian Securities Administrators (“NI52-110”) requires the Company, as a venture
issuer, to disclose annually in its Information Circular certain information concerning the constitution of its Audit
Committee and its relationship with its independent auditor, as set forth in the following:
The Audit Committee’s Charter
National Instrument 52-110 - Audit Committees (“NI 52-110”) relating to the composition and function of audit
committees was implemented on March 17, 2008. The Instrument requires all affected issuers to have a written audit
committee Charter.
This Charter has been adopted by the board of directors in order to comply with the Instrument and to more properly
define the role of the Committee in the oversight of the financial reporting process of the Company. Nothing in this
Charter is intended to restrict the ability of the board of directors or Committee to alter or vary procedures in order to
comply more fully with the Instrument, as amended from time to time.
PART 1
Purpose:
The purpose of the Committee is to:

1.1

(a)

improve the quality of the Company's financial reporting;

(b)

assist the board of directors to properly and fully discharge its responsibilities;

(c)

provide an avenue of enhanced communication between the directors and external auditors;

(d)

enhance the external auditor's independence;

(e)

increase the credibility and objectivity of financial reports; and

(f)

strengthen the role of the directors by facilitating in depth discussions between directors, management
and external auditors.

Definitions

"accounting principles" has the meaning ascribed to it in National Instrument 52-107 Acceptable Accounting
Principles, Auditing Standards and Reporting Currency;
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“AIF” has the meaning ascribed to it in National Instrument 51-102;
"Associate" when used to indicate a relationship with a person, means:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

an issuer of which the person beneficially owns or controls, directly or indirectly, voting securities
entitling him to more than 10 percent of the voting rights attached to all outstanding voting securities
of the issuer;
any partner of the person;
any trust or estate in which the person has a substantial beneficial interest or in respect of which the
person serves as trustee or in a similar capacity; and
in the case of a person who is an individual:
(i)
that person's spouse or child, or
(ii)
any relative of that person or of his spouse who has the same residence as that Person;

"audit services" means the professional services rendered by the Company's external auditor for the audit and review of
the Company's financial statements or services that are normally provided by the external auditor in connection with
statutory and regulatory filings or engagements;
"Charter" means this audit committee charter;
“Audit Committee” means the committee (or an equivalent body) established by and among the board of directors of
the Company for the purpose of overseeing the accounting and financial reporting processes of the Company and audits
of the financial statements of the Company, and, if no such committee exists, the entire board of directors of the
Company;
"Control Person" means any Person that holds or is one of a combination of Persons that holds a sufficient number of
any of the securities of an issuer so as to affect materially the control of that issuer, or that holds more than 20% of the
outstanding voting shares of an issuer except where there is evidence showing that the holder of those securities does
not materially affect the control of the issuer.
“Company” has that meaning as set out above.
“executive officer” means an individual who is:
(a)

a chair of the entity;

(b)

a vice-chair of the entity;

(c)

the president of the entity;

(d)

a vice-president of the entity in charge of a principal business unit, division or function including
sales, finance or production;

(e)

an officer of the entity or any of its subsidiary entities who performs a policy-making function in
respect of the entity; or

(f)

any other individual who performs a policy-making function in respect of the entity;

"immediate family member" means an individual's spouse, parent, child, sibling, mother or father-in-law, son or
daughter-in-law, brother or sister-in-law, and anyone (other than an employee of either the individual or the individual's
immediate family member) who shares the individual's home;
“independence” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.3;
"MD&A" has the meaning ascribed to it in National Instrument 51-102;
“NI 52-110” means National Instrument 52-110 - Audit Committees;
"National Instrument 51-102" means National Instrument 51-102 Continuous Disclosure Obligations;

67

"non-audit services" means services other than audit services;
“SEC foreign issuer” has the meaning ascribed to it in National Instrument 71-102 Continuous Disclosure and Other
Exemptions Relating to Foreign Issuers; and
“venture issuer” means an issuer that, at the end of its most recently completed financial year, did not have any of its
securities listed or quoted on any of the Toronto Stock Exchange, a U.S. marketplace or a marketplace outside of
Canada and the United States of America other than the Alternative Investment Market of the London Stock Exchange
or the PLUS markets operated by the PLUS Markets Group plc.
1.2

Meaning of Affiliated Entity, Subsidiary Entity and Control
(1)

For the purposes of this Instrument, a person or company is considered to be an affiliated entity of
another person or company if
(a)

one of them controls or is controlled by the other or if both persons or companies are
controlled by the same person or company, or

(b)

the person is an individual who is
(i) both a director and an employee of an affiliated entity, or
(ii) an executive officer, general partner or managing member of an affiliated entity.

(2)

For the purposes of this Instrument, a person or company is considered to be a subsidiary entity of
another person or company if
(a)

(b)

it is controlled by,
(i)

that other, or

(ii)

that other and one or more persons or companies each of which is controlled by
that other, or

(iii)

two or more persons or companies, each of which is controlled by that other; or

it is a subsidiary entity of a person or company that is the other’s subsidiary entity.

(3)

For the purpose of this Instrument, “control” means the direct or indirect power to direct or cause
the direction of the management and policies of a person or company, whether through ownership of
voting securities or otherwise.

(4)

Despite subsection (1), an individual will not be considered to control an issuer for the purposes of
this Instrument if the individual:
(a)

owns, directly or indirectly, ten per cent or less of any class of voting securities of the issuer;
and

(b)

is not an executive officer of the issuer.

1.3

Meaning of Independence

(1)

An audit committee member is independent if he or she has no direct or indirect material relationship with the
Company.

(2)

For the purposes of subsection (1), a “material relationship” means is a relationship which could, in the view of
the Company’s board of directors, be reasonably expected to interfere with the exercise of an audit committee
member's independent judgement.
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(3)

Despite subsection (2) the following individuals are considered to have a material relationship with the
Company:
(a)

an individual who is, or has been within the last three years, an employee or executive officer of the
Company;

(b)

an individual whose immediate family member is, or has been within the last three years, an executive
officer of the Company;

(c)

an individual who:

(d)

(4)

(a)

is a partner of a firm that is the Company’s internal or external auditor;

(ii)

is an employee of that firm; or

(iii)

was within the last three years a partner or employee of that firm and personally worked on
the Company’s audit within that time;

an individual whose spouse, minor child or stepchild, or child or stepchild who shares a home with
the individual:
(i)

is a partner of a firm that is the issuer's internal or external auditor;

(ii)

is an employee of that firm and participates in its audit, assurance or tax compliance (but not
tax planning) practice; or

(iii)

was within the last three years a partner or employee of that firm and personally worked on
the issuer's audit within that time;

(e)

an individual who, or whose immediate family member, is or has been within the last three years, an
executive officer of an entity if any of the Company’s current executive officers serves or served at
that same time on the entity's compensation committee; and

(f)

an individual who received, or whose immediate family member who is employed as an executive
officer of the issuer received, more than $75,000 in direct compensation from the issuer during any 12
month period within the last three years.

Despite subsection (3), an individual will not be considered to have a material relationship with the Company
solely because:
(a)

he or she had a relationship identified in subsection (3) if that relationship ended before March 30,
2004; or

(b)

he or she had a relationship identified in subsection (3) by virtue of subsection (8) if that relationship
ended before June 30, 2005.

(5)

For the purposes of clauses (3)(c) and (3)(d), a partner does not include a fixed income partner whose interest
in the firm that is the internal or external auditor is limited to the receipt of fixed amounts of compensation
(including deferred compensation) for prior service with that firm if the compensation is not contingent in any
way on continued service.

(6)

For the purposes of clause (3)(f), direct compensation does not include:
(a)

remuneration for acting as a member of the board of directors or of any board committee of the
issuer, and
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(b)

(7)

the receipt of fixed amounts of compensation under a retirement plan (including deferred
compensation) for prior service with the issuer if the compensation is not contingent in any way on
continued service.

Despite subsection (3), an individual will not be considered to have a material relationship with the Company
solely because the individual or his or her immediate family member:
(a)

has previously acted as an interim chief executive officer of the Company; or

(b)

acts, or has previously acted, as a chair or vice-chair of the board of directors or of any board
committee of the Company on a part-time basis.

(8)

For the purpose of section 1.3, the Company includes a subsidiary entity of the Company and a parent of the
Company.

1.4

Additional Independence Requirements

(1)

Despite any determination made under section 1.3, an individual who
(a)

accepts, directly or indirectly, any consulting, advisory or other compensatory fee from the Company
or any subsidiary entity of the Company, other than as remuneration for acting in his or her capacity
as a member of the board of directors or any board committee, or as a part-time chair or vice-chair of
the board or any board committee; or

(b)

is an affiliated entity of the Company or any of its subsidiary entities,

is considered to have a material relationship with the Company.
(2)

For the purposes of subsection (1), the indirect acceptance by an individual of any consulting, advisory or other
compensatory fee includes acceptance of a fee by:
(a)

an individual's spouse, minor child or stepchild, or a child or stepchild who shares the individual's
home; or

(b)

an entity in which such individual is a partner, member, an officer such as a managing director
occupying a comparable position or executive officer, or occupies a similar position (except limited
partners, non-managing members and those occupying similar positions who, in each case, have no
active role in providing services to the entity) and which provides accounting, consulting, legal,
investment banking or financial advisory services to the Company or any subsidiary entity of the
Company.

(3)

For the purposes of subsection (1), compensatory fees do not include the receipt of fixed amounts of
compensation under a retirement plan (including deferred compensation) for prior service with the Company if
the compensation is not contingent in any way on continued service.

1.5

Meaning of Financial Literacy

For the purposes of this Instrument, an individual is financially literate if he or she has the ability to read and understand
a set of financial statements that present a breadth and level of complexity of accounting issues that are generally
comparable to the breadth and complexity of the issues that can reasonably be expected to be raised by the Company’s
financial statements.
PART 2
2.1

Audit Committee

(1)

The board of directors has hereby established the Audit Committee for, among other purposes, compliance
with the Instrument.
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(2)

The board of directors, after each annual securityholders' meeting, must appoint or re-appoint its Audit
Committee.

2.2

Relationship with External Auditors

The Company will henceforth require its external auditor to report directly to the Audit Committee and the audit
committee members shall ensure that such is the case.
2.3

Audit Committee Responsibilities

(1)

The Audit Committee must have a written charter that sets out its mandate and responsibilities.

(2)

The Audit Committee must recommend to the board of directors:
(a)

the external auditor to be nominated for the purpose of preparing or issuing an auditor’s report or
performing other audit, review or attest services for the Company; and

(b)

the compensation of the external auditor.

(3)

The Audit Committee must be directly responsible for overseeing the work of the external auditor engaged for
the purpose of preparing or issuing an auditor’s report or performing other audit, review or attest services for
the Company, including the resolution of disagreements between management and the external auditor
regarding financial reporting.

(4)

The Audit Committee must pre-approve all non-audit services to be provided to the Company or its subsidiary
entities by the Company’s external auditor.

(5)

The Audit Committee must review the Company’s financial statements, MD&A and annual and interim
earnings press releases before the Company publicly discloses this information.

(6)

The Audit Committee must be satisfied that adequate procedures are in place for the review of the Company’s
public disclosure of financial information extracted or derived from the Company’s financial statements, other
than the public disclosure referred to in subsection (5), and must periodically assess the adequacy of those
procedures.

(7)

The Audit Committee must establish procedures for:
(a)

the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints received by the Company regarding accounting,
internal accounting controls, or auditing matters; and

(b)

the confidential, anonymous submission by employees of the Company of concerns regarding
questionable accounting or auditing matters.

(8)

The Audit Committee must review and approve the Company’s hiring policies regarding partners, employees
and former partners and employees of the present and former external auditor of the Company.

2.4

De Minimis Non-Audit Services

The Audit Committee shall satisfy the pre-approval requirement in subsection 2.3(4) if:
(a)

the aggregate amount of all the non-audit services that were not pre-approved is reasonably expected
to constitute no more than five per cent of the total amount of fees paid by the Company and its
subsidiary entities to the Company's external auditor during the financial year in which the services are
provided;

(b)

the Company or the subsidiary of the Company, as the case may be, did not recognize the services as
non-audit services at the time of the engagement; and
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(c)

the services are promptly brought to the attention of the Audit Committee and approved, prior to the
completion of the audit, by the Audit Committee or by one or more of its members to whom
authority to grant such approvals has been delegated by the Audit Committee.

2.5

Delegation of Pre -Approval Function

(1)

The Audit Committee may delegate to one or more independent audit committee members the authority to
pre-approve non-audit services in satisfaction of the requirement in subsection 2.3(4).

(2)

The pre-approval of non-audit services by any audit committee member to whom authority has been delegated
pursuant to subsection (1) must be presented to the Audit Committee at its first scheduled meeting following
such pre-approval.

2.6

Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

The Audit Committee satisfies the pre-approval requirement in subsection 2.3(4) if it adopts specific policies and
procedures for the engagement of the non-audit services, if:
(a)

the pre-approval policies and procedures are detailed as to the particular service;

(b)

the Audit Committee is informed of each non-audit service; and

(c)

the procedures do not include delegation of the Audit Committee’s responsibilities to management.
PART 3

3.1

Composition

(1)

The Audit Committee shall be composed of a minimum of three members.

(2)

Every audit committee member shall be a director of the Company.

(3)

Subject to sections 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.5 and 3.6, every audit committee member must be independent, unless the
Company is a venture issuer, in which case the majority of the audit committee members must not be officers
or employees or Control Persons of the Company or of its Associates or affiliates of the Company.

(4)

Subject to sections 3.5 and 3.8, every audit committee member must be financially literate unless the Company
is a venture issuer, in which case:
(a)

if any audit committee member is the Chief Financial Officer, then that audit committee member
must be financially literate; and

(b)

the majority of the audit committee members must be financially literate.

3.2

Initial Public Offerings

(1)

Subject to section 3.9, if the Company has filed a prospectus to qualify the distribution of securities that
constitutes its initial public offering, subsection 3.1(3) does not apply for a period of up to 90 days
commencing on the date of the receipt for the prospectus, provided that one member of the audit committee is
independent.

(2)

Subject to section 3.9, if the Company has filed a prospectus to qualify the distribution of securities that
constitutes its initial public offering, subsection 3.1(3) does not apply for a period of up to one year
commencing on the date of the receipt for the prospectus, provided that a majority of the audit committee
members are independent.
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3.3

Controlled Companies

(1)

An audit committee member that sits on the board of directors of an affiliated entity is exempt from the
requirement in subsection 3.1(3) if the member, except for being a director (or member of a board committee)
of the issuer and the affiliated entity, is otherwise independent of the Company and the affiliated entity.

(2)

Subject to section 3.7, an audit committee member is exempt from the requirement in subsection 3.1(3) if:

3.4

(a)

the audit committee member would be independent of the Company but for the relationship
described in paragraph 1.5(1)(b) or as a result of subsection 1.4(8);

(b)

the audit committee member is not an executive officer, general partner or managing member of a
person or company that
(i)

is an affiliated entity of the Company, and

(ii)

has its securities trading on a marketplace;

(c)

the audit committee member is not an immediate family member of an executive officer, general
partner or managing member referred to in paragraph (b), above;

(d)

the audit committee member does not act as the chair of the audit committee; and

(e)

the board determines in its reasonable judgement that
(i)

the member is able to exercise the impartial judgement necessary for the member to fulfill
his or her responsibilities as an audit committee member, and

(ii)

the appointment of the member is required by the best interests of the issuer and its
shareholders.

Events Outside Control of Member

Subject to section 3.9, if an audit committee member ceases to be independent for reasons outside the audit committee
member’s reasonable control, the member is exempt from the requirement in subsection 3.1(3) for a period ending on
the later of:

3.5

(a)

the next annual meeting of the Company, and

(b)

the date that is six months from the occurrence of the event which caused the audit committee
member to not be independent.

Death, Disability or Resignation of Member

Subject to section 3.9, if the death, disability or resignation of an audit committee member has resulted in a vacancy on
the audit committee that the board of directors is required to fill, an audit committee member appointed to fill such
vacancy is exempt from the requirements in subsections 3.1(3) and 3.1(4) for a period ending on the later of:

3.6

(a)

the next annual meeting of the issuer, and

(b)

the date that is six months from the day the vacancy was created.

Temporary Exemption for Limited and Exceptional Circumstances

Subject to section 3.7, an audit committee member is exempt from the requirement in subsection 3.1(3) if:
(a)

the audit committee member is not an individual described in paragraphs subsection 1.5(1);
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3.7

(b)

the audit committee member is not an employee or officer of the issuer, or an immediate family
member of an employee or officer of the issuer;

(c)

the board, under exceptional and limited circumstances, determines in its reasonable judgement that:
(i)

the audit committee member is able to exercise the impartial judgement necessary for the
member to fulfill his or her responsibilities as an audit committee member, and

(ii)

the appointment of the audit committee member is required by the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders;

(d)

the audit committee member does not act as chair of the Audit Committee; and

(e)

the audit committee member does not rely upon this exemption for a period of more than two years.

Majority Independent

The exemptions in subsection 3.3(2) and section 3.6 are not available to an audit committee member unless a majority of
the audit committee members would be independent.
3.8

Acquisition of Financial Literacy

Subject to section 3.9, an audit committee member who is not financially literate may be appointed to the Audit
Committee provided that the audit committee member becomes financially literate within a reasonable period of time
following his or her appointment.
3.9

Restriction on Use of Certain Exemptions

The exemptions in sections 3.2, 3.4, 3.5 and 3.8 are not available to an audit committee member unless the Company’s
board of directors has determined that the reliance on the exemption will not materially adversely affect the ability of the
audit committee to act independently and to satisfy the other requirements of NI 52-110.
PART 4
4.1

Authority

The Audit Committee shall have the authority to:
(a)

to engage independent counsel and other advisors as it determines necessary to carry out its duties,

(b)

to set and pay the compensation for any advisors employed by the Audit Committee, and

(c)

to communicate directly with the internal and external auditors.
PART 5

5.1

Disclosure in Annual Information Form

If the Company is not a venture issuer, then it must include in its AIF the disclosure required by Form 52-110F1.
5.2

Disclosure in Information Circular

If the Company is not a venture issuer, then if management of the Company solicits proxies from the security holders of
the Company for the purpose of electing directors to the issuer’s board of directors, the Company must include in its
management information circular a cross-reference to the sections in the Company’s AIF that contain the information
required by section 5.1.
PART 6
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6.1

Required Disclosure

(1)

If the Company is a venture issuer and if management of the Company solicits proxies from the security
holders of the Company for the purpose of electing directors to the board of directors, the Company must
include in its management information circular the disclosure required by Form 52-110F2.

(2)

If the Company is a venture issuer and if the Company is not required to send a management information
circular to its security holders, then it must provide the disclosure required by Form 52-110F2 in its AIF or
annual MD&A.
PART 7

7.1

Chair

The audit committee members must elect a chair from among their number.
PART 8
8.1

Meetings

1.

Meetings of the Audit Committee shall be scheduled to take place at regular intervals and, in any event, not less
frequently than quarterly.

2.

Opportunities shall be afforded periodically to the external auditor, the internal auditor and to members of
senior management to meet separately with the audit committee members.

3.

Minutes shall be kept of all meetings of the Audit Committee.
PART 9

9.1

Quorum for Meetings

The quorum for a meeting of the Audit Committee is a majority of the audit committee members who are not officers
or employees of the Company or of an affiliate (as that term is defined in the Business Corporation Act, S.B.C., c 57, as
revised) of the Company.
Composition of Audit Committee
Pursuant to the provisions of National Instrument 52-110, the Company is required to have an Audit Committee which,
at present is comprised of Wesley Alfred Pomeroy, David Joseph Lajack and Leslie Einar Kjosness. Leslie Einar
Kjosness is the Chairman of the Audit Committee. Messrs. Pomeroy, Lajack and Kjosness are all "independent and
financially literate" members within the meanings given to those terms in the Charter.
Relevant Education and Experience
Wesley Alfred Pomeroy
Mr. Pomeroy graduated from the Colorado State University with a Bachelor of Science Degree (Geology) in August
1977 and from the University of Colorado with an MBA in Finance in December 1990. He has been a member of the
American Association of Petroleum Geologists (AAPG) and the Rocky Mountain Association of Geologists (RMAG)
since August 1977, and a certified State of Wyoming Professional Geologist since September 1998. Mr. Pomeroy has
played an active role as a Geologist in the Oil & Gas Industry for the past 30 years. Mr. Pomeroy is a registered
Professional Geologist for the State of Wyoming.
David Joseph Lajack
Mr. Lajack has worked as a consultant in the industry and has co-authored published papers on geology and
geochemistry. Mr. Lajack received his Bachelor of Science from Central Michigan University in 1996. He has been selfemployed as a geologist since 1997. Mr. Lajack is also a director and officer of several TSX Venture listed companies,
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namely a director of Geo Minerals Ltd., a director and Chief Operating Officer of Andover Venture Inc., and a director
of Alix Resources Inc.
Leslie Einar Kjosness
Mr. Kjosness is President and Director of Golden Arch Resources Ltd., a junior mining company listed on the TSX. He
is the President and founder of Paragon Drywall & Plastering Ltd. specializing in structural steel framing, interior design
and finishing for commercial and residential projects, including schools, hospitals and condominium towers. Mr.
Kjosness completed grade 11 in Edmonton in 1967.
Audit Committee Oversight
At no time since the commencement of the Company's most recently completed financial year have any
recommendations by the Audit Committee respecting the appointment and/or compensation of the Company's external
auditors not been adopted by the board of directors.
Reliance on Certain Exemptions
At no time since the commencement of the Company's most recently completed financial year has the Company relied
of exemptions in relation to:
(a)

"De Minimus Non-Audit Services" (Section 2.4 of NI 52-110); or

(b)

any exemption from NI 52-110 provided by Part 8 of NI 52-110.

Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures
The Company has not adopted any specific policies in relation to the engagement of non-audit services.
External Auditor Service Fees (By Category)
Fees charged by the Company’s auditor during the last two fiscal years are as follows:
Type of Fees
Audit Fees(1)
Audit-Related Fees(2)
Tax Fees(3)
All Other Fees(4)
Total

December 31, 2007
$22,500
$0
$0
$0
$22,500

December 31, 2006
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

Notes:
(1)
“Audit Fees” include fees necessary to perform the annual audit and quarterly reviews of the Company’s
consolidated financial statements. Audit Fees include fees for review of tax provisions and for accounting
consultations on matters reflected in the financial statements. Audit Fees also include audit or other attest services
required by legislation or regulation, such as comfort letters, consents, reviews of securities filings and statutory
audits.
(2)
“Audit-Related Fees” include services that are traditionally performed by the auditor. These audit-related services
include employee benefit audits, due diligence assistance, accounting consultations on proposed transactions,
internal control reviews and audit or attest services not required by legislation or regulation.
(3)
“Tax Fees” include fees for all tax services other than those included in “Audit Fees” and “Audit-Related Fees”.
This category includes fees for tax compliance, tax planning and tax advice. Tax planning and tax advice includes
assistance with tax audits and appeals, tax advice related to mergers and acquisitions, and requests for rulings or
technical advice from tax authorities.
(4)
“All Other Fees” include all other non-audit services.
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Exemption Found in Section 6.1 of NI 52-110
Part 3 (Composition of the Audit Committee) of National Instrument 52-110 (“NI 52-110”), requires that all directors be
independent and financially literate. Part 5 (Reporting Obligations) of NI 52-110 requires certain disclosure in the
Company’s AIF and the requirement of cross referencing its Information Circular to its AIF. Section 6.1 of NI 52-110
exempts “venture issuers” from the requirements of Parts 3 (Composition of the Audit Committee) and 5 (Reporting Obligations)
of the Instrument. The Company is not relying on the exemption from Part 3 of NI 52-110. Further, the Company is
not required to and has not filed an AIF and, therefore is relying on the exemption from the requirements of Part 5 of
NI 52-110.
Corporate Governance
The following is a summary of the Company’s corporate governance disclosure required by Form 58-101F2 of National
Instrument 58-101 Disclosure of Corporate Governance Practices.
Board of Directors
The Board, at present, is composed of six directors, one of whom is an executive officer of the Company and four of
whom are considered to be “independent”, as that term is defined in applicable securities legislation. Messrs. McFaull,
Pomeroy, Kjosness and Lajack are considered to be independent directors. Messrs. Murray and Voll are deemed not to
be independent by way of their interest in the Big Showing, Waverly Tangier and River Jordan Properties of the
Company. William Murray is also not independent by way of being the President and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. In determining whether a director is independent, the Board chiefly considers whether the director has a
relationship which could, or could be perceived to, interfere with the director's ability to objectively assess the
performance of management.
The Board is responsible for approving long-term strategic plans and annual operating plans and budgets recommended
by management. Board consideration and approval is also required for material contracts and business transactions, and
all debt and equity financing transactions.
The Board delegates to management responsibility for meeting defined corporate objectives, implementing approved
strategic and operating plans, carrying on the Company’s business in the ordinary course, managing the Company’s cash
flow, evaluating new business opportunities, recruiting staff and complying with applicable regulatory requirements. The
Board also looks to management to furnish recommendations respecting corporate objectives, long-term strategic plans
and annual operating plans.
Directorships
Certain directors of the Company are also directors of other reporting issuers (or equivalent) in a jurisdiction or a foreign
jurisdiction as follows:
Name of Director
William James Murray
Arthur James McFaull
Leland Robert Voll
Wesley Alfred Pomeroy
Leslie Einar Kjosness
David Joseph Lajack

Other Reporting Issuer (or equivalent in a foreign jurisdiction
None
None
None
Metalline Mining Company
Golden Arch Resources Ltd.
Geo Minerals Ltd.
Andover Venture Inc.
Alix Resources Inc.

Orientation and Continuing Education
The Company has not yet developed an official orientation or training program for new directors. As required, new
directors will have the opportunity to become familiar with the Company by meeting with the other directors and with
officers and employees. Orientation activities will be tailored to the particular needs and experience of each director and
the overall needs of the Board.
Ethical Business Conduct
The Board monitors the ethical conduct of the Company and ensures that it complies with applicable legal and
regulatory requirements, such as those of relevant securities commissions and stock exchanges. The Board has found
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that the fiduciary duties placed on individual directors by the Company’s governing corporate legislation and the
common law, as well as the restrictions placed by applicable corporate legislation on the individual director’s
participation in decisions of the Board in which the director has an interest, have been sufficient to ensure that the
Board operates independently of management and in the best interests of the Company.
Nomination of Directors
The Board has not appointed a nominating committee because the Board fulfills these functions.
Compensation
A Compensation Committee appointed by the Board of Directors, consisting of Messrs. Pomeroy, McFaull and
Kjosness, is responsible for determining all forms of compensation, including long-term incentive in the form of stock
options, to be granted to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and the directors, and for reviewing the Chief
Executive Officer’s recommendations respecting compensation of the other officers of the Company, to ensure such
arrangements reflect the responsibilities and risks associated with each position. When determining the compensation of
its officers, the Board considers: i) recruiting and retaining executives critical to the success of the Company and the
enhancement of shareholder value; ii) providing fair and competitive compensation; iii) balancing the interests of
management and the Company’s shareholders; and iv) rewarding performance, both on an individual basis and with
respect to operations in general.
Committees of the Board of Directors
The Board has four committees, namely:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

Audit Committee;
Disclosure Committee;
Compensation Committee; and
Technical Committee.

The members of the Audit Committee consist of Wesley Alfred Pomeroy, David Joseph Lajack and Leslie Einar
Kjosness, of which Mr. Kjosness is Chairman.
The Disclosure Committee consists of William Murray, Chief Executive Officer and President, and Roxann Eddy, Chief
Financial Officer.
The Compensation Committee consists of Wesley Alfred Pomeroy, Arthur James McFaull and Leslie Einar Kjosness.
Finally, the Technical Committee consists of Arthur James McFaull and David Joseph Lajack. The Technical
Committee has the responsibility of providing the advice to the Board of Directors regarding the possible acquisition or
divestiture of mineral properties.
Assessments
The Board has not, as yet, adopted formal procedures for assessing the effectiveness of the Board, its Audit Committee
or individual directors.
PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION
As at the date of the prospectus, the Company does not have any of its securities listed or quoted, has not applied to list
or quote any of its securities, and does not intend to apply to list or quote any of its securities, on the Toronto Stock
Exchange, a U.S. marketplace, or a marketplace outside of Canada and the United States of America other than the
Alternative Investment Market of the London Stock Exchange or the PLUS markets operated by PLUS Markets Group
plc.
Following the receipt of a receipt for the Prospectus of the Company, the Company will apply to list the common shares
of the Company on the Canadian Trading and Quotation System Inc. (the “CNQ”). Listing is subject to the Company
fulfilling all of the listing requirements of the CNQ.
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The Special Warrant Offering
The Prospectus qualifies the distribution of 4,459,520 Special Warrant Shares (although a further 121,000 Special
Warrants Shares will be deemed to be issued following the receipt for the final prospectus), issuable, without the
payment of any additional consideration, upon the deemed exercise of 4,580,520 Special Warrants, all of which Special
Warrants were previously issued by the Company (the “Special Warrant Offering”).
Of the 4,580,520 Special Warrants, a total of 120,500 Special Warrants were issued to five residents of Ontario and a
total of 500 Special Warrants were issued to one resident of Quebec. As this Prospectus is not being filed with the
Securities Commission of Ontario or Quebec, the Special Warrant Shares issued to residents of those Provinces will
remain subject to resale restrictions applicable to residents of those Provinces. More specifically, those Special Warrant
Shares will be subject to a four month hold period, such hold period commencing on the date that the Company
becomes a reporting issuer in British Columbia, Alberta or Manitoba. A further 2,469,520 Special Warrants were issued
to 41 residents of the United States. The 2,469,520 Special Warrants Shares will generally not be subject to resale
restrictions, except for 907,000 Special Warrant Shares held by. three “affiliates” as that term is defined under securities
legislation of the United States and those Special Warrant Shares may be resold in compliance with United States
Regulation S. A further 845,500 Special Warrants were issued to 17 residents overseas. The Special Warrant Shares will
not be subject to re-sale restrictions.
Each Special Warrant is exercisable into a Special Warrant Share.
The Special Warrants were issued pursuant to prospectus exemptions under applicable securities legislation.
The Special Warrants are not exercisable by the Purchaser during the first 12 months following the date of the issuance
of the Special Warrants. The Special Warrants will be deemed to be exercised at the earlier of: (a) two years from the
issuance of the Special Warrants; and (b) following the receipt for a final prospectus of the Company which qualifies the
issuance of the Special Warrant Shares on the exercise of the Special Warrants and in accordance with the terms of the
Prospectus.
The price for each Special Warrant was established arbitrarily by the Company after reference to the stage of
development of the Company and the sale-ability and general market conditions for such issuance.
RISK FACTORS
The securities of the Company should be considered a highly speculative investment and investors should carefully
consider all of the information disclosed in this prospectus prior to making an investment in our securities. In addition
to the other information presented in this prospectus, the following risk factors should be given special consideration
when evaluating an investment in any of our securities.

Exploration and Development: The Company’s properties are in an exploration stage only and are all without a
known body of commercial ore. Development of each property, will only follow upon obtaining satisfactory results.
Exploration and development of natural resources involve a high degree of risk and few properties which are explored
are ultimately developed into producing properties. There is no assurance that the Company’s exploration and
development activities will result in any discoveries of commercial bodies of ore. The long term profitability of the
Company’s operations will be in part directly related to the cost and success of its exploration programs, which may be
affected by a number of factors. Unusual or unexpected formations, formation pressures, fires, power outages, labour
disruptions, flooding, explosions, cave-ins, landslides and the inability to obtain suitable or adequate machinery,
equipment or labour are risks involved in exploration programs. The Company’s activities are dependent on the
availability of drilling and related equipment in the area of the properties. Demand for limited equipment or access
restrictions may affect the availability of the equipment to the Company and may delay exploration and development.
The Company has limited experience in developing and operating mines and has relied on and may continue to rely on
consultants and others for exploration and operating expertise. The economics of developing mineral properties is
affected by many factors including the cost of operations, variation of the grade of ore mines and fluctuations in the
price of any minerals produced. There are no underground or surface plant or equipment on either the Big Showing
Property, the Waverly Tangier Property or the River Jordan Property and there is no known body of commercial ore.
Substantial expenditures are required to establish reserves through drilling, to develop processes to extract the resources
and, in the case of new properties, to develop the extraction and processing facilities and infrastructure at any site
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chosen for extraction. Although substantial benefits may be derived from the discovery of a major deposit, no assurance
can be given that resources will be discovered in sufficient quantities to justify commercial operations or that the funds
required for development can be obtained on a timely basis.

Requirement of New Capital: As an exploration company without revenues, the Company typically needs more

capital than it has available to it or can expect to generate through the sale of its products. In the past, the Company has
had to raise, by way of equity financing, funds to meet its capital needs. There is no assurance that sufficient funding will
be available to the Company for further exploration and development of its property interests, including to proceed to
Phase 1 of the recommended work programs on the Waverly Tangier Property and Big Showing Property. There can be
no assurance that the Company will be able to obtain adequate financing in the future or that the terms of such financing
will be favourable. Failure to obtain such additional financing could result in delay or indefinite postponement of further
exploration and development of new projects with the possible loss of the properties. The Company will require new
capital to continue to operate its business and to continue with exploration on its properties, and there is no assurance
that capital will be available when needed, if at all. It is likely such additional capital will be raised through the issuance of
additional equity which will result in dilution to the Company’s shareholders.

Licenses and Permits: The operations of the Company may require licenses and permits from various governmental

authorities. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to obtain all necessary licenses and permits that
may be required to carry out exploration, development and mining operations at its projects. Failure to obtain such
licenses and permits may adversely affect the Company’s business as the Company would be unable to legally conduct its
intended exploration work, which may result in it losing its interest in the subject property.

Environmental Regulations: The Company’s operations are subject to environmental regulations promulgated by
government agencies from time to time. Environmental legislation provides for restrictions and prohibitions of spills,
release or emission of various substances produced in association with certain mining industry operations, such as
seepage from tailing disposal areas, which could result in environmental pollution. Failure to comply with such
legislation may result in imposition of fines and penalties. In addition, certain types of operations require submissions to
and approval of environmental impact assessments. Environmental legislation is evolving in a manner which means
stricter standards and enforcement, fines and penalties for non-compliance are more stringent. Environmental
assessments of proposed projects carry a heightened degree of responsibility for companies and directors, officers and
employees. The cost of complying with changes in governmental regulations has a potential to reduce the profitability of
operations. The Company intends to fully comply with all environmental regulations.
Operating Hazards and Risks: Exploration for natural resources involves many risks, which even a combination of
experience, knowledge and careful evaluation may not be able to overcome. Operations in which the Company has a
direct or indirect interest will be subject to all the hazards and risks normally incidental to exploration, development and
production of resources, any of which could result in work stoppages, damage to persons or property and possible
environmental damage. Although the Company has or will obtain liability insurance in an amount which it considers
adequate, the nature of these risks is such that liabilities might exceed policy limits, the liabilities and hazards might not
be insurable against, or the Company might not elect to insure itself against such liabilities due to high premium costs or
other reasons, in which event the Company could incur significant costs that could have a material adverse effect upon
its financial condition.

Fluctuating Prices: The Company’s revenues, if any, are expected to be in large part derived from the extraction and

sale of base and precious metals. The price of those commodities has fluctuated widely, particularly in recent years, and
is affected by numerous factors beyond the Company’s control including international, economic and political trends,
expectations of inflation, currency exchange fluctuations, interest rates, global or regional consumptive patterns,
speculative activities and increased production due to new extraction developments and improved extraction and
production methods. The effect of these factors on the price of base and precious metals, and therefore the economic
viability of any of the Company’s exploration projects, cannot accurately be predicted.

Competition: The resource industry is intensely competitive in all of its phases, and the Company competes with many
companies possessing greater financial resources and technical facilities than itself. Competition could adversely affect
the Company’s ability to acquire suitable properties for exploration in the future.
Title to Assets: Although the Company will, at an appropriate time, receive title opinions for any properties in which it
has a material interest in Canada, there is no guarantee that title to the properties will be not challenged or impugned.
The properties may be subject to prior unregistered agreements or transfers or native land claims and title may be
affected by undetected defects.
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No History of Profitable Operations: From the date of incorporation, the Company has had no history of positive

income from operations. Moreover, because the Company is still in the exploratory phase it is expected that the
Company will generate net losses for the foreseeable future. There is no guarantee that the Company will ever be able to
generate a positive net income.

Insufficient Working Capital: The Company has insufficient working capital to complete the recommended Phase 1
exploration program on the River Jordan Property and will need to raise further funds before completing such
exploration program. There is no assurance that the Company will be able to raise the required funds.
Economic and Regulatory Instability: The Company may be affected by possible economic instability. The risks

include, but are not limited to, terrorism, military repression, extreme fluctuations in currency exchange rates and high
rates of inflation. Changes in resource development or investment policies or shifts in political attitude in certain
countries may adversely affect the Company’s business. Operations may be affected in varying degrees by government
regulations with respect to restrictions on production, price controls, export controls, income taxes, expropriation of
property, maintenance of claims, environmental legislation, land use, land claims of local people, water use and mine
safety. The effect of these factors cannot be accurately predicted.

Management: The Company is dependent on a relatively small number of key employees, the loss of any of whom
could have an adverse effect on the Company.
Management: The Chief Executive Officer is the father of the Chief Financial Officer and, as a result of that
relationship, the Chief Financial Officer may lack the independence and objectivity required of a Chief Financial Officer.
Dilution: Under the terms of the Big Showing Purchase Agreement relating to the Big Showing Property, under the

terms of the Waverly Tangier Purchase Agreement relating to the Waverly Tangier Property and under the terms of the
River Jordan Purchase Agreement relating to the River Jordan Property, the Company is required to issue additional
Shares upon the Company meeting certain milestones set out in those agreements. Issuing Shares under these
agreements will result in further dilution to our shareholders.

Dividends: The Company has not paid dividends in the past and does not anticipate paying dividends in the near future.
The Company expects to retain its earnings to finance further growth and, when appropriate, retire debt.
Value of Company: The Company’s assets are of indeterminate value. For further particulars see the financial
statements scheduled hereto.

Liquidity: There is no existing market for the Shares and no assurance can be given that a market will develop for the

Shares or, if such markets develop, that they will continue. Accordingly, investors may be unable to realize their
investment in the Shares. The Shares may be subject to certain trade restrictions, which may include a four month hold
period.
PROMOTERS
William Murray and Leland Voll may be considered to be the promoters of the Company, in that they took the initiative
in founding and organizing the Company. Each of Mr. Murray and Mr. Voll were vendors of the Big Showing Property,
the Waverly Tangier Property and the River Jordan Property. See “General Development of our Business – Significant
Acquisitions and Significant Dispositions – The Big Showing Property”, “General Development of our Business –
Significant Acquisitions and Significant Dispositions – The Waverly Tangier Property” and “General Development of
our Business – Significant Acquisitions and Significant Dispositions – The River Jordan Property” for a description of
the Company’s acquisition of these properties from Mssrs Murray and Voll.
See “Directors and Officers” for information on the number of securities of the Company Messrs. Murray and Voll
own. See “Executive Compensation” for information on the compensation paid by the Company to Mr. Murray. Mr.
Murray and Mr. Voll have not received, and will not receive, any other thing of value from the Company other than as
disclosed elsewhere in this prospectus.
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LEGAL PROCEEDINGS AND REGULATORY ACTIONS
Legal Proceedings
There are no legal proceedings or pending legal proceedings to which the Company is or is likely to be a party to or of
which any of the properties of the Company is likely to be the subject of.
Regulatory Actions
There are no penalties or sanctions imposed against the issuer by a court relating to provincial and territorial securities
legislation or by a securities regulatory authority within the three years immediately preceding the date of the prospectus,
There are no other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body against the issuer necessary for the
prospectus to contain full, true and plain disclosure of all material facts relating to the securities being distributed, and
The Company has not entered into any settlement agreements before a court relating to provincial and territorial
securities legislation or with a securities regulatory authority within the three years immediately preceding the date of the
prospectus.
INTEREST OF MANAGEMENT AND OTHERS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS
The following is a description and approximate amount of any transaction between the Company and any director or
senior officer of the Company, any principal shareholder, and their associates or affiliates since the date of incorporation
of the Company:
1.

The Company, as purchaser, entered into a non arm’s length property purchase agreement dated February 14,
2003 with William Murray, the President, CEO and a director and founder of the Company and Leland Voll, a
director and founder of the Company, as vendors (the “Big Showing Property Purchase Agreement”)
pursuant to which the Company purchased the Big Showing Property. The cost of the Big Showing Property
to William Murray and Leland Voll was nominal. The consideration paid to William Murray and Leland Voll is
described under the heading, “General Development of Our Business – Significant Acquisitions and Significant
Dispositions – Big Showing Property”.

2.

The Company, as purchaser, entered into a non arm’s length property purchase agreement dated March 15,
2004 with William Murray, the President, CEO and a director and founder of the Company and Leland Voll, a
director and founder of the Company, as vendors (the “Waverly Tangier Property Purchase Agreement”)
pursuant to which the Company purchased the Waverly Tangier Property. The cost of the Waverly Tangier
Property to William Murray and Leland Voll was nominal. The consideration paid to William Murray and
Leland Voll is described under the heading, “General Development of Our Business – Significant Acquisitions
and Significant Dispositions – Waverly Tangier Property”.

3.

The Company, as purchaser, entered into a non arm’s length property purchase agreement dated March 16,
2006 with William Murray, the President, CEO and a director and founder of the Company and Leland Voll, a
director and founder of the Company, vendors (the “River Jordan Property Purchase Agreement”)
pursuant to which the Company purchased the River Jordan Property. The cost of the Waverly Tangier
Property to William Murray and Leland Voll was nominal. The consideration paid to William Murray and
Leland Voll is described under the heading “General Development of Our Business – Significant Acquisitions
and Significant Dispositions – River Jordan Property”.

4.

The Company entered into a management agreement dated July 1, 2004, as amended and restated as of April 1,
2008 with William Murray, the President, CEO and a director and founder of the Company, pursuant to which
Mr. Murray agreed to provide management services to the Company in consideration for $2,500 per month
plus GST from the date of the management agreement until March 31, 2008 and thereafter for $7,000 per
month (without GST).

5.

The Company entered into a written agreement dated for reference October 1, 2007 with Roxann Eddy
pursuant to which the Company agreed to pay Roxann Eddy $2,500 per month for services as the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company.
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6.

The Company entered into incentive stock option agreements dated July 8, 2008 with five directors and one
officer wherein the optionees were granted the right to purchase up to 680,000 Shares of the Company at the
price of $0.25 per Share up to July 7, 2008.
AUDITORS, TRANSFER AGENTS AND REGISTRAR

Auditor
The Company’s auditors are Manning Elliott LLP of 11th Floor, 1050 West Pender Street, Vancouver, BC V6E 3S7.
Transfer Agent and Registrar
The transfer agent and registrar of the Company’s Shares is Pacific Corporate Trust Company of 510 Burrard Street, 2nd
Floor, Vancouver, BC V6C 3B9.
MATERIAL CONTRACTS
The following are the material contracts entered into by the Company:
1.

Big Showing Property Purchase Agreement dated February 14, 2003 between William Murray and Leland Voll
as vendors and the Company as purchaser (see “General Development of Our Business – Significant
Acquisitions and Significant Dispositions – Big Showing Property”).

2.

Waverly Tangier Property Purchase Agreement dated March 15, 2004 between William Murray and Leland Voll
as vendors and the Company as purchaser (see “General Development of Our Business – Significant
Acquisitions and Significant Dispositions – Waverly Tangier Property”).

3.

River Jordan Property Purchase Agreement dated March 16, 2006 between William Murray and Leland Voll as
vendors and the Company as purchaser (see “General Development of Our Business – Significant Acquisitions
and Significant Dispositions – River Jordan Property”).

4.

Registrar and Transfer Agreement dated November 20, 2007 between the Company and Pacific Corporate
Trust Company (see “Auditors, Transfer Agents and Registrars – Transfer Agent and Registrar”).

5.

Escrow Agreement dated November 23, 2007 between the Company, Pacific Corporate Trust Company and
certain shareholders (see “Escrowed Securities”).

6.

Two finder’s fee agreements dated for reference September 30, 2007, one with Jason Hommel and the other
with Spyridon Doukakis. Under the two finder’s fee agreements the Company agreed to pay a 10%
commission payable by the issuance of shares at the deemed price of $0.25 per share. Under the finder’s fee
agreement with Jason Hommel the Company was to issue 303,554 shares, subject to certain conditions, which
were not met. As a result, Jason Hommel signed a written release releasing the Company of any liability.
Under the Agreement with Pat Doukakis the Company was to issue 1,000 shares, but the Company is unable to
issue the 1,000 shares on account of the lack of an available exemption. As the result, the Company will pay
Mr. Doukakis $250.00.

7.

Management Agreement dated July 1, 2004, as amended and restated as of April 1, 2008 between the Company
and William Murray (see “Interest of Management and Others In Material Transactions” at page 81).

8.

Management Agreement dated October 1, 2007 between Roxann Eddy and the Company (see “Interest of
Management and Others In Material Transactions” at page 81).

9.

The Company entered into incentive stock option agreements dated July 8, 2008 with five directors and one
officer wherein the optionees were granted the right to purchase up to 680,000 Shares in aggregate of the
Company at the price of $0.25 per Share up to July 7, 2008 (see “Options And Other Rights To Purchase
Securities” at page 55).
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INTERESTS OF EXPERTS
The information on the Big Showing Property was taken directly from the technical report entitled “NI 43-101 and
Assessment Report on the Mammoth, Scout and the Big Showing Property” dated February 2007, revised December
2007, February 6, & 25, 2008, April 10, 2008 and May 8, 2008 (the “Big Showing Technical Report”) prepared by
Qualified Person James A. Turner. A copy of this report can be found in the Company’s disclosure page on
www.sedar.com. Mr. Turner does not have any interest in the Big Showing Property and does not own any securities of
the Company.
The information on the Waverly Tangier Property was taken directly from the technical report entitled “Technical
Report on the Waverly –Tangier Property” and is dated December 6, 2005, revised February 2007, December 2007,
February 6 & 25, 2008, April 8, 2008 and November 14, 2008 (the “Waverly Tangier Technical Report”) prepared by
Qualified Person James A. Turner. A copy of this report can be found on the Company’s disclosure page on
www.sedar.com. Mr. Turner does not have any interest in the Waverly Tangier Property and does not own any securities
of the Company.
The information on the River Jordan Property was taken directly from the technical report entitled “Technical Report
on Exploration Programs and Results on the River Jordan Property” and is dated November 30, 2007, as amended on
January 29, 2008, as further amended on February 07, 2008, as further amended on March 18, 2008, as further amended
on April 18, 2008, as further amended on May 09, 2008, as further amended on May 27, 2008, as further amended on
August 7, 2008 and as further amended on August 26, 2008, as further amended on September 11, 2008, as further
amended on October 31, 2008 (the “River Jordan Technical Report”) prepared by Qualified Person T. Carpenter of
Discovery Consultants. A copy of this report can be found in the Company’s disclosure page on www.sedar.com. Mr.
Carpenter does not have any interest in the River Jordan Property and does not own any securities of the Company.
This prospectus was prepared by Alan Finlayson, Barrister & Solicitor. Mr. Finlayson does not have any interest in any
of the mineral properties of the Company but does own 2,000 Special Warrants in the capital of the Company which
were purchased on September 30, 2007 at the price of $0.25 per Special Warrant.
OTHER MATERIAL FACTS
The Company entered into two finder’s fee agreements dated for reference September 30, 2007, one with Jason
Hommel and the other with Spyridon Doukakis. Under the two finder’s fee agreements the Company agreed to pay a
10% commission payable by the issuance of shares at the deemed price of $0.25 per share. Under the finder’s fee
agreement with Jason Hommel the Company agreed to issue 303,554 shares subject to Mr. Hommel providing a legal
opinion that he is either properly registered as a finder in the United States or a opinion that such registration is not
required. Mr. Hommel did not provide such legal opinion. As a result, Mr. Hommel provided the Company with a
written release releasing the Company of all liability.
Under the finder’s fee agreement with Pat Dukakas the Company was to issue 1,000 shares following the receipt for the
Company’s Prospectus but the Company will be unable to issue those shares on account of the lack of an available
exemption.
There are no other material facts relating to the securities offered in this prospectus that have not been disclosed
elsewhere in this prospectus.
CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS OF RESCISSION
The Company has granted to each holder of a special warrant a contractual right of rescission of the prospectus-exempt
transaction under which the special warrant was initially acquired. The contractual right of rescission provides that if a
holder of a special warrant who acquires another security of the issuer on exercise of the special warrant as provided for
in the prospectus is, or becomes, entitled under the securities legislation of a jurisdiction to the remedy of rescission
because of the prospectus or an amendment to the prospectus containing a misrepresentation,
(a)

the holder is entitled to rescission of both the holder’s exercise of its special warrant and the private placement
transaction under which the special warrant was initially acquired,

(b)

the holder is entitled in connection with the rescission to a full refund of all consideration paid to the
underwriter or issuer, as the case may be, on the acquisition of the special warrant, and
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(c)

if the holder is a permitted assignee of the interest of the original special warrant subscriber, the holder is
entitled to exercise the rights of rescission and refund as if the holder was the original subscriber.

The foregoing is a direct contractual right extended by the Company alone (but specifically not by the directors, officers
or other agents of the Company) to holders of Special Warrants, permitted assignees of such holders and holders of
Special Warrant Shares acquired by such holders on exercise of Special Warrants and are in addition to any other right
or remedy available to a holder of Special Warrants under the Securities Act (British Columbia), the Securities Act (Alberta),
the Securities Act (Manitoba), the securities legislation of the holder’s province or otherwise at law. The purchaser should
refer to any applicable provisions of the securities legislation of its province for the particulars of these rights or consult
with a legal adviser. The foregoing contractual rights of action for rescission, being based on the availability of a remedy
of rescission by reason of this prospectus or any amendment thereto containing a misrepresentation, is subject to the
defence described under section 131(4) of the Securities Act (British Columbia) and the corresponding provisions of any
other applicable legislation, which defence is incorporated herein by reference, mutatis mutandis and, for similar reasons,
no action may be commenced to enforce the foregoing rights of action for rescission more than 180 days after the date
of original issuance of the Special Warrants.
PURCHASER’S STATUTORY RIGHTS OF WITHDRAWAL AND RESCISSION
Securities legislation in certain of the Provinces in Canada provides purchasers with the right to withdraw from an
agreement to purchase securities. This right may be exercised within two business days after receipt or deemed receipt of
a prospectus and any amendment. In several of the Provinces, the securities legislation further provides a purchaser with
remedies for rescission or damages if the prospectus and any amendment contains a misrepresentation or is not
delivered to the purchaser, provided that the remedies for rescission or damages are exercised by the purchaser within
the time limit prescribed by the securities legislation of the purchaser’s province. The purchaser should refer to any
applicable provisions of the securities legislation of the purchaser’s Province for the particulars of these rights or consult
with a legal adviser.

AUDITORS’ CONSENT

We have read the prospectus (the “Prospectus”) of Silver Phoenix Resources Inc. (the
“Company”) dated November 26, 2008 relating to the qualification for sale of 4,580,520 Special
Warrant Shares distributed under the Special Warrant Offering. We have complied with
Canadian generally accepted standards for an auditors’ involvement with such offering
documents.
We consent to the use in the above-mentioned Prospectus of our report dated June 23, 2008,
except as to Note 11 which is dated as of November 26, 2008, to the Company’s directors on
the following financial statements:
•
•

Balance sheets as at December 31, 2007 and 2006;
Statements of operations, comprehensive loss and deficit and cash flows for the years
ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Vancouver, British Columbia
November 26, 2008

SILVER PHOENIX RESOURCES INC.
(An Exploration Stage Company)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006 AND
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2007, 2006 AND 2005

AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Directors of
Silver Phoenix Resources Inc.
We have audited the balance sheets of Silver Phoenix Resources Inc. as at December 31, 2007 and
2006 and the statements of operations, comprehensive loss and deficit and cash flows for the years
ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation.
In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Company as at December 31, 2007 and 2006 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for
the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles.

Chartered Accountants
Vancouver, British Columbia
June 23, 2008 (except as to Note 11 which is as of November 26, 2008)

SILVER PHOENIX RESOURCES INC.
(An Exploration Stage Company)

BALANCE SHEETS
As at December 31

2006

2007
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
GST recoverable

$

Deferred financing costs
Reclamation deposit
Mineral properties (Note 4)
Equipment (Note 5)

716,285
9,383

$

525,991
1,618

725,668

527,609

2,500
120,321
4,011

3,000
38,214
3,031

$

852,500

$

571,854

$

84,913
8,829

$

17,387
15,385

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to related party (Note 6)

93,742

32,772

3

2

1,078,679

-

-

662,650

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital

(Note 7(a))

Special warrants (Note 7(b))
Share subscriptions (Note 7(b))
Deficit

$

(319,924)

(123,570)

758,758

539,082

852,500

$

571,854

NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND CONTINUANCE OF BUSINESS (Note 1)
COMMITMENTS (Note 9)
SUBSEQUENT EVENT (Note 11)

Approved on behalf of the Board:
“William Murray”
William Murray

Director

“Leland Voll”
Leland Voll

Director

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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SILVER PHOENIX RESOURCES INC.
(An Exploration Stage Company)

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS, COMPREHENSIVE LOSS AND
DEFICIT
For the Years Ended December 31

2007

2006

2005

Expenses
Amortization
Auto and travel
Bank charges
Foreign exchange loss
Management fees
Office and miscellaneous
Professional fees
Promotion
Repairs and maintenance
Supplies
Telephone and utilities
Transfer agent

$

Loss before other items

1,001 $
15,513
305
1,468
40,000
7,614
41,908
8,907
540
27
2,310
590
(120,183)

467
14,955
53
989
30,000
1,750
5,102
70
417
2,090
-

$

(55,893)

98
11,266
16
6
30,000
396
2,532
449
138
1,418
(46,319)

Other items
Interest income

28,829

Net loss and comprehensive loss for the year

1,220

257

(91,354)

(54,673)

(46,062)

Deficit, beginning of year

(123,570)

(68,897)

(22,835)

Acquisition of mineral properties – excess of
payments over vendors’ carrying costs (Note 4)

(105,000)

-

-

Deficit, end of year

$

(319,924) $

(123,570)

$

(68,897)

Net loss per share – basic and diluted

$

(0.05) $

(0.04)

$

(0.03)

Weighted average number of common shares

1,925,342

1,500,000

1,500,000

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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SILVER PHOENIX RESOURCES INC.
(An Exploration Stage Company)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31

2007

2006

2005

Operating Activities
Net loss for the year

$

Item not involving cash:
Amortization

(91,354) $
1,001

(54,673) $
467

(46,062)
98

(90,353)

(54,206)

(45,964)

(7,765)
4,075

(417)
9,761

(710)
4,626

(94,043)

(44,862)

(42,048)

Investing Activities
Mineral property acquisitions and exploration expenditures
Equipment purchases

(189,606)
(1,981)

(23,482)
(2,903)

(11,241)
(404)

Cash used in investing activities

(191,587)

(26,385)

(11,645)

Financing Activities
Share subscriptions received
Issuance of special warrants
Increase (decrease) in amounts due to related party

482,480
(6,556)

505,900
(2,185)

131,750
15,440

Cash from financing activities

475,924

503,715

147,190

Increase in cash during the year

190,294

432,468

93,497

Cash, beginning of the year

525,991

93,523

26

Changes in non-cash working capital items:
GST recoverable
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Cash used in operating activities

Cash, end of the year

$

716,285

$

525,991 $

93,523

$
$

-

$
$

- $
- $

-

$

1

$

1 $

-

Supplemental cash flow information
Cash paid for:
Interest
Income taxes

Non-cash investing and financing activities
Shares issued for acquisition of mineral property

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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SILVER PHOENIX RESOURCES INC.
(An Exploration Stage Company)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND CONTINUANCE OF BUSINESS
Silver Phoenix Resources Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated on February 14, 2003 under the
Company Act (British Columbia).
The Company is in the process of exploring its mineral properties and has not yet determined whether
these properties contain ore reserves that are economically recoverable. The recoverability of amounts
shown for mineral properties and related deferred exploration costs is dependent upon the discovery of
economically recoverable reserves, confirmation of the Company's interest in the underlying mineral
claims, the ability of the Company to obtain necessary financing to complete the development and upon
future profitable production or proceeds from the disposition thereof.
The Company incurred a loss of $91,354 (2006 - $54,673, 2005 - $46,062) for the year ended December
31, 2007, and had an accumulated deficit of $319,924 at December 31, 2007 which has been funded
primarily by issuance of special warrants. The Company's ability to continue its operations and to realize
assets at their carrying values is dependent upon obtaining additional financing or maintaining continued
support from its shareholders and creditors, and generating profitable operations in the future.
These financial statements do not give effect to any adjustments which would be necessary should the
Company be unable to continue as a going concern and therefore be required to realize its assets and
discharge its liabilities in other than the normal course of business and at amounts different from those
reflected in the accompanying financial statements.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a) Basis of presentation
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles.
b) Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of expenses for the period. Significant areas requiring the use of
management estimates include the impairment of mineral properties, asset retirement obligations,
future income tax valuation allowances and assumptions used in valuing options and warrants. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.
c) Mineral properties
All costs related to the acquisition, exploration and development of mineral properties are capitalized.
Upon commencement of commercial production, the related accumulated costs are amortized to
income using the unit of production method over estimated recoverable ore reserves. Management
periodically assesses carrying values of non-producing properties and if management determines that
the carrying values cannot be recovered or the carrying values are related to properties that have
lapsed, the unrecoverable amounts are expensed.
The recoverability of the carried amounts of mineral properties is dependent on the existence of
economically recoverable ore reserves and the ability to obtain the necessary financing to complete
the development of such ore reserves and the success of future operations. The Company has not
yet determined whether any of its mineral properties contains economically recoverable reserves.
Amounts capitalized as mineral properties represent costs incurred to date, less write-downs and
recoveries, and does not necessarily reflect present or future values.
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SILVER PHOENIX RESOURCES INC.
(An Exploration Stage Company)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
c) Mineral properties (continued)
When options are granted on mineral properties or properties are sold, proceeds are credited to the
cost of the property. If no future capital expenditure is required and proceeds exceed costs, the
excess proceeds are reported as a gain.
d) Equipment
Equipment is recorded at cost and amortized over its estimated useful life (one half of these rates is
applied in the year of acquisition) at the following annual rates:
Computer equipment
Equipment

- 30%
- 20%

e) Long-lived assets
The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of mineral property and deferred exploration costs
may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison
of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be
generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an
impairment charge is recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds
the fair value of the asset.
f) Asset retirement obligations
The Company follows the recommendations of Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (“CICA”)
Handbook Section 3110, “Asset Retirement Obligations”, which established standards for asset
retirement obligations and the associated retirement costs related to site reclamation and
abandonment. The fair value of the liability for an asset retirement obligation is recorded when it is
incurred and the corresponding increase to the asset is amortized over the life of the asset. The
liability is increased over time to reflect an accretion element considered in the initial measurement at
fair value. As at December 31, 2007, the Company has not incurred any asset retirement obligations
related to the exploration and development of its mineral properties.
g) Government assistance
B.C. mining exploration tax credits for certain exploration expenditures incurred in B.C. are treated as
a reduction of the exploration and development costs of the respective mineral property.
h) Income taxes
The Company uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method,
future income tax assets and liabilities are determined based on temporary differences which arise
between the accounting basis and the tax basis of various assets and liabilities, and are measured
using substantively enacted tax rates and laws expected to apply when these differences reverse. A
valuation allowance is provided for any future income tax assets if it is more likely than not that the
asset will not be realized.
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SILVER PHOENIX RESOURCES INC.
(An Exploration Stage Company)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
i)

Share issue costs
Professional, consulting and regulatory fees as well as other costs directly attributable to financing
transactions are reported as deferred financing costs until the transactions are completed, if the
completion of the transaction is considered to be more likely than not. Share issue costs are charged
to share capital when the related shares are issued. Costs relating to financing transactions that are
not completed, or for which successful completion is considered unlikely, are charged to operations.

j)

Stock-based compensation
The Company applies the fair value method to stock-based payments to all awards that are direct
awards of stock, that call for settlement in cash or other assets or are stock appreciation rights that
call for settlement by the issuance of equity instruments. Compensation expense is recognized over
the applicable vesting period with a corresponding increase in contributed surplus. When the options
are exercised, the exercise price proceeds together with the amount initially recorded in contributed
surplus are credited to share capital.

k) Loss per share
Basic loss per share is computed by dividing net loss available to common shareholders by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. The Company applies
the treasury stock method in calculating diluted loss per share. Diluted loss per share excludes all
dilutive potential common shares if their effect is anti-dilutive.
l)

Financial instruments
As at December 31, 2007, the Company’s financial instruments consist of cash, accounts payable
and amounts due to related party. The amounts due to related party are interest free. The Company
is not exposed to derivative financial instruments. It is management’s opinion that the Company is not
exposed to significant interest and currency risks arising from its financial instruments and their fair
values approximate their carrying values.
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risks consist
principally of cash. To minimize the credit risk the Company places these instruments with high credit
quality financial institutions.

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Effective January 1, 2007, the Company adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
(“CICA”) Handbook Section 1506, "Accounting Changes". This section permits accounting policy changes
only in the event that a change is made within a primary source of GAAP, or where a change is warranted
to provide more relevant and reliable information. All accounting policy changes are to be applied
retroactively, unless there is no specific transition provisions or it is impracticable to do so. Any prior
period errors identified also require retroactive application. The revised standards did not have any
material impact on the Company’s financial statements.
Effective January 1, 2007, the Company adopted the recommendations of CICA Handbook Section 1530
(“CICA 1530”), “Comprehensive Income” and Section 3855 (“CICA 3855”), “Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement”. These sections provide standards for recognition, measurement,
disclosure and presentation of financial assets, financial liabilities and derivatives financial instruments.
Under the new standards, policies followed for periods prior to the effective date generally are not
reversed and therefore, the comparative figures have not been restated.
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SILVER PHOENIX RESOURCES INC.
(An Exploration Stage Company)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
CICA 1530 provides standards for the reporting and presentation of comprehensive income, which
represents the net income and other comprehensive income for the period from transactions and other
events and circumstances from non-owner sources. Other comprehensive income includes changes in
unrealized foreign currency translation amounts arising from self-sustaining foreign operations, unrealized
gains and losses on available-for-sale assets and changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as
cash flow hedges to the extent they are effective and are excluded from net income calculated in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. The adoption of CICA 1530 did not
result in any significant adjustments to the carrying values of the Company’s previously recognized
financial assets and liabilities at January 1, 2007 and had no impact on opening deficit.
Under CICA 3855, financial instruments must be classified into one of five categories: held-for-trading,
held-to-maturity, loans and receivables, available-for sale financial assets or other financial liabilities.
All financial instruments, including derivatives, are recognized at fair value on their initial recognition,
except for those arising from certain related party transactions which are accounted for at the transferor’s
carrying amount or exchange amount in accordance with CICA Handbook Section 3840, “Related Party
Transactions”. Subsequent measurement and changes in fair value will depend on their initial
classification, as follows: held-for trading financial assets are measured at fair value and changes in fair
value are recognized in net income; available-for-sale financial instruments are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recorded in other comprehensive income until the investment is impaired at
which time the amounts will be recorded in net income; financial assets classified as held-to-maturity,
loans and receivables, and financial liabilities other than those classified as held-for trading are measured
at amortized cost, using the effective interest method of amortization. CICA 3855 also requires that
transaction costs incurred in connection with issuance of financial instruments either be capitalized and
presented as a reduction of the carrying value of the related financial instrument or expensed as incurred.
If capitalized, transaction costs must be amortized to income using the effective interest method. CICA
3855 does not permit the restatement of financial statements of prior periods.
The Company classified its financial instruments as follows:
Cash
Accounts payable
Amounts due to related party

held-for-trading
other financial liabilities
other financial liabilities

In addition, the Company has elected to account for transaction costs related to the issuance of financial
instruments as a reduction of the carrying value of the related financial instruments. The Company did not
have any available for sale financial assets, held-to-maturity instruments and outstanding contracts with
embedded derivatives at January 1, 2007.
The adoption of CICA 3855 did not result in any significant adjustments to the carrying values of the
Company’s previously recognized financial assets and liabilities at January 1, 2007 and had no impact on
opening deficit.
New accounting pronouncements not yet adopted
In February 2008, the Accounting Standards Board issued CICA Handbook Section 3064, “Goodwill and
Intangible Assets”, which replaces CICA Handbook Section 3062, “Goodwill and Intangible Assets”, and
CICA Handbook Section 3450, “Research and Development Costs”. Section 3064 establishes standards
for the recognition, measurement and disclosure of goodwill and intangible assets. This new standard is
effective for the Company’s interim and annual consolidated financial statements commencing January 1,
2009. The Company is currently assessing the impact of the new standard and has not yet determined its
effect on the Company’s financial statements.
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SILVER PHOENIX RESOURCES INC.
(An Exploration Stage Company)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
New accounting pronouncements not yet adopted (continued)
In May 2007, the Accounting Standards Board issued CICA Handbook Section 3031, “Inventories”. CICA
3031 introduces changes to the measurement and disclosure of inventory and converges with
international financial reporting standards and is effective for interim and annual periods relating to the
Company’s fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2008. The Company does not expect that the
adoption of this standard will have a material impact on its financial statements.
In December 2006, the Accounting Standards Board issued CICA Handbook Section 3862, “Financial
Instruments - Disclosure” and Section 3863, “Financial Instruments - Presentation” which replace CICA
3861, “Financial Instruments - Disclosure and Presentation”. CICA 3862 increases the emphasis on
recognition and management of the risks associated with recognized and unrecognized financial
instruments. This section carries forward the former presentation requirements and is effective for the
Company’s fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2008. The Company is currently assessing the
impact of the new disclosure standard and has not yet determined its impact on the Company’s financial
statements.
In October 2006, the Accounting Standards Board issued CICA Handbook Section 1535, “Capital
Disclosures”, which establishes standards for disclosing information about an entity’s capital and how it is
managed. This standard is effective for interim and annual financial statements for the Company’s fiscal
years beginning on or after January 1, 2008. The Company is currently assessing the impact of the new
standard and has not yet determined its effect on the Company’s financial statements.

4. MINERAL PROPERTIES

Big
Showing

December 31, 2007

River
Jordan

Waverly
Tangier

Total

Acquisition costs:
Balance, beginning of the year
Acquisition during the year

$

Balance, end of the year
Deferred exploration expenditures:
Balance, beginning of period
Expenditures during period
Deposit
Geologist fees and assays
Geotechnical costs
Tenure and restaking
Other costs
Balance, end of the year
$

1 $
-

1 $
-

- $
1

2
1

1

1

1

3

7,500

30,712

-

38,212

20,634
1,030
-

2,500
33,989
684
6,873
-

7,374
8,515
507

2,500
61,997
684
16,418
507

29,164

74,758

16,396

120,318

29,165 $

74,759 $

16,397 $

120,321
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SILVER PHOENIX RESOURCES INC.
(An Exploration Stage Company)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

4. MINERAL PROPERTIES (continued)
Big
Showing

December 31, 2006
Acquisition costs:
Balance, beginning and end of the year

$

Deferred exploration expenditures:
Balance, beginning of period
Expenditures during period
Geologist fees and assays
Tenure and restaking
Balance, end of the year
$

Waverly
Tangier
1 $

Total
1 $

2

–

14,730

14,730

7,500
–

1,000
14,982

8,500
14,982

7,500

30,712

38,212

7,501 $

30,713 $

38,214

The Company's mineral properties are described as follows:
Big Showing Property, British Columbia
On February 14, 2003, the Company entered into an agreement to acquire a 100% interest in the Big
Showing property for mineral claims for a total area of 500 hectares in the Revelstoke Mining Division of
British Columbia. The Company acquired the property from the President and director of the Company
and an individual who became a director of the Company on November 1, 2006.
For payment of the property, the Company agreed to issue 750,000 common shares of the Company
(issued in 2003), to pay $35,000 in cash by April 30, 2007 (paid), to issue 1,000,000 common shares of
the Company within 30 business days of the date on which the Company receives a technical report
disclosing an indicated mineral resource of 5,000,000 ounces of contained silver equivalent on the claims,
and to issue a further 1,583,333 common shares within 30 business days of the date on which the
Company receives a positive pre-feasibility study on the claims.
The transaction was considered a related party transaction and consequently 750,000 common shares
issued as initial payment were recorded at the nominal carrying amount of the property of the related
party vendors. The cash payment of $35,000 was charged to deficit in 2007.
Waverly Tangier Property, British Columbia
On March 15, 2004, the Company entered into an agreement to acquire a 100% interest in the Waverly
Tangier Property for mineral claims for a total area of 5,675 hectares in the Revelstoke Mining Division of
British Columbia. The Company acquired the property from the President and director of the Company
and an individual who became a director of the Company on November 1, 2006.
The Company agreed to issue 750,000 common shares of the Company (issued in 2004), to pay $35,000
in cash (paid in August 2007), to issue 1,000,000 common shares of the Company within 30 business
days of the date on which the Company receives a technical report disclosing an indicated mineral
resource of 5,000,000 ounces of contained silver equivalent on the claims, and to issue a further
1,583,333 common shares within 30 business days of the date on which the Company receives a positive
pre-feasibility study on the claims.
The transaction was considered a related party transaction and consequently 750,000 common shares
issued as initial payment were recorded at the nominal carrying amount of the property of the related
party vendors. The cash payment of $35,000 was charged to deficit in 2007.
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SILVER PHOENIX RESOURCES INC.
(An Exploration Stage Company)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

4. MINERAL PROPERTIES (continued)
River Jordon Property, British Columbia
On March 16, 2006, the Company entered into an agreement to acquire a 100% interest in the River
Jordan Property for mineral claims for a total area of 649 hectares in the Revelstoke Mining Division of
British Columbia. The Company acquired the property from the President and director of the Company
and an individual who became a director of the Company on November 1, 2006.
The Company agreed to pay $35,000 in cash by April 30, 2007 (paid), to issue 750,000 common shares
(issued in June 2007) of the Company, to issue 1,000,000 common shares of the Company within 30
business days of the date on which the Company receives a technical report disclosing an indicated
mineral resource of 5,000,000 ounces of contained silver equivalent on the claims, and to issue a further
1,583,333 common shares within 30 business days of the date on which the Company receives a positive
pre-feasibility study on the claims.
The transaction was considered a related party transaction and consequently 750,000 common shares
issued as initial payment were recorded at the nominal carrying amount of the property of the related
party vendors. The cash payment of $35,000 was charged to deficit in 2007.

5. EQUIPMENT

Cost
Computer equipment
Equipment

Accumulated
amortization

2007
Net book
value

2006
Net book
value

$

3,132 $
2,477

763 $
835

2,369 $
1,642

978
2,053

$

5,609 $

1,598 $

4,011 $

3,031

6. DUE TO RELATED PARTY
The amounts due to the President and director of the Company are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
have no specific terms of repayment.

7. SHARE CAPITAL
a) Details of share capital:
Authorized: Unlimited common shares without par value
Issued and outstanding:
Shares

Amount

Balance, December 31, 2005 and 2006
Shares issued for mineral properties (Note 4)

1,500,000 $
750,000

2
1

Balance, December 31, 2007

2,250,000 $

3
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SILVER PHOENIX RESOURCES INC.
(An Exploration Stage Company)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

7. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
a) Details of share capital: (continued)
In June 2007, the Company issued 750,000 common shares as partial payment to acquire the River
Jordan Property. The shares were recorded at the vendor’s carrying amount of the mineral property, as
described in Note 4.
b) Warrants:
Shares

Amount

Balance, December 31, 2006
Issued for cash at $0.25 per warrant
Warrants issue costs

- $
4,580,520
-

1,145,130
(66,451)

Balance, December 31, 2007

4,580,520 $

1,078,679

In 2007, the Company received cash of $482,480 (2006 - $662,650) for subscription of 1,929,920 (2006 –
2,650,600) common shares at $0.25 per share. In July 2007, the Company issued 4,563,520 special
warrants and in September 2007 the Company issued a further 17,000 special warrants for a total of
4,580,520 special warrants. Concurrently, the Company cancelled the 4,580,520 common share
subscription agreements.
The 4,580,520 special warrants were issued at $0.25 per each warrant. Each special warrant can be
exercisable to purchase one common share of the Company at no further consideration. The special
warrants are not exercisable during the first 12 months from date of issue, and will be deemed to be
exercised at the earlier of 24 months from date of issue and the receipt for the final prospectus qualifying
the issuance of the shares. The Company incurred warrants issue costs of $66,451. The Company
agreed to issue 304,554 common shares as finders’ fee shares subject to certain conditions. Subsequent
to December 31, 2007, the conditions were not met and the Company agreed to pay cash of $250 instead
of issuing the 304,554 finders’ fee shares (see Note 11).

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In 2007, the Company paid cash of $105,000 and issued 750,000 common shares for payment of the Big
Showing Property, Waverly Tangier Property and the River Jordan Property to related vendors, as
described in Note 4.
During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company paid management fees of $30,000 (2006 $30,000, 2005 - $30,000) and $7,500 (2006 - $Nil, 2005 - $Nil) to the President and Chief financial officer
respectively. These related party transactions were measured at the exchange amount which is the
amount agreed upon by the transacting parties and are on terms and conditions similar to non-related
entities.
9. COMMITMENTS
a) The Company is committed to a management services agreement with the President and director of
the Company. The agreement requires payments of $30,000 per year until the end of the month in
which the Company becomes listed on a recognized securities exchange, and $84,000 per year
thereafter. The fees are payable monthly and the contract may be terminated by both parties by
giving one month’s notice.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

9. COMMITMENTS (continued)
b) The Company is committed to a management services agreement with the Chief Financial Officer of
the Company. The agreement requires payments of $30,000 per year commencing October 1, 2007.
The fees are payable monthly and the contract may be terminated by both parties by giving one
month’s notice.
c) The Company is obligated to make certain payments and issue shares as described in Note 4 in
connection with acquisition of its mineral properties.

10. INCOME TAXES
The following table reconciles the amount of income tax recoverable on application of the statutory
Canadian federal and provincial income tax rates:

Canadian statutory income tax rate
Income tax recovery at statutory rate
Effect of income taxes of:
Mineral properties
Warrant issue costs
Reduction in tax rates
Valuation allowance

$

Income tax recoverable

$

2007

2006

2005

34.12%

34.12%

34.12%

31,170 $
35,826
22,673
(13,987)
(75,682)
– $

18,654 $
–
–
–
(18,654)
–- $

15,716
–
–
(327)
(15,389)
–-

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the future tax assets at
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 are presented below:
2007
Non-capital loss carry-forwards
Mineral properties
Equipment
Warrant issue costs
Valuation allowance

2006

2005

$

69,118 $
32,024
487
16,214
(117,843)

41,620 $
340
200
–
(42,160)

23,200
340
–
–
(23,540)

$

– $

– $

–

The Company has not recognized any future income tax assets. The Company has recorded a valuation
allowance against its future income tax assets based on the extent to which it is more likely than not that
sufficient taxable income will not be realized during the carryforward periods to utilize all future tax assets.
The Company has non-capital losses for income tax purposes of approximately $227,000 which may be
carried forward and offset against future taxable income. The non-capital losses expire as follows:
2014
2015
2026
2027

$

22,000
46,000
54,000
105,000

$ 227,000
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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10. INCOME TAXES (continued)
The Company also has certain allowances in respect of resource development and exploration costs of
approximately $105,000, which, subject to certain restrictions, are available to be offset against future
taxable income.
11. SUBSEQUENT EVENT
On November 26, 2008, the Company filed a prospectus with the Securities Commission of British
Columbia, Alberta and Manitoba relating to the qualification for distribution of 4,580,520 special warrant
shares. The special warrant shares will be issued on exercise of the 4,580,520 special warrants, as
described in Note 7(b), at no further consideration. The Company agreed to pay a finder’s fee of $250.
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SILVER PHOENIX RESOURCES INC.
(An Exploration Stage Company)
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008
(unaudited)

SILVER PHOENIX RESOURCES INC.
(An Exploration Stage Company)

BALANCE SHEETS
December 31,
2007

September 30,
2008
(unaudited)
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
GST recoverable

$

508,257
17,647

Reclamation deposit
Mineral properties (Note 4)
Equipment (Note 5)

$

716,285
9,383

525,904

725,668

2,500
219,116
3,232

2,500
120,321
4,011

$

750,752

$

852,500

$

199,100
-

$

84,913
8,829

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to related party (Note 6)

199,100

93,742

3

3

1,012,825

1,078,679

106,124

-

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital

(Note 7(a))

Special warrants (Note 7(b))
Contributed surplus (Note 7(c))
Deficit

$

(567,300)

(319,924)

551,652

758,758

750,752

$

852,500

NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND CONTINUANCE OF BUSINESS (Note 1)
COMMITMENTS (Note 9)
SUBSEQUENT EVENT (Note 10)

Approved on behalf of the Board:
“William Murray”
William Murray

Director

“Leland Voll”
Leland Voll

Director

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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SILVER PHOENIX RESOURCES INC.
(An Exploration Stage Company)

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS, COMPREHENSIVE LOSS AND
DEFICIT
(unaudited)
Three Months
Ended
September 30,
2008

Three Months
Ended
September 30,
2007

Nine Months
Ended
September 30,
2008

Nine Months
Ended
September 30,
2007

Expenses
Amortization
Auto and travel
Bank charges
General exploration costs
Filing fees
Management fees
Office and miscellaneous
Professional fees
Promotion
Stock-based compensation
Telephone and utilities
Transfer agent

$

Loss before other items

260
2,365
31
2,744
6,839
28,500
410
16,548
149
106,124
1,043
424

$

(165,437)

374
3,951
143
7,500
855
8,489
3,527
543
-

$

779
8,276
201
5,302
8,869
72,000
3,032
54,769
2,050
106,124
2,569
768

$

825
15,387
190
22,500
7,051
24,911
7,650
1,619
-

(25,382)

(264,739)

(80,133)

(1,468)
12,309

17,363

(1,468)
22,032

(247,376)

(59,569)

(319,924)

(123,570)

Other items
Foreign exchange loss
Interest income

3,746

Net loss and comprehensive loss
for the period

(161,691)

Deficit, beginning of period

(405,609)

Deficit, end of period

$

Net loss per share – basic and
diluted

$

Weighted average number of
common shares

(567,300)

(14,541)
,
(168,598)
$

(0.07) $
2,250,000

(183,139)

$

(567,300)

$

(183,139)

(0.01) $

(0.11)

$

(0.03)

2,250,000

2,250,000

1,815,934

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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SILVER PHOENIX RESOURCES INC.
(An Exploration Stage Company)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(unaudited)
Three Months
Ended
September 30,
2008

Three Months
Ended
September 30,
2007

Nine Months
Ended
September 30,
2008

Nine Months
Ended
September 30,
2007

Operating Activities
Net loss for the period

$

Items not involving cash:
Stock-based compensation
Amortization

(161,691)

$

106,124
260

Changes in non-cash working
capital items:
GST recoverable
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities

Investing Activities
Mineral property acquisitions and
exploration expenditures
Equipment purchases
Financing Activities
Share subscriptions received
Increase (decrease) in amount
due related party

(14,541)

$

374

(247,376)

$

(59,569)

106,124
779

825

(55,307)

(14,167)

(140,473)

(58,744)

(5,742)

(2,765)

(8,264)

(4,649)

(5,116)

38,728

(4,796)

35,335

(66,165)

21,796

(153,533)

(28,058)

(27,205)
-

(106,597)
-

(45,666)
-

(164,261)
(1,980)

(27,205)

(106,597)

(45,666)

(166,241)

-

(30,667)

-

448,788

-

1,052

(8,829)

444

-

(29,615)

(8,829)

449,232

Decrease in cash during the period

(93,370)

(114,416)

(208,028)

254,933

Cash, beginning of the period

601,627

895,340

716,285

525,991

Cash, end of the period

$

508,257

$

780,924

$

508,257

$

780,924

Cash paid (received) for:
Interest
Income taxes

$
$

-

$
$

-

$
$

-

$
$

-

Non-cash investing and financing
activities
Shares issued for acquisition of
mineral property

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

1

Supplemental cash flow
information

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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SILVER PHOENIX RESOURCES INC.
(An Exploration Stage Company)

NOTES TO INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Nine Month Period Ended September 30, 2008
(unaudited)
1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND CONTINUANCE OF BUSINESS
Silver Phoenix Resources Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated on February 14, 2003 under the
Company Act (British Columbia).
The Company is in the process of exploring its mineral properties and has not yet determined whether
these properties contain ore reserves that are economically recoverable. The recoverability of amounts
shown for mineral properties and related deferred exploration costs is dependent upon the discovery of
economically recoverable reserves, confirmation of the Company's interest in the underlying mineral
claims, the ability of the Company to obtain necessary financing to complete the development and upon
future profitable production or proceeds from the disposition thereof.
The Company has incurred recurring losses since its inception, and had an accumulated deficit of
$567,300 at September 30, 2008 which has been funded primarily by issuance of special warrants. The
Company's ability to continue its operations and to realize assets at their carrying values is dependent
upon obtaining additional financing or maintaining continued support from its shareholders and creditors,
and generating profitable operations in the future.
These financial statements do not give effect to any adjustments which would be necessary should the
Company be unable to continue as a going concern and therefore be required to realize its assets and
discharge its liabilities in other than the normal course of business and at amounts different from those
reflected in the accompanying financial statements.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a) Basis of presentation
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”).
b) Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported
in the financial statements and the related notes to the financial statements. Significant areas
requiring the use of management estimates include the recoverability of mineral properties, asset
retirement obligations, future income tax valuation allowances and assumptions used in valuing
options and warrants. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
c) Mineral properties
All costs related to the acquisition, exploration and development of mineral properties are capitalized.
Upon commencement of commercial production, the related accumulated costs are amortized to
income using the unit of production method over estimated recoverable ore reserves. Management
periodically assesses carrying values of non-producing properties and if management determines that
the carrying values cannot be recovered or the carrying values are related to properties that have
lapsed, the unrecoverable amounts are expensed.
The recoverability of the carried amounts of mineral properties is dependent on the existence of
economically recoverable ore reserves and the ability to obtain the necessary financing to complete
the development of such ore reserves and the success of future operations. The Company has not
yet determined whether any of its mineral properties contains economically recoverable reserves.
Amounts capitalized as mineral properties represent costs incurred to date, less write-downs and
recoveries, and does not necessarily reflect present or future values.
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SILVER PHOENIX RESOURCES INC.
(An Exploration Stage Company)

NOTES TO INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Nine Month Period Ended September 30, 2008
(unaudited)
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
c) Mineral properties (continued)
When options are granted on mineral properties or properties are sold, proceeds are credited to the
cost of the property. If no future capital expenditure is required and proceeds exceed costs, the
excess proceeds are reported as a gain.
d) Equipment
Equipment is recorded at cost and amortized over its estimated useful life (one half of these rates is
applied in the year of acquisition) at the following annual rates:
Computer equipment
Equipment

- 30%
- 20%

e) Long-lived assets
The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of mineral property and deferred exploration costs
may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison
of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be
generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an
impairment charge is recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds
the fair value of the asset.
f) Asset retirement obligations
The Company follows the recommendations of Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (“CICA”)
Handbook Section 3110, “Asset Retirement Obligations”, which established standards for asset
retirement obligations and the associated retirement costs related to site reclamation and
abandonment. The fair value of the liability for an asset retirement obligation is recorded when it is
incurred and the corresponding increase to the asset is amortized over the life of the asset. The
liability is increased over time to reflect an accretion element considered in the initial measurement at
fair value. As at September 30, 2008, the Company has not incurred any asset retirement obligations
related to the exploration and development of its mineral properties.
g) Government assistance
B.C. mining exploration tax credits for certain exploration expenditures incurred in B.C. are treated as
a reduction of the exploration and development costs of the respective mineral property.
h) Income taxes
The Company uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method,
future income tax assets and liabilities are determined based on temporary differences which arise
between the accounting basis and the tax basis of various assets and liabilities, and are measured
using substantively enacted tax rates and laws expected to apply when these differences reverse. A
valuation allowance is provided for any future income tax assets if it is more likely than not that the
asset will not be realized.

6

SILVER PHOENIX RESOURCES INC.
(An Exploration Stage Company)

NOTES TO INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Nine Month Period Ended September 30, 2008
(unaudited)
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
i)

Stock-based compensation
The Company applies the fair value method to stock-based payments to all awards that are direct
awards of stock, that call for settlement in cash or other assets or are stock appreciation rights
that call for settlement by the issuance of equity instruments. Compensation expense is
recognized over the applicable vesting period with a corresponding increase in contributed
surplus. When the options are exercised, the exercise price proceeds together with the amount
initially recorded in contributed surplus are credited to share capital.

j)

Loss per share
Basic loss per share is computed by dividing net loss available to common shareholders by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. The Company
applies the treasury stock method in calculating diluted loss per share. Diluted loss per share
excludes all dilutive potential common shares if their effect is anti-dilutive.

k) Financial instruments
As at September 30, 2008, the Company’s financial instruments consist of cash and accounts
payable and accrued liabilities. The Company is not exposed to derivative financial instruments. It
is management’s opinion that the Company is not exposed to significant interest and currency
risks arising from its financial instruments and their fair values approximate their carrying values.
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risks
consist principally of cash. To minimize the credit risk the Company places these instruments with
high credit quality financial institutions.
Management of capital risk
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to provide shareholder returns through
maximization of the profitable growth of the business and to maintain a degree of financial
flexibility relevant to the underlying operating and metal price risks while safeguarding the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
Management of financial risk
The Company’s financial instruments are exposed to certain financial risks, including credit risk,
liquidity risk, interest risk and price risk.
(a) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of an unexpected loss if a customer or third party to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations.
The Company’s cash are held through large Canadian financial institutions. The Company’s
GST and other receivables consist of general sales tax due from the Federal Government of
Canada.
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SILVER PHOENIX RESOURCES INC.
(An Exploration Stage Company)

NOTES TO INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Nine Month Period Ended September 30, 2008
(unaudited)
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
k) Financial instruments (continued)
Management of financial risk (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due (Note 1). The Company manages liquidity risk through the management of its
capital structure and financial leverage as outlined above.
(c) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is not exposed to
significant interest risks arising from its financial instruments and their fair values approximate
their carrying values.
(d) Price risk
The Company is exposed to price risk with respect to commodity prices. The Company
closely monitors commodity prices to determine the appropriate course of action to be taken
by the Company.
l)

Comprehensive loss
Comprehensive loss reflects net loss and other comprehensive income (loss) for the period.
Other comprehensive income (loss) includes changes in unrealized foreign currency translation
amounts arising from self-sustaining foreign operations, unrealized gains and losses on availablefor-sale assets and changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges to the
extent they are effective.

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Effective on January 1, 2008, the Company adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
(“CICA”) Handbook Section 3862, “Financial Instruments - Disclosure” and Section 3863, “Financial
Instruments - Presentation”. These sections carry forward the former presentation requirements and
increase the emphasis on recognition and management of the risks associated with recognized and
unrecognized financial instruments. The adoption of these sections had no impact on the financial
position or net earnings for the period ended September 30, 2008.
Effective on January 1, 2008, the Company adopted the CICA Handbook Section 1535, “Capital
Disclosures”, which requires disclosure of information about an entity’s capital and its objectives, policies
and processes for managing capital. Disclosure requirements pertaining to this new standard are
contained in Note 2.
Effective on January 1, 2008, the Company adopted the CICA Handbook Section 3031, "Inventories".
This section replaces the existing Section 3030 and establishes standards for the measurement of
inventories, allocations of overhead, accounting for write-downs and disclosures. The adoption of this
section had no impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.
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SILVER PHOENIX RESOURCES INC.
(An Exploration Stage Company)

NOTES TO INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Nine Month Period Ended September 30, 2008
(unaudited)
3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Effective on January 1, 2008, the Company adopted CICA Handbook Section 1400, “General Standards
of Financial Statement Presentation”. This section provides revised guidance on management’s
responsibility to assess and disclose the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The adoption
of this section had no significant impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
Recent accounting pronouncement not yet adopted
In February 2008, the CICA Accounting Standards Board ("AcSB") adopted a strategic plan for the
direction of accounting standards in Canada. As part of that plan, accounting standards in Canada for
public companies will converge with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"). AcSB
announced that 2011 is the changeover date for publicly-listed companies to use IFRS, replacing
Canadian GAAP. This date is for interim and annual financial statements relating to fiscal years
beginning on or after January 1, 2011. The transition date of January 1, 2011 will require the restatement
for comparative purposes of amounts reported by the Company for the year ended December 31, 2010.
In July 2008 AcSB announced that early adoption will be allowed in 2009 subject to seeking exemptive
relief. The Company continues to monitor and assess the impact of convergence of Canadian GAAP and
IFRS.
4. MINERAL PROPERTIES

Big
Showing

September 30, 2008

River
Jordan

Waverly
Tangier

Total

Acquisition costs:
Balance, beginning of the period
Acquisition during the period

$

Balance, end of the period
Deferred exploration expenditures:
Balance, beginning of period
Expenditures during period
Geologist fees and assays
Camp and general
Other costs
Balance, end of the period
$

1 $
-

1 $
-

1 $
-

3
-

1

1

1

3

29,164

74,758

16,396

120,318

7,445
-

7,126
3,750
6,592

56,424
17,458

70,995
3,750
24,050

36,609

92,226

90,278

219,113

36,610 $

92,227 $

90,279 $

219,116
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SILVER PHOENIX RESOURCES INC.
(An Exploration Stage Company)

NOTES TO INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Nine Month Period Ended September 30, 2008
(unaudited)
4. MINERAL PROPERTIES (continued)

Big
Showing

December 31, 2007

Waverly
Tangier

River
Jordan

Total

Acquisition costs:
Balance, beginning of the year
Acquisition during the year

$

Balance, end of the year
Deferred exploration expenditures:
Balance, beginning of period
Expenditures during period
Deposit
Geologist fees and assays
Geotechnical costs
Tenure and restaking
Other costs
Balance, end of the year
$

1 $
-

1 $
-

- $
1

2
1

1

1

1

3

7,500

30,712

20,634
1,030
-

2,500
33,989
684
6,873
-

7,374
8,515
507

2,500
61,997
684
16,418
507

29,164

74,758

16,396

120,318

29,165 $

74,759 $

16,397 $

120,321

38,212

The Company's mineral properties are described as follows:
Big Showing Property, British Columbia
On February 14, 2003, the Company entered into an agreement to acquire a 100% interest in the Big
Showing property for mineral claims for a total area of 1,000 hectares in the Revelstoke Mining Division of
British Columbia. The Company acquired 90% of the property from the President and director of the
Company and 10% from an individual who became a director of the Company November 1, 2006.
For payment of the property, the Company agreed to issue 750,000 common shares of the Company on
the date of the agreement (issued), to pay $35,000 in cash by April 30, 2007 (paid), to issue 1,000,000
common shares of the Company within 30 business days of the date on which the Company receives a
technical report disclosing an indicated mineral resource of 5,000,000 ounces of contained silver
equivalent on the claims, and to issue a further 1,583,333 common shares within 30 business days of the
date on which the Company receives a positive pre-feasibility study on the claims.
The transaction was considered a related party transaction and consequently 750,000 common shares
issued as initial payment were recorded at the nominal carrying amount of the property of the related
party vendors. The cash payment of $35,000 was charged to deficit in 2007.
Waverly Tangier Property, British Columbia
On March 15, 2004, the Company entered into an agreement to acquire a 100% interest in the Waverly
Tangier Property for mineral claims for a total area of 5,675 hectares in the Revelstoke Mining Division of
British Columbia. The Company acquired 90% of the property from the President and director of the
Company and 10% from an individual who became a director of the Company on November 1, 2006.
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SILVER PHOENIX RESOURCES INC.
(An Exploration Stage Company)

NOTES TO INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Nine Month Period Ended September 30, 2008
(unaudited)
4. MINERAL PROPERTIES (continued)
The Company agreed to issue 750,000 common shares of the Company on the date of the agreement
(issued), to pay $35,000 in cash (paid in August 2007), to issue 1,000,000 common shares of the
Company within 30 business days of the date on which the Company receives a technical report
disclosing an indicated mineral resource of 5,000,000 ounces of contained silver equivalent on the claims,
and to issue a further 1,583,333 common shares within 30 business days of the date on which the
Company receives a positive pre-feasibility study on the claims.
The transaction was considered a related party transaction and consequently 750,000 common shares
issued as initial payment were recorded at the nominal carrying amount of the property of the related
party vendors. The cash payment of $35,000 was charged to deficit in 2007.
River Jordon Property, British Columbia
On March 16, 2006, the Company entered into an agreement to acquire a 100% interest in the River
Jordan Property for mineral claims for a total area of 649 hectares in the Revelstoke Mining Division of
British Columbia. The Company acquired 90% of the property from the President and director of the
Company and 10% from an individual who became a director of the Company on November 1, 2006.
The Company agreed to pay $35,000 in cash by April 30, 2007 (paid), to issue 750,000 common shares
(issued in June 2007) of the Company, to issue 1,000,000 common shares of the Company within 30
business days of the date on which the Company receives a technical report disclosing an indicated
mineral resource of 5,000,000 ounces of contained silver equivalent on the claims, and to issue a further
1,583,333 common shares within 30 business days of the date on which the Company receives a positive
pre-feasibility study on the claims.
The transaction was considered a related party transaction and consequently 750,000 common shares
issued as initial payment were recorded at the nominal carrying amount of the property of the related
party vendors. The cash payment of $35,000 was charged to deficit in 2007.

5. EQUIPMENT

Cost
Computer equipment
Equipment

Accumulated
amortization

September 30,
2008
Net book
value

December 31,
2007
Net book
value

$

3,132 $
2,477

1,296 $
1,081

1,836 $
1,396

2,369
1,642

$

5,609 $

2,377 $

3,232 $

4,011
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SILVER PHOENIX RESOURCES INC.
(An Exploration Stage Company)

NOTES TO INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Nine Month Period Ended September 30, 2008
(unaudited)
6. DUE TO RELATED PARTY
The amounts due to the President and director of the Company are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
have no specific terms of repayment.
7. SHARE CAPITAL
a) Details of Share Capital:
Authorized: Unlimited common shares without par value
Issued and outstanding:
Shares
Balance, December 31, 2007 and September 30, 2008

2,250,000 $

Amount
3

b) Warrants
Shares

Amount

Balance, December 31, 2007
Warrants issue costs

4,580,520 $
-

1,078,679
(65,854)

Balance, September 30, 2008

4,580,520 $

1,012,825

In July 2007, the Company issued 4,563,520 special warrants and in September 2007, the Company
issued a further 17,000 special warrants for a total of 4,580,520 special warrants at $0.25 per warrant for
gross proceeds of $1,145,130. Each special warrant can be exercisable to purchase one common share
of the Company at no further consideration. The special warrants are not exercisable during the first 12
months from date of issue, and will be deemed to be exercised at the earlier of 24 months from date of
issue and filing of a final prospectus for issuance of the shares. The Company incurred warrants issue
costs of $66,451 for the year ended December 31, 2007 and $65,854 for the 9 month period ended
September 30, 2008. The Company agreed to pay a finder’s fee of $250 relating to the warrants issued.
c) Contributed Surplus
September 30,
2008

December 31,
2007

Balance – beginning of period
Fair value of stock-based compensation

$

-$
106,124

-

Balance – end of period

$

106,124 $

-
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SILVER PHOENIX RESOURCES INC.
(An Exploration Stage Company)

NOTES TO INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Nine Month Period Ended September 30, 2008
(unaudited)
7. SHARE CAPITAL
d) Stock Options
On April 18, 2008, the Company approved the adoption of a “rolling” stock option plan whereby a
maximum of 10% of the issued common shares of the Company, from time to time, may be reserved for
issuance pursuant to the exercise of options. The board of directors may, from time to time, grant options
to directors, officers, employees and consultants of the Company. Options granted must be exercised no
later than five years (if the Company is listed on the CNQ or a TSX Venture Exchange Tier 2 issuer) or
ten years (if the Company is a TSX Venture Exchange Tier 1 issuer). The exercise price of an option
cannot be less than the market price of the common share less applicable discounts permitted by the
stock exchange on which the common shares are listed. Options begin vesting on the grant date based
on a schedule outlined in the stock option plan.
On July 8, 2008, the Company granted to five directors and one officer incentive stock options to
purchase up to 680,000 common shares of the Company at a price of $0.25 per share exercisable until
July 7, 2013. These options vested on grant and had a fair value of $106,124.
The fair value of the options granted is estimated on its date of grant using the Black-Scholes optionpricing model with the following assumptions:
July 8, 2008
Risk-free interest rate
Expected dividend yield
Expected stock price volatility
Expected life of options

3.40%
0.00%
160%
5 years

The weighted average grant date fair value was $0.16 per option.
At September 30, 2008, these options had a weighted average remaining contractual life of 4.8 years and
were all exercisable, with details as follows:

Number of Options

Exercise
Price

Expiry Date

680,000

$0.25

July 7, 2013

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
During the nine month period ended September 30, 2008, the Company paid management fees of
$49,500 (2007 - $22,500) to the President and $22,500 (2007 - $Nil) to the Chief Financial Officer,
respectively. These related party transactions were measured at the exchange amount which is the
amount agreed upon by the transacting parties and are on terms and conditions similar to non-related
entities.
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SILVER PHOENIX RESOURCES INC.
(An Exploration Stage Company)

NOTES TO INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Nine Month Period Ended September 30, 2008
(unaudited)
9. COMMITMENTS
a) The Company is committed to a management services agreement with the President and director of
the Company. The agreement requires payments of $84,000 per year commencing April 1, 2008.
This contract is payable monthly and may be terminated by both parties by giving one month’s notice.
b) The Company is committed to a management services agreement with the Chief Financial Officer of
the Company. The agreement requires payments of $30,000 per year commencing October 1, 2007.
This contract is payable monthly and may be terminated by both parties by giving one month’s notice.
c) The Company is obligated to make certain payments and issue shares as described in Note 4 in
connection with acquisition of its mineral properties.

10. SUBSEQUENT EVENT
On November 26, 2008, the Company filed a prospectus with the Securities Commission of British
Columbia, Alberta and Manitoba relating to the qualification for distribution of 4,580,520 special warrant
shares. The special warrant shares will be issued on exercise of the 4,580,520 special warrants, as
described in Note 7(b), at no further consideration. The Company agreed to pay a finder’s fee of $250.
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